MADERACOUNTY

WY WORKFORCE

INVESTMENT CORPORATION

AGENDA

January 23, 2014
3:00 p.m.

Meeting will be held at:

Madera County Workforce Assistance Center
Conference Room
441 E. Yosemite Avenue
Madera, CA 93638
(559) 662-4589

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION FOR ANY INDIVIDUAL WITH A DISABILITY Pursuant to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, any individual with a disability who requires reasonable accommodation to attend or
participate in a meeting or function of the Madera County Workforce Investment Board, may request assistance by contacting the Senior
Administrative Assistant at Madera County Workforce Development Office, 441 E. Yosemite Avenue, Madera, CA 93638; Telephone
559/662-4589; Fax 559/673-1794.

This agenda and supporting documents relating to the items on this agenda are available through the Madera County Workforce Investment
Board website at http://www.maderaworkforce.org/?page_id=736. These documents are also available at the Madera County Workforce
Assistance Center — office of the Executive Director.

1.0 Callto Order
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance

Public Comment

This time is made available for comment from the public on matters within the Board’s jurisdiction. The comment period will be limited
to 15 minutes. Each speaker will be limited to 3 minutes and only one speaker per subject matter.

Introductions and Recognitions
Adoption of Board Agenda
Consent Calendar

5.1 Approve Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation (MCWIC) Meeting Minutes — December 5,
2013

Action Items

6.1 Approve Revised MCWIC Bylaws

6.2 Approve Revised Executive Director Evaluation Process

6.3 Approve Non-Financial One Stop Consortia Memorandum of Agreement (MOA)
6.4 Approve Financial Reports

6.5 Approve Budget Revision

6.6 Approve Form 990 for Submission to IRS



http://www.maderaworkforce.org/?page_id=736

7.0 Information Items
7.1 MCWIC Policies and Procedures Manual
7.2 Grants/Projects Update
7.3 Facilities Update

8.0 Written Communication

9.0 Open Discussion/Reports/Information

9.1 Committee Members
9.2 Staff

10.0 Next Meeting
February 27, 2014

11.0 Adjournment




AGENDAITEM 5.1

MADERACOUNTY

INVESTMENT CORPORATION

SPECIAL MEETING
December 5, 2013

MINUTES

PRESENT: Debi Bray, Bob Carlson, Manuel Nevarez, Robyn Smith
ABSENT: Kelly Woodard

GUEST: Roni Armstrong — Employment Development Department

OTHERS: Elaine Craig, Tracie Scott-Contreras, Gail Lopez, Jessica Roche, Nicki Martin

1.0 Callto Order
Meeting called to order at 9:43 a.m.
1.1 Pledge of Allegiance
Public Comment
None
Introductions and Recognitions
None
Consent Calendar

4.1 Approve Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation (MCWIC) Meeting Minutes —
October 24, 2013

Bob Carlson moved to approve, seconded my Manuel Nevarez
Vote: Approved — unanimous

Yes: Debi Bray, Bob Carlson, Manuel Nevarez, Robyn Smith

Adoption of Board Agenda
Debi Bray moved to adopt Board Agenda, seconded by Robyn Smith
Vote: Approved — unanimous

Yes: Debi Bray, Bob Carlson, Manuel Nevarez, Robyn Smith

Action ltems

6.1 Approve MCWIC Staff Salary Schedule

Officially approving the MCWIC staff salary schedule was a recommendation as a result of the Single
Audit that was recently completed. This would help maintain transparency. All job titles, salary, etc.
were brought over from what was being used while the Workforce program and staff were with Madera
County Office of Education (MCOE). Staff are planning on looking into the current compensation rates
and revise them for any new hires in the coming future. All existing staff that were hired using the

3



nmartin
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 5.1


MCOE salary schedule will be grandfathered in and will remain on the same schedule.
Debi Bray moved to approve, seconded by Manuel Nevarez
Vote: Approved — unanimous

Yes: Debi Bray, Bob Carlson, Manuel Nevarez, Robyn Smith

Approve Process to Change MCWIC Board Member Composition

Staff requests approval to begin the process to change the MCWIC Board composition to current WIB
Private Sector members with 2 community at-large members. This was a recommendation by the
auditors in order to have a more clear separation of duties between the Operation and Oversight of the
One Stop and was a State Monitoring finding. This will also allow for a more Private Sector driven
Board. The Chair and Vice Chair positions would continue to represented by Private Sector members.

Robyn Smith moved to approve
Vote: Approved — unanimous

Yes: Debi Bray, Bob Carlson, Manuel Nevarez, Robyn Smith

Approve Development of a Non-Financial One Stop Consortia Memorandum of Agreement
(MOA)

Staff have determined that MCWIC is not able to be “grandfathered” as One Stop Operator since the
separation from MCOE. In researching the process of One Stop Operator designation, it was
determined that neither the recertification of the Madera County WIB nor the Local Plan approval by
the California WIB nor the CLEO /MOU with Madera County were acceptable methods for designation.
Upon further research, it was determined that entering into a non-financial MOA with at least 3
mandated partners would be the best method for gaining designation. Board members also suggested

the possible addition of a Private Sector member. Staff will bring MOA information to the WIB and
proceed after gaining approval.

Robyn Smith moved to approve, seconded by Bob Carlson
Vote: Approved — unanimous

Yes: Bob Carlson, Manuel Nevarez, Robyn Smith

Approve Process for Performance Evaluation for Executive Director

Staff have previously sent out example evaluation forms and information and asked for input on their
preference. Evaluations would be done in closed session. Staff have spoken with many other Directors
and Board members to gain input on other area’s processes. Board members preferred to use Sample
#1 Executive Director Performance Evaluation Review. The Executive Director and the Evaluation
Committee will use the form for the evaluation. After each Evaluator (3) completes their evaluations of
the Executive Director, the Chair will compile the 3 evaluations into one. The Chair will meet with the
Executive Director to present the final written evaluation. The Executive Director may submit written
comments or goals at this meeting. The formal evaluation will then take place during the Boards closed
session where an oral report/overview of the Executive Directors evaluation will be provided, along
with any written comments/communications by the Executive Director to the board. Goals can be
considered, amended, and approved at this time. The Executive Director's compensation package can
be discussed during the closed session. Any change to the Executive Director’'s compensation
package must be approved by the Board. After the closed session, the Chair, or board, will provide a
verbal or written report to the Executive Director regarding compensation or any further comment e.g.
goals, objectives, board direction. Should there be a delay in the process, any increase to the
Executive Director’'s compensation package should be applied retroactively to July 1. The Board would
like to review the Executive Director’'s self-evaluation and Goals and Objectives annually during the
January MCWIC Board meeting during closed session. This will serve as a mid-way check-in. Staff
and the Board will then commence the evaluation process beginning in May by requiring that an
updated Goals and Objectives and Self Review be completed and turned in to the Board annually by

4




May 15". The Bylaws will need to be revised to reflect the evaluation process. Robyn Smith
volunteered to serve as one of the evaluators. Debi Bray suggested that the Executive Director’s job
description and benefits package be part of the evaluation process/documents.

Debi Bray moved to have Executive Director have their Goals and Objectives and Self Review
completed and submitted to the evaluation committee annually by May 15". The Evaluation Committee
will review the documents by the last business day in May. The formal evaluation will be conducted
during closed session at the June MCWIC meeting. Motion was seconded by Robyn Smith

Vote: Approved — unanimous

Yes: Debi Bray, Bob Carlson, Manuel Nevarez, Robyn Smith

Approve Financial Reports

Staff provided financial reports for the month of October and will continue to bring monthly reports to
the Board in order to maintain transparency in business dealings. Staff expect an increase to

Unemployment Insurance (Ul) of .9% in 2014 which represents a payment of $15,012. Staff will bring
budget adjustments to the next board meeting.

Manual Nevarez moved to approve, seconded by Robyn.
Vote: Approved — unanimous

Yes: Bob Carlson, Manuel Nevarez, Robyn Smith
Approve Writing Off Bad Debt

For purposes of tracking, balancing, and transparency, staff requested approval for writing off a bad
debt of $1,435.00 in accounts receivable. This resulted from revenue for MCWIC that was mistakenly
sent to MCOE. As a result of an internal MCOE audit, MCOE declined to forward the funds to MCWIC
as they assert that MCWIC has an outstanding balance on their fiscal books. Staff and MCOE have
met to discuss resolution of the funds but could not come to an agreement to obtain the funds from
MCOE.

Bob Carlson moved to approve, seconded by Manuel Nevarez
Vote: Approved — unanimous

Yes: Bob Carlson, Manuel Nevarez, Robyn Smith

7.0 Information Items

7.1 Grants/Projects Update

Staff provided an update on grants and projects. Staff attended an award ceremony for the $25,000
grant awarded to MCWIC by Chukchansi to be used for replacing Resource Room computers in the 3
the One Stop locations. Whatever computers can’t be used will be donated.

Facilities Update

Staff provided a written update on facilities.

8.0 Written Communication

None
Open Discussion/Reports/Information
9.1 Committee Members

None
9.2 Staff




None
10.0 Next Meeting

The December 26, 2013 meeting is cancelled due to the holiday. The MCWIC board will next meet on
January 23, 2014.

11.0 Adjournment




MADERACOUNTY

INVESTMENT CORPORATION

Agenda Iltem 6.1

[ ] Consent X] Action [ ] Information

To: Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation

From: Elaine Craig, Executive Director
Workforce Investment Board
Date: January 23, 2014

Subject: Approve Revised MCWIC Bylaws

Recommendation:

Staff recommend approval of the revisions to the Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation By-
Laws related to the Qualification and Appointment of Directors and the Performance Evaluation of the
Executive Director.

Summary:

At previous MCWIC Board of Director and MCWIB/Executive meetings, there has been discussion about
the need to change the composition of the MCWIC Board of Directors so that there is a more delineated
separation of duties. This was recommended by the auditor as well as the state monitor. Staff have
recommended that the MCWIC Board of Directors composition be private sector, in alignment with the
private sector driven workforce development system, and that we solicit current private sector WIB
members. In addition, staff has recommended that we recruit from the community for up to two members
at large from non-profit agencies. The WIB and the Board of Directors directed staff to make appropriate
changes to the MCWIC Bylaws and bring those changes before the Board of Directors. They have been
tracked in Article IV Board of Directors 4.04. The language has also been added to Article VII Executive
Director 7.03 related to the annual performance evaluation of the Executive Director.

Financing:
Workforce Investment Act of 1998




AGENDAITEM 6.1

RESTATED BYLAWS
OF
MADERA COUNTY WORKFORCE INVESTMENT CORPORATION,

a California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation

1078940v1 / 17727.0001


nmartin
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 6.1


L0 NI ettt et bbb bbbt bt bRt b e bR bbbt b b en
1.02  General Purposes and Limitations ..........cccccvevvieiiieiiiciesc e s
1.03  SPECITIC PUMPOSES ...ttt
1.04  DediCation OF ASSELS ......coiiieiieieerie ettt et sb et b et eb e
1.05  NONPArtisan ACHIVILIES ...vveveeierieiee s et sre e
ARTICLE T OFFICES ..ottt bbbt bbbt
2.01  PrinCipal OffiCe . ....cciiiriiiee e
2.02  OtNer OFfICES....cveueeieeiiietere ettt
ARTICLE HIMEMBERSHIP........coiiitiieiietese et bbb
301 IMIBMIDEIS .t
3.02  AFFIlIALEU PEISONS......iitieeiiiieiteeeeic ettt ettt sb e bbb e
ARTICLE 1V BOARD OF DIRECTORS ......ctiitiriieierisieisiet ettt
4,01 GENEIAl POWELS .....eviiiteiiieeie ettt ettt et e s
4,02 SPECITIC POWETS......coiiitiiieeieit ettt s
4.03  NUMDET OF DIFECLOIS .....cuiiviiiieiiciest ettt et sbe s
4.04 Qualifications and Appointment of DIreCtOrS........ccovvvvviererieceriene e
4.05 Term Of OffiCe OF DIFECIONS .....oviiiiiiieiceetire e e e
4.06 Vacancies; Removal; Resignation of DIr€Ctors .........cccocvveiecerieneiesereee e
(@) VACANCY. ...ttt et

(b) REMOVAL ..ottt e saeneas

(c) RESIGNALION ...t

4.07  Annual Meeting Of DIFECIOIS .....vcuveieieiecieie st
4.08  Other Regular MEETINGS .......cvieieire ettt ene e
4.09  SPECIAl MEEIINGS ......cviviirieiiisr et
4,10 EMErgenCy MEELINGS ....cviviviieiceitiriee e te ettt a ettt tesn e enesre e
411 Place of Meetings; Meetings By Telephone ........cccocvvvvieriiininicceeee
2 © TN o] 13 o RSP PRRRTSRROP
413 AGJOUMNMENT ..ottt ettt
4.14  Notice of Adjourned MEELING ........cccviiiiiiieii it
4.15 Compensation and Reimbursement of DireCtorS........ccccovvevevvviereiieeevieese e
416 VOUING cvieieieeee ettt
4.17  Management OF MEELINGS ......ccevvieiiieiicese et
418 RUIES OF OFUEN.....oeieieeeieeee ettt ne e e neenas
4,19 OPEN IMEELINGS ....e.veiveeiieie sttt se sttt st te e e b e be st e esa e s e sbesbeene e neeee e
4.20  ClOSEA SESSIONS. . ..vvieietiieiieieisteeisiet ettt b ettt bbbt et s
ARTICLE V OFFICERS ... ..octtiititie ettt bbb ettt
LT 0 R O ot £SO PSSR PRSRRN
5.02  Qualifications 0f OffiCEIS ....c.coiiiiiiiiieceeec e e
5.03  Appointment 0f OFFICEIS.......cooiiiiiii e
5.04  Term Of OFfiCE ...ooiiieiece b e e
5.05  Additional OFfiCEIS ....oviviiiiiiiicee e

1078940v1 / 17727.0001 i



5.06 Removal and Resignation of OFfiCers..........cccoiiiirieiiiii i 8

@ REMOVAL ......coiiiiiicice ettt e e saeneas 8
(b) RESIGNALION ..o 8
5.07  VacanCies iN OFFICES .......ciiiiiiiie et 8
508 CRAIT. et 8
5109 VICE CNAIIS...eieiiiittiteieete ettt ettt bbb bbb et b nnene s 9
5.10 0 SECIBLAIY ..ouvitieiieie ittt ettt st b bbbttt et b be e bbb e s 9
BULL TIASUIET ..ttt ettt bbbttt et b e se e be bt ese e e e et e nbenbeaneen 10
ARTICLE VI COMMITTEES ..ottt ettt st st ne e ssenesnenes 10
6.01 Committees of the BOArd ...........ccoiriiiiiiic e 10
6.02  Meetings and Actions 0f COMMITIEES...........cvviriiirieiie e 11
ARTICLE VII EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR......coctitiiitiirietisiee ettt e 11
T.OL  EMPIOYMENT....c.oiiiiiiieiiei e 11
T.02  DULIES ..ottt bbbt btttk ekt b e e bbb 11
ARTICLE VIII INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES
AND OTHER AGENTS ..ottt ettt ss e et sesse e 12
8.01 Agents, Proceedings, and EXPENSES......c.ccviiiiiiierieieiiieseeiesiesseseessessessesseesseessens 12
8.02  Actions Other Than By the Corporation.........ccccoouvvrerieienieneeienene s e 12
8.03  Actions By the COrpPOration ..........cccoeerirreiriirieeinisree e 13
8.04  Successful Defense BY AQENL.......ccccovivieiviieierieie et e 13
8.05  ReqUIred APPFOVAL.......ccciiiieriiiect e 13
8.06  AUVANCE OF EXPENSES...c.uiiiiiiieieiteitesieie st sttt e sttt sbe e sbesbeara e e e e 14
8.07  Other Contractual RIGNtS .........ceoiriieiinieiiie e 14
8.08  LIMILALIONS ...ttt et ettt bbbt bbb e 14
8.09  INSUFBINCE ...ttt et ettt e et en e et nn et r e 14
ARTICLE IX CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS ..ottt e 14
9.01 Disqualifying Financial INtErest...........cocueiriiiiiiiiiireeee e 14
9.02  Prior Board of Directors’ APProval..........ccccveveiiiiieniise e 14
9.03 Board of Directors RatifiCation............ccccoovieierieiiniieisese e 15
9.04 Disqualifying Non-Financial INterest ..........ccocevveieiiiiiieie e 15
9.05 Procedure of DisqUalifiCation ...........ccoeveiviieiirisie e 15
9.06 Director Contracts or Grants with the Corporation..........c.c.ccceeeveernereineennnnnns 15
ARTICLE X RECORDS AND REPORTS ....cvititiiieirieeinietieseseseeesestee s sesseesiesessesessssenessenes 16
10.01 ReCOrds and REPOIMS ......ccueveeiiisieiee ettt e r e e sresnens 16
10.02 Inspection of Articles and BYIAWS ..o 16
10.03  INSPECLION DY DIrECIOIS ....vvivviieciiciiciee st 16
10.04  ANNUAI REPOM .....c.viiiieeicesiste ettt ettt s na et saenean e e e nnas 16
10.05 Annual Statement of Certain Transactions and Indemnifications ..............c.......... 17
ARTICLE XI GENERAL CORPORATE MATTERS ..ot 18
11.01 Construction and DefiNItioNS .........ccccoeirrieiiiiin e e 18
11.02 AmMendment DY DIFECIOIS .......ccviiveiieciiirieie et 18
1078940v1 / 17727.0001 i



11.03 Authority to Bind COrpOration............cccveerireinirineinseeneecsree s

11.04 Insurance................

ARTICLE XII FISCAL YEAR......

12.01 Date of Fiscal Year

1078940v1 / 17727.0001



RESTATED BYLAWS
OF
MADERA COUNTY WORKFORCE INVESTMENT CORPORATION,
a California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation

ARTICLE I
ORGANIZATION

1.01 Name. The name of this Corporation is Madera County Workforce
Investment Corporation.

1.02  General Purposes and Limitations. This corporation is a California
nonprofit public benefit corporation organized under the Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation
Law. This corporation is organized and operated exclusively for charitable purposes within the
meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the
corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law (herein, the "Code").
The general purposes of this Corporation are:

@ To have and exercise all rights and powers conferred through
Titles I through V of the Workforce Investment Act (“WIA”) which provide guidance for
statewide and local workforce investment systems that prepare youth and adults for entry
into the labor force and develop self-sufficiency;

(b) To do all other things allowed by a non-profit corporation and
utilize funds from all other sources other than government to effectively educate, train,
and place individuals with the necessary resources and skills to fulfill employer needs;
and

(c) To have and exercise all rights and powers conferred on nonprofit
public benefit corporations under the Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law of
California as such law is now in effect or may at any time hereafter be amended,
provided, however, notwithstanding any of the foregoing statements, this Corporation
shall not, except to an insubstantial degree, engage in any activities or exercise any
powers that are not in furtherance of the above-stated purposes of this Corporation.

1.03  Specific Purposes. The specific purposes of this Corporation are to
operate in accordance with and under the provisions of Titles I through V of the WIA and the
applicable regulations as set forth in Part 652 and Parts 660 through 671 of Title 20 of the Code
of Federal Regulations, as such law and regulations are now in effect or may be amended from
time to time, in order to:

@ Secure more private sector jobs for the unemployed and working
poor;

(b)  Attract greater employer participation in all aspects of local
employment and training activities; and

1078940v1 / 17727.0001 1



(© Act as an administrative entity to assist in the implementation of
the WIA in Madera County, California, in a manner that is responsive to the needs of the
private sector.

1.04  Dedication of Assets. The property of this Corporation is irrevocably
dedicated to charitable purposes and no part of the net income or assets of this Corporation shall
ever inure to the benefit of any director, officer, or member thereof or to the benefit of any
private person. Upon the dissolution or winding up of this Corporation, its assets remaining after
payment, or provision for payment, of all debts and liabilities of this Corporation shall be
distributed to a nonprofit fund, foundation, or corporation which is organized and operated
exclusively for charitable purposes and which has established its tax exempt status under Section
501(c)(3) of the Code, and which is qualified for exemption from taxation under Section 23701d
of the California Revenue and Taxation Code.

1.05 Nonpartisan Activities. The Corporation shall be nonpartisan. No
substantial part of the activities of this Corporation shall consist of carrying on propaganda, or
otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the Corporation shall not participate or
intervene in any political campaign (including the publishing or distribution of statements) on
behalf of any candidate for public office. The Corporation shall not, except in an insubstantial
degree, engage in any activities or exercise any powers that are not in furtherance of the purposes
and objectives described herein.

ARTICLE I
OFFICES

2.01 Principal Office. The principal office for the transaction of the activities
and affairs of the Corporation (“principal executive office”) is located at 441 East Yosemite
Avenue, Madera, California 93638. The Board of Directors may change the principal executive
office from one location to another. Any change of this location shall be noted by the Secretary
on these Bylaws opposite this Section, or this Section may be amended to state the new location.

2.02 Other Offices. The Board of Directors may at any time establish branch or
subordinate offices at any place or places, within or without the State of California, where the
Corporation is qualified to conduct its activities.

ARTICLE 111
MEMBERSHIP

3.01 Members. This Corporation shall have no members within the meaning of
Section 5056 of the California Corporations Code. Any action which would otherwise require
approval by a majority of all members or approval by the members shall require only approval of
the Board of Directors. All rights which would otherwise vest in the members shall vest in the
Board of Directors.

3.02 Affiliated Persons. This Corporation may refer to contributors, advisors,

or other persons or entities associated with it as “members” even though those contributors,
advisors, or other persons or entities are not members, and no reference shall constitute anyone a

1078940v1 / 17727.0001 2



member, within the meaning of Section 5056 of the California Corporations Code. The
Corporation may confer by amendment of its Articles of Incorporation or of these Bylaws some
or all of the rights of a member, as set forth in the California Nonprofit Corporation Law, upon
any person or persons who do not have the right to vote for the election of directors or on a
disposition of substantially all of the assets of the Corporation or on a merger or on a dissolution
or on changes to the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, but no such person shall
be a member within the meaning of Section 5056 of the California Corporations Code.

ARTICLE IV
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

4.01 General Powers. Subject to the provisions and limitations of the
California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law and any other applicable laws, and subject
to any limitations in the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, the activities and affairs of the
Corporation shall be managed and all corporate powers shall be exercised by, or under the
direction of, the Board of Directors

4.02  Specific Powers. Without prejudice to these general powers and subject to
the same limitations, the Board of Directors, in addition to any other powers enumerated in these
Bylaws, shall have the power to:

@ Appoint and remove, subject to any employment agreement and, at
the pleasure of the Board of Directors, all officers, agents, and employees of the
Corporation; prescribe powers and duties for them that are consistent with law, with the
Articles of Incorporation, and with these Bylaws; fix their compensation (if any); and
require from them security for faithful service;

(b) Change the principal executive office in the State of California
from one location to another; cause the Corporation to conduct its activities within or
without the State of California; and designate any place within or without the State of
California for holding any meeting of Directors;

(c) Adopt and use a corporate seal and to alter the form of such seal
from time to time, as in their judgment they may deem best, provided such seal shall at
all times comply with the provisions of law;

(d) Approve an annual operating budget and capital expenditure
budget, to borrow money and incur indebtedness on behalf of the Corporation and cause
to be executed and delivered for the Corporation’s purposes, in the corporate name,
promissory notes, bonds, debentures, deeds of trust, mortgages, pledges, hypothecations,
and other evidences of debt and securities;

(e) To conduct, manage and control the affairs and activities of the
Corporation and to make such rules and regulations therefor not inconsistent with
applicable federal and California law, the Articles of Incorporation or the Bylaws as they
may deem best;

1078940v1 / 17727.0001 3



)] Pursuant to authority hereinafter granted, to appoint committees
and to delegate to such committees powers and authority of the Board of Directors in the
management of the activities and affairs of the Corporation, except the power to adopt,
amend or repeal Bylaws or Articles, and except as otherwise set forth herein;

(9) Approve any action which, under the California Corporations
Code, would require the approval by a majority of statutory members or approval by
statutory members; and

(h) Perform any and all duties imposed upon them collectively or
individually by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, by any agreement with the State of
California or the County of Madera, or by these Bylaws.

4.03  Number of Directors. The authorized number of Directors shall be
between five (5) and fifteen (15) until changed by a duly enacted amendment to these Bylaws.
The initial number of Directors shall be six (6).

4.04 Qualifications and Appointment of Directors. Qualification for

o L

appointment to the Board shall be membership en the Executive-Commitiee-of-the Madera ( Inserted: private sector
County Workforce Investment Board (“WIB”) appointed by the WIB in accordance with the ( Inserted: from
relevant provisions of the WIA, as amended or superseded, and as may be provided in the WIB [ Inserted: who have been
Bylaws. A Inserted: In addition, up to (2) two members at
large from local non- sectarian non-profit
4.05 Term of Office of Directors. Each Director shall hold office for a term organizations, preferably who have workforce

. . " " . . development or related knowledge or experience.

conterminous with that Directors service on the Executive- Committee-of the WIB. These members at large will be identified through a

public recruitment process and appointed by the

4.06 Vacancies; Removal; Resignation of Directors. Board.

@ Vacancy. Vacancies on the Board of Directors shall be filled by
the WIB. A vacancy or vacancies on the Board of Directors shall be deemed to exist on
the occurrence of any of the following: (i) the death or resignation of any Director; (ii)
the declaration by resolution of the Board of Directors of a vacancy in the office of a
Director who has been declared of unsound mind by an order of court, convicted of a
felony, or found by final order or judgment of any court to have breached a duty under
Article 3 of Chapter 2 of the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law; (iii)
the increase of the authorized number of Directors; (iv) the removal of a Director in
accordance with these Bylaws; or (v) the expiration or termination of a Director’s term of
service on the Executive-Committee-of-the WIB. No reduction of the authorized number
of Directors shall have the effect of removing any Director from office before that
Director's term of office has expired.

(b) Removal. A Director may be removed, either with or without
cause, by a three-fourths (3/4) majority vote of all other Directors at the time in office at
any regular meeting or special meeting of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors
may set specific attendance guidelines that may cause a Director to be removed for
failure to attend Board of Directors’ meetings.

1078940v1 / 17727.0001 4



(© Resignation. Except as provided below, any Director may resign
by giving written notice to the Chair, any Vice Chair or the Secretary, or the Board of
Directors. The resignation shall be effective when the notice is given unless it specifies a
later time for the resignation to become effective. If a Director’s resignation is effective
at a future time, the Board of Directors may elect a successor to take office as of the date
when the resignation becomes effective. Except on notice to the Attorney General of
State of California, no Director may resign if the Corporation would be left without a
duly elected Director or Directors.

4.07  Annual Meeting of Directors. The June regular meeting of each calendar
year shall be known as the annual meeting. The month of this meeting is subject to change,
however, if the Board of Directors fixes another date and all Directors are so notified. If the
scheduled date falls on a legal holiday, the meeting shall be held on the next full business day.
Each such annual meeting shall be held for purposes of organization, the election of officers, and
the transaction of other business. Notice of the annual meeting shall state the matters that the
board, at the time notice is given, intends to present for action.

4.08 Other Regular Meetings. Other regular meetings of the Board of Directors
may be held at such time and place as the Board of Directors may fix from time to time. The
time and place of such meetings will be stated in the minutes of the previous meeting of the
Board of Directors. Notices of regular meetings of the Board shall include an agenda specifying
the place, the day, and the hour or the meeting, and a brief general description of each item of
business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.

4.09 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors for any
purpose may be called at any time by the Chair, any Vice Chair, the Secretary a majority of
Directors. Notice for such meetings shall comply with the Ralph M. Brown Act. Additionally,
notice of the time and place of special meetings shall be given to each Director by one of the
following methods: (a) by personal delivery of written notice; (b) by first-class mail postage
prepaid, (c) by telephone, either directly to the Director or to a person at such Director's office
who would reasonably be expected to communicate that notice promptly to such Director; (d) by
e-mail, either directly to the Director or to a person at such Director's office who would
reasonably be expected to communicate that notice promptly to such Director; or (e) by
facsimile, either directly to the Director or to a person at such Director’s office who would
reasonably be expected to communicate that notice promptly to such Director. All such notices
shall be given or sent to the Director’s address or telephone number as shown on the records of
the Corporation. Notice sent by first-class mail shall be deposited in the United States mail at
least four (4) days before the time set for the meeting. Notices given by personal delivery,
telephone, e-mail or fax shall be delivered, telephoned, e-mailed or faxed at least forty-eight (48)
hours before the time set for the meeting. The notice shall state the time of the meeting, the
purpose of the meeting, that no other business may be transacted, and the place if the place is
other than the principal executive office of the Corporation. No business, other than the business
that was set forth in the notice of the meeting, may be transacted at a special meeting. The notice
shall be posted at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the special meeting in a location that is
freely accessible to members of the public.

1078940v1 / 17727.0001 5



4.10 Emergency Meetings. In the case of an emergency situation involving
matters upon which prompt action is necessary due to the disruption or threatened disruption of
public facilities, the Board of Directors may hold an emergency meeting without complying with
either the 24-hour notice or the 24-hour posting requirements of Section 4.09 above. For the
purposes of this Section, an “emergency situation” shall be defined as those events causing work
stoppage, crippling activity, or other activity that severely impairs public health, safety, or both,
as determined by a majority of the Directors. All definitions, notice and conduct specified in
Government Code Section 54956.5 of the Ralph M. Brown Act is incorporated by reference.

4.11 Place of Meetings; Meetings By Telephone. Meetings of the Board shall
be held at any place, within or without the State of California, that has been designated by
resolution of the Board of Directors or in the notice of the meeting or, if not so designated, at the
principal executive office of the Corporation. Any meeting may be held by conference
telephone, as long as such telephonic communications are allowed under the Ralph M. Brown
Act and all Directors participating in the meeting can hear one another. All such Directors shall
be deemed to be present in person at such a meeting.

4,12  Quorum. A majority of the authorized number of Directors shall
constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business, except to adjourn. Every action taken or
decision made by a majority of the Directors present at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is
present shall be the act of the Board of Directors, subject to the provisions of the California
Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law and the Ralph M. Brown Act, including, without
limitation, those provisions relating to (a) approval of contracts or transactions in which a
Director has a direct or indirect material financial interest; (b) approval of certain transactions
between corporations having common directorships; (c) creation of, and appointments to,
committees of the Board of Directors, and (d) indemnification of Directors. A meeting at which
a quorum is initially present may continue to transact business, despite the withdrawal of
Directors, if any action taken or decision made is approved by at least a majority of the required
quorum for that meeting.

4.13 Adjournment. A majority of the Directors present, whether or not a
quorum is present, may adjourn any meeting to another time and place. If all Directors are
absent from any regular or adjourned regular or special or adjourned special meeting, the Chair
may declare the meeting adjourned to a stated time and place. However, if more than 50% of the
number of Directors required to reach a quorum are present at the meeting, discussion can be had
by the Directors on those items set on the agenda and recommendations developed for
presentation at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting at which a quorum exists.

4.14  Notice of Adjourned Meeting. Whenever a meeting is adjourned, written
notice of the adjournment shall be given in the same manner as provided in Sections 4.08, 4.09
and 4.10 of this Article. A copy of the order or notice of adjournment shall be conspicuously
posted within twenty-four (24) hours after the time of adjournment on or near the main public
entrance of the building where the regular, adjourned regular, special, adjourned special or
emergency meeting was held.

4.15 Compensation and Reimbursement of Directors. Directors and members
serving on committees approved by the Board of Directors may not be compensated by the

1078940v1 / 17727.0001 6



Corporation for their services. However, Directors and members of committees may receive
such reimbursement of expenses, as may be fixed or determined by resolution of the Board of
Directors to be just and reasonable as to the Corporation at the time that such resolution is
adopted; provided that such reimbursement is consistent with the WIA and relevant policies
adopted by any agency with administrative oversight of the WIB (so long as such policy is not
inconsistent with the WIA or any federal or state statute).

4.16 Voting. Each Director is entitled to one (1) vote on each matter submitted
to a vote of the Directors. Voting may be by voice or by ballot, except that any Director shall
have a right to have a roll call vote on request, in which case the clerk shall call the roll and
record each vote and report the final tally to the Chair.

4.17 Management of Meetings. Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be
presided over by the Chair, or in the Chair’s absence, by the Vice Chair, or in the absence of
both, by the Secretary/Treasurer, or in the absence of all three, by an acting Chair chosen by a
majority of the Directors.

4.18 Rules of Order. Meetings shall be governed by Robert’s Rules of Order,
to the extent that such rules are not inconsistent or in conflict with these Bylaws, with the
Acrticles of Incorporation of the Corporation, or with applicable law.

4.19 Open Meetings. All meetings shall be open to the public and conducted in
conformance with California Government Code Section 54950 et seq., commonly referred to as
the “Ralph M. Brown Act.”

4.20 Closed Sessions. Closed sessions are permitted in a duly noticed meeting
for specific purposes controlled by the relevant sections of the Ralph M. Brown Act.

ARTICLEV
OFFICERS

5.01 Officers. The officers of the Corporation shall be a Chair, a Vice Chair, a
Secretary, and a Treasurer. The Corporation may also have, at the discretion of the Board of
Directors, such other officers as may be appointed in accordance with the provisions of this
Article. Any number of offices may be held by the same person, except that neither the
Secretary nor the Treasurer may serve concurrently as the Chair. Officers may, from time to
time, delegate certain responsibilities to the Executive Director, if any.

5.02 Qualifications of Officers. Officers need not be Directors of the
Corporation. The Chair and Vice Chair shall be a representative of private sector business and
industry, and shall be the elected Chair or Vice Chair of the WIB.

5.03  Appointment of Officers. Except such officers as may be appointed under
Section 5.05 below, officers shall be chosen annually by the Board of Directors.

5.04 Term of Office. Officers shall serve until that officer resigns or is
removed or is otherwise disqualified to serve, or until a successor is elected or appointed under

1078940v1 / 17727.0001 7



this terms of this Article. Officers shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors, subject to
the rights, if any, of an officer under any contract of employment.

5.05 Additional Officers. The Board of Directors may appoint, and may
authorize the Chair or another officer to appoint, any other officers that the business of the
Corporation may require. Each officer so appointed shall have the title, hold office for the
period, have the authority, and perform the duties specified in these Bylaws or determined from
time to time by the Board of Directors.

5.06 Removal and Resignation of Officers.

@) Removal. Subject to the rights, if any, of an officer under any
contract of employment, any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, by the
Board of Directors, at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors or by
unanimous written consent of the Board of Directors, or, except in case of an officer
chosen by the Board of Directors, by any officer upon whom such power of removal may
be conferred by the Board of Directors. If the Chair or Vice Chair should be removed,
the Board of Directors shall notify the WIB of this removal. The appointment of a new
Chair or Vice Chair shall proceed as if that position was vacant.

(b) Resignation. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written
notice to the Corporation. Any resignation shall take effect at the date of the receipt of
that notice or at any later time specified in that notice and, unless otherwise specified in
that notice, the resignation need not be accepted to make it effective. Any resignation is
without prejudice to the rights, if any, of the Corporation under any contract to which the
officer is a party.

5.07 Vacancies in Offices. A vacancy in any office because of death,
resignation, removal, disqualification or any other cause shall be filled in the manner prescribed
in these Bylaws for regular appointments to that office.

5.08 Chair. Subject to the control of the Board of Directors, the Chair shall
direct, and control the activities and affairs of the Board and its officers. The Chair shall have
such other powers and duties as the Board of Directors or these Bylaws may prescribe. In the
absence of an executive director, retained either as an employee of the Corporation or as an
administrative services contractor of the Corporation, the Chair shall serve as the chief executive
officer and direct and control the Corporation's activities and affairs. The Chair shall be given
the necessary authority and held responsible for the administration of the Corporation in all its
activities and subject only to such policies as may be adopted and such orders as may be issued
by the Board of Directors or by any of its committees to which it has delegated power for such
action. The Chair shall act as the “duly authorized representative” of the Board of Directors in
all matters in which the Board of Directors has not formally designated some other person for
that specific purpose. Without prejudice to such general powers as above described, but subject
to the limitations, authority and duties of the Chair are hereby expressly declared to be:

@ To carry out all policies established by the Board of Directors, and
to advise on the formation of those policies;

1078940v1 / 17727.0001 8



(b) To attend meetings of the Board of Directors and its committees;

(c) To prepare plans for the achievement of the Corporation's long-
range objectives and goals as adopted by the Board of Directors;

(d) To promote effective and economical working relationships with
other organizations;

(e) To represent the Corporation to the public;

f To see that the Corporation is in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations and to assure review of and prompt action on reports and
recommendations of authorized regulatory and inspecting agencies;

(9) To oversee, together with a personnel committee of the Board, the
performance of the Executive Director; and

(h) To perform any other duty that may be necessary in the best
interest of the Corporation.

5.09 Vice Chairs. If the Chair is absent or disabled, the Vice Chair shall
perform all the duties of the Chair, and when so acting shall have all the powers of, and be
subject to all the restrictions upon, the Chair. The Vice Chair shall have such other powers and
perform such other duties as from time to time may be prescribed for them respectively by the
Board of Directors, these Bylaws, or the Chair.

5.10 Secretary. The Secretary shall:

@ Certify and keep at the principal corporate office or such other
place that the Board of Directors may order, the original, or a copy, of these Bylaws as
amended or otherwise altered to date;

(b) Keep at the principal corporate office or such other place the Board
of Directors may order, a book of minutes of all meetings of the Directors and of all
meetings of committees, recording therein the time and place of holding said meeting,
whether regular, special or emergency, and, if special or emergency, how authorized, the
notice given, the names of those present, the number of Directors present, and the
proceedings thereof;

(c) Be the custodian of records of the Corporation;

(d) Exhibit at all reasonable times to any Director of the Corporation,
the Bylaws and any requested minutes;

(e) Exhibit at all reasonable times to any member of the public any
documents or records that by law the public has a right to see; and

1078940v1 / 17727.0001 9

20



)] Perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other
duties as may be required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation of this Corporation, or
by these Bylaws, or that may be assigned from time to time by the Chair or the Board of
Directors.

5.11 Treasurer. The Treasurer shall:

@ Keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate
and correct books and accounts of the Corporation's properties and transactions.

(b) Send or cause to be given to the Directors such financial
statements and reports as are required to be given by law, by these Bylaws, or by the
Board of Directors. The books of account shall be open to inspection by any Director at
all reasonable times.

(c) Deposit, or cause to be deposited, all money and other valuables in
the name of, and to the credit of, the Corporation with such depositories as the Board of
Directors may designate; disburse the Corporation's funds as the Board of Directors may
order; render to the Chair of the Board of Directors, and the Board of Directors, when
requested, an account of all transactions as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the
Corporation; and have such other powers and perform such other duties as the Board of
Directors or these Bylaws may prescribe.

The Board of Directors may elect to secure in the name of the Corporation and the
Treasurer a bond in the amount and with the surety or sureties specified by the Board of
Directors for faithful performance of the duties of the office and for restoration to the
Corporation of all of its books, papers, vouchers, money, and other property of every kind in the
possession or under the control of, the Treasurer upon such officer's death, resignation,
retirement, or removal from office.

In the event that the Corporation hires a bookkeeper, accountant, accounting firm,
or other financial professional, the Treasurer may delegate to such financial professional the
daily operational tasks but at all times shall be responsible for supervising their activities.

ARTICLE VI
COMMITTEES

6.01 Committees of the Board. The Board of Directors, by resolution adopted
by a majority of the Directors then in office, provided a quorum is present, may create one or
more committees, each consisting of two (2) or more Directors, and other persons that the
Directors may appoint to serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. Appointments to
committees of the Board shall be by majority vote of the Directors then in office. The Board of
Directors may appoint one or more Directors as alternate members of any such committee, who
may replace any absent member at any meeting. Any such committee, to the extent provided in
the Board resolution, shall have all the authority of the Board of Directors, except that no
committee, regardless of Board resolution, may:

1078940v1 / 17727.0001 10

21



€)) Fill vacancies on the Board of Directors or on any committee that
has the authority of the Board of Directors;

(b)  Amend or repeal bylaws or adopt new bylaws;

(c) Amend or repeal any resolution of the Board of Directors that by
its express terms is not so amendable or repealable;

(d) Create any other committees of the Board of Directors or appoint
the members of committees of the Board of Directors;

(e) Approve any contract or transaction to which the Corporation is a
party and in which one or more of its Directors has a material financial interest, except as
special approval is provided for in Section 5233(d)(3) of the California Corporations
Code; or

(f Take any final action in violation of the California Nonprofit
Public Benefit Corporation Law.

6.02 Meetings and Actions of Committees. Meetings and actions of
committees of the Board of Directors shall be governed by, held, and taken in accordance with,
the provisions of these Bylaws concerning meetings and other Board actions, except that the time
for regular meetings of such committees and the calling of special meetings of such committees
may be determined either by Board resolution or, if there is none, by resolution of the committee
of the Board of Directors. Minutes of each meeting of any committee of the Board of Directors
shall be kept and shall be filed with the corporate records. The Board of Directors may adopt
rules for the government of any committee, provided they are consistent with these Bylaws or, in
the absence of rules adopted by the Board of Directors, the committee may adopt such rules.

ARTICLE VII
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

7.01 Employment. The Board may employ and/or appoint an Executive
Director who shall be the administrative head of the Corporation.

7.02 Duties. The Executive Director shall be responsible to the Board of
Directors. The Executive Director shall be given the authority to carry out the policies
established by the Board of Directors. The Executive Director shall have, but not be limited to,
the following duties:

@ Serve as the administrator of all aspects of the day-to-day
operations of the Corporation, including operating policies and procedures;

(b) Make recommendations to the Board for its consideration
regarding broad policies of the Corporation;

(c) Develop the overall program and services to be provided by the
Corporation and its clients;

1078940v1 / 17727.0001 11

22



(d) Be present either personally or through an appointed representative
at all Board meetings and be an ex-officio member of all committees;

(e) Select, employ, control, and discharge all administrative officers
and employees authorized by the Board of Directors, in accordance with established
policies and procedures of the Corporation;

()] Submit to the Board of Directors an annual budget showing the
expected receipts and expenditures;

(9) Require that all physical properties are kept in good repair and
operating condition; and

Supervise all business and financial affairs such as the maintenance of financial
transaction records, collections of accounts, and purchase and issuance of supplies

in accordance with principles of prudent business management.

ARTICLE VI
INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES
AND OTHER AGENTS

8.01 Agents, Proceedings, and Expenses. For the purposes of this Article,
“agent” means any person who is or was a Director, officer, employee, or other agent of this
Corporation, or is or was serving at the request of this Corporation as a Director, officer,
employee or agent of another foreign or domestic corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or
other enterprise, or was a Director, officer, employee, or agent of a foreign or domestic
corporation which was a predecessor corporation of this Corporation or of another enterprise at
the request of such predecessor corporation; “proceeding” means any threatened, pending or
completed action or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative; and
“expense” includes, without limitation, attorneys’ fees and any expenses of establishing a right to
indemnification under Sections 8.04 or 8.05(b) below.

8.02 Actions Other Than By the Corporation. This Corporation shall have the
power to indemnify any person who was or is a party, or is threatened to be made a party, to any
proceeding (other than an action by, or in the right of, this Corporation to procure a judgment in
its favor, an action brought under Section 5233 of the California Corporations Code, or an action
brought by the Attorney General or a person granted relator status by the Attorney General for
any breach of duty relating to assets held in charitable trust) by reason of the fact that such
person is or was an agent of this Corporation, against expenses, judgments, fines, settlements and
other amounts actually and reasonably incurred in connection with such proceeding if that person
acted in good faith and in a manner that person reasonably believed to be in the best interests of
this Corporation and, in the case of a criminal proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe the
conduct of that person was unlawful. The termination of any proceeding by judgment, order,
settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent shall not, of itself,
create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which the person
reasonably believed to be in the best interests of this Corporation or that the person had
reasonable cause to believe that the person's conduct was unlawful.

1078940v1 / 17727.0001 12

Inserted: |
7.03 Performance Evaluation. The Executive
Director’s performance will be evaluated
annually by the Chair, Vice Chair and an
appointed third Director.

23



8.03  Actions By the Corporation. This Corporation shall have the power to
indemnify any person who was or is a party, or is threatened to be made a party, to any
threatened, pending or completed action by, or in the right of, this Corporation, or brought under
Section 5233 of the California Corporations Code, or brought by the Attorney General or a
person granted relator status by the Attorney General for breach of duty relating to assets held in
charitable trust, to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that person is or was an
agent of this Corporation, against expenses actually and reasonably incurred by that person in
connection with the defense or settlement of that action if that person acted in good faith, in a
manner that person believed to be in the best interests of this Corporation, and with such care,
including reasonable inquiry, as an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would use under
similar circumstances. No indemnification shall be made under this Section 8.03 for any of the
following reasons:

@ In respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which that person
shall have been adjudged to be liable to this Corporation in the performance of that
person's duty to this Corporation, unless, and only to the extent that, the court in which
such proceeding is or was pending shall determine upon application that, in view of all
the circumstances of the case, that person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity
for the expenses and then only to the extent that the court shall determine;

(b) Of amounts paid in settling or otherwise disposing of a threatened
or pending action, with or without court approval; or

() Of expenses incurred in defending a threatened or pending action
which is settled or otherwise disposed of without court approval unless it is settled with
the approval of the Attorney General.

8.04 Successful Defense By Agent. To the extent that an agent of this
Corporation has been successful on the merits in defense of any proceeding referred to in
Sections 8.02 or 8.03 above, or in defense of any claim, issue, or matter therein, the agent shall
be indemnified against expenses actually and reasonably incurred by the agent in connection
therewith.

8.05 Required Approval. Except as provided in Section 8.04 above, any
indemnification under this Article shall be made by this Corporation only if authorized in the
specific case upon a determination that indemnification of the agent is proper in the
circumstances because the agent has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in Section
8.02 or 8.03 above, by any of the following:

@ A majority vote of a quorum consisting of Directors who are not
parties to the proceeding; or

(b) The court in which the proceeding is or was pending, upon
application made by this Corporation or the agent or the attorney or other person
rendering services in connection with the defense, whether or not such application by the
agent, attorney, or other person is opposed by this Corporation.

1078940v1 / 17727.0001 13

24



8.06  Advance of Expenses. Expenses incurred in defending any proceeding
may be advanced by this Corporation before the final disposition of the proceeding upon receipt
of an undertaking by, or on behalf of, the agent to repay the amount of the advance unless it shall
be determined ultimately that the agent is entitled to be indemnified as authorized in this Article.

8.07  Other Contractual Rights. No provision made by a corporation to
indemnify its Directors or officers for the defense of any proceeding, whether contained in the
Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, a resolution of the Board of Directors, an
agreement or otherwise, shall be valid unless consistent with this Article. Nothing contained in
this Article shall affect any right to indemnification to which persons other than Directors and
officers of this Corporation may be entitled by contract or otherwise.

8.08 Limitations. No indemnification or advance shall be made under this
Article, except as provided in Sections 8.04 or 8.05(b) above, in any circumstances where it
appears:

@ That it would be inconsistent with a provision of the Articles of
Incorporation, Bylaws, or an agreement in effect at the time of the accrual of the alleged
cause of action asserted in the proceeding in which the expenses were incurred or other
amounts were paid, which prohibits or otherwise limits indemnification; or

(b) That it would be inconsistent with any condition expressly
imposed by a court in approving a settlement.

8.09 Insurance. Upon and in the event of a determination by the Board of
Directors of this Corporation to purchase such insurance, this Corporation shall purchase and
maintain insurance on behalf of any agent of the Corporation against any liability asserted
against, or incurred by, the agent in such capacity or arising out of the agent's status as such
whether or not this Corporation would have the power to indemnify the agent against the liability
under the provisions of this Article; provided, however, that this Corporation shall have no
power to purchase and maintain such insurance to indemnify any agent of the Corporation for a
violation of Section 5233 of the California Corporations Code.

ARTICLE IX
CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS

9.01 Disqualifying Financial Interest. Subject to California law regarding
conflicts of interest, including, without limitation, Government Code Sections 1090 et seq. and
87100 et seq., as amended, any member of the Board of Directors must obtain the Board of
Directors’ approval pursuant to Sections 9.02 and 9.03 below and disqualify himself or herself
from making, participating in the making of, or attempting to influence any decisions of the
Board of Directors or a committee of the Board of Directors if it is reasonably foreseeable that
the decision is one in which the Director has a material financial interest.

9.02 Prior Board of Directors' Approval. Subject to California law regarding
conflicts of interest, including, without limitation, Government Code Sections 1090 et seq. and
87100 et seq., as amended, the Board of Directors may approve a proposed transaction in which
a Director or Directors may have a material financial interest if after reasonable investigation and

1078940v1 / 17727.0001 14



prior to consummating the transaction or any part thereof, with knowledge of the material facts
concerning the transaction and the Director or Directors’ interest in transaction, the Board of
Directors determines in good faith by vote of a majority of Directors then in office without
counting the vote of the interested Director or Directors, that:

€] The proposed transaction is for the Corporation’s own benefit;

(b) The proposed transaction is fair and reasonable as to the
Corporation; and

(© The Corporation cannot obtain a more advantageous arrangement
with reasonable efforts under the circumstances.

9.03 Board of Directors Ratification. Subject to California law regarding
conflicts of interest, including, without limitation, Government Code Sections 1090 et seq. and
87100 et seq., as amended, the Board of Directors may ratify a transaction entered into between
the Corporation and a Director or Directors in which the Director or Directors had a material
financial interest if at the next meeting of the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors
determines in good faith by vote of a majority of Directors then in office without counting the
vote of the interested Director or Directors, that:

@ A committee or person authorized by the Board of Directors
approved the transaction;

(b) The Corporation entered into the transaction for its own benefit;

) The transaction was fair and reasonable as to the Corporation at the
time the Corporation entered into the transaction; and

(d) It was not reasonably practicable to obtain approval of the Board
of Directors prior to entering into the transaction.

9.04 Disqualifying Non-Financial Interest. Any member of the Board of
Directors must likewise disqualify himself or herself when there exists a personal non-financial
interest which will prevent the member for applying disinterested skill and undivided loyalty to
the Corporation in making or participating in the making of decisions.

9.05 Procedure of Disqualification. A Director required to disqualify himself
or herself pursuant to Sections 9.01 or 9.04, above, shall (2) immediately disclose the interest, (b)
recuse himself or herself from any participation in the matter, (c) refrain from attempting to
influence any other Director, and (d) leave the room during any proceedings on the matter in
question. The Director may be counted in determining whether a quorum is present.

9.06 Director Contracts or Grants with the Corporation. Pursuant to
Government Code Section 1091.2, as amended, the prohibition against “financially interested”
public officials in Government Code Section 1090 shall not apply to any contract or grant made
by the Board, except where both of the following conditions are met:

1078940v1 / 17727.0001 15

26



€)) The contract or grant directly relates to services to be provided by
any Director or the entity the Director represents, or financially benefits the Director or
the entity he or she represents; and

(b) The Director fails to recuse himself or herself from making,
participating in making, or in any way attempting to use his or her official position to
influence a decision on the grant or grants.

ARTICLE X
RECORDS AND REPORTS

10.01 Records and Reports. The Corporation shall keep:

@ Adequate and correct books and records of account;

(b) A book of minutes of all meetings of Directors and all meetings of
committees, recording therein the time and place of holding said meetings, whether
regular, special or emergency, and if special or emergency, how authorized, the notice
given, the names of those Directors present, the number of Directors present, and the
proceedings thereof; and

(c) A copy of the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws, as amended,
to date.

10.02 Inspection of Articles and Bylaws. All material required to be made
available for inspection by the public under the Freedom of Information Act or the California
Public Records Act, as amended, the Articles of Incorporation, the Bylaws, books of account,
and the minutes of the meetings of the Directors, and standing committees, and ad hoc
committees shall be open to inspection on the written demand of any member of the public at
any reasonable time. Such inspection may be made in person or by agent or attorney, and the
right of inspection includes the right to make copies. Demand of inspection other than at a
meeting shall be made in writing to any officer of the Corporation. The Corporation may charge
a reasonable fee for making copies in accordance with applicable law.

10.03 Inspection by Directors. Every Director shall have the absolute right at
any reasonable time to inspect the Corporation’s books, records, documents of every kind,
physical properties, and the records of each of its subsidiaries. The inspection may be made in
person or by the Director’s agent or attorney. The right of inspection includes the right to copy
and make extracts of documents.

10.04 Annual Report. The Board shall cause an annual report to be sent to the
Directors within one hundred twenty (120) days after the end of the Corporation’s fiscal year.
That report shall contain the following information, in appropriate detail, for the fiscal year:

@ The assets and liabilities, including the trust funds, of the
Corporation as of the end of the fiscal year.

1078940v1 / 17727.0001 16

27



(b) The principal changes in assets and liabilities, including trust
funds.

(© The revenue or receipts of the Corporation, both unrestricted and
restricted to particular purposes.

(d) The expenses or disbursements of the Corporation for both general
and restricted purposes.

(e) An independent accountants’ report or the certificate of an
authorized officer of the Corporation that such statements were prepared without audit
from the Corporation's books and records.

)] Any information required by Section 10.05 below.

This requirement of an annual report shall not apply if the Corporation receives less than
Twenty-Five Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($25,000.00) in gross receipts during the fiscal year,
provided, however, that the information specified above for inclusion in an annual report must be
furnished annually to all Directors who request it in writing.

10.05 Annual Statement of Certain Transactions and Indemnifications. As part
of the annual report to the Board of Directors of the Corporation, or as a separate document if no
annual report is issued, the Corporation shall annually furnish to each Director a statement of any
transaction or indemnification of the following kind within one hundred twenty (120) days after
the end of the Corporation’s fiscal year:

@ Any transaction (i) which the Corporation, its parent, or its
subsidiary was a party; (ii) in which an “interested person” had a direct or indirect
material financial interest; and (iii) which involved more than Twenty-Five Thousand and
No/100 Dollars ($25,000.00), or was one of a number of transactions with the same
interested person involving, in the aggregate, more than Twenty-Five Thousand and
No/100 Dollars ($25,000.00). For this purpose, an “interested person” is either of the
following: (i) Any Director or officer of the Corporation, its parent, or subsidiary (but
mere common directorship shall not be considered such an interest); or (ii) any holder of
more than ten percent (10%) of the voting power of the Corporation, its parent, or its
subsidiary. The statement shall include a brief description of the transaction, the names
of interested persons involved, their relationship to the Corporation, the nature of their
interest in the transaction and, if practicable, the amount of that interest, provided that if
the transaction was with a partnership in which the interested person is a partner, only the
interest of the partnership need be stated.

(b) Any indemnifications or advances aggregating more than Ten
Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) paid during the fiscal year to any officer or
Director of the Corporation under Sections 8.01 through 8.03 of these Bylaws, unless that
indemnification has already been approved by the Directors under Section 5238(e)(2) of
the California Corporations Code.

1078940v1 / 17727.0001 17

28



ARTICLE Xl
GENERAL CORPORATE MATTERS

11.01 Construction and Definitions. Unless the context requires otherwise, the
general provisions, rules of construction, and definitions in the California Nonprofit Corporation
Law shall govern the construction of these Bylaws. Without limiting the generality of the
preceding sentence, the masculine gender includes the feminine and neuter, the singular includes
the plural, the plural includes the singular, and the term “person” includes both a legal entity and
a natural person.

11.02 Amendment by Directors. These Bylaws or Articles of Incorporation of
this Corporation may be amended or repealed, or new Bylaws or Articles adopted, by the
affirmative vote of a majority of the authorized number of Directors on the Board of Directors.
No amendment may extend the term of a Director beyond that for which such Director was
elected.

11.03 Authority to Bind Corporation. The Board of Directors, except as in these
Bylaws otherwise provided, may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, to enter into
any contract or execute any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation, and such
authority may be general or confined to specific instances; and unless so authorized by the Board
of Directors no officer, agent or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the
Corporation by any contract or engagement, or to pledge its credit, or to render it liable for any
purpose in any amount.

11.04 Insurance. The Corporation shall have the right to purchase and maintain
insurance to the full extent permitted by law on behalf of its officers, Directors, employees, and
other agents, against any liability asserted against or incurred by any officer, Director, employee,
or agent in such capacity or arising out of the officer’s, Director’s, employee’s, or agent’s status
as such.

ARTICLE XII
FISCAL YEAR

12.01 Date of Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin on the
first day of July and end on the last day of June in each year.

1078940v1 / 17727.0001 18

29



CERTIFICATE OF ADOPTION

I certify that | am the duly appointed and authorized Secretary of MADERA
COUNTY WORKFORCE INVESTMENT CORPORATION, California nonprofit public benefit
corporation, that the above Restated Bylaws, consisting of eighteen (18) pages, are the Restated
Bylaws of this Corporation as approved and ratified by Board of Directors of this Corporation on

| Mareh2,2012 and that said Restated Bylaws have not been amended or modified since the date ( Inserted: January 23, 2014
thereof.
| Executed on Mareh2.2012 at Madera, California. [ Inserted: January 23, 2014

7 ) ).
Dri ke 52

Elaine Craig, Secretary 7

1078940v1 / 17727.0001 19

30



MADERACOUNTY

INVESTMENT CORPORATION

Agenda Iltem 6.2
[ ] Consent X] Action [ ] Information

To: Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation

From: Elaine Craig, Executive Director
Workforce Investment Board
Date: January 23, 2014

Subject: Approve Revised Executive Director Evaluation Process

Recommendation:

Staff recommend approval of a revised Executive Director performance evaluation process.

Summary:

At previous MCWIC Board of Director meetings, the performance evaluation process for the Executive
Director has been discussed. There was a selection of an evaluation form that will be used for the
purpose of an annual performance evaluation to be completed by May 15" The process also included the
selection of a self-evaluation form to be used by the Executive Director and to be presented in January of
each year to the Board. The evaluation committee is comprised of the Chair, Vice Chair and a 3"
Director ultimately to be appointed by the Chair. Robyn Smith volunteered as the 3" Director for this
year's process and evaluation. Unfortunately, there was a malfunction of the tape recorder in the last
meeting where these and other discussions and decisions took place. Staff ultimately were able to use
another recorder and staff written notes that were taken to attempt to determine and solidify the actual
motion related to the process and timelines. In obtaining feedback from the Board through email related
to the motion and a subsequent meeting held between the Chair and Executive Director, the process
needs to be re-addressed to make certain there is an agreed upon process that the Executive Director
understands Board's intent and expectations related to the evaluation process.

Financing:
Workforce Investment Act of 1998




MADERACOUNTY

INVESTMENT CORPORATION

Agenda Item 6.3

[ ] Consent X] Action [ ] Information

To: Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation

From: Elaine Craig, Executive Director
Workforce Investment Board
Date: January 23, 2014

Subject: Approve Non-Financial One Stop Consortia Memorandum of
Agreement (MOA)

Recommendation:

Staff recommend approval of the Non-Financial One Stop Consortia Memorandum of Agreement (MOA)
designating the MCWIC as the One Stop Operator in consortium with three of the mandated One Stop
partner agencies.

Summary:

Staff received approval at the regularly scheduled MCWIC and WIB Executive Committee meeting in
December 2013 to begin to draft the MOA document. We have since completed the document and have
made contact with three partner agencies; Employment Development Department (EDD), Central Valley
Opportunity Center (CVOC), and Department of Rehabilitation (DoR) and they have indicated their
support in the designation, consortia and signing the document.

Financing:
Workforce Investment Act of 1998




AGENDAITEM 6.3

Madera County Workforce Investment Board
One-Stop Consortia

Non-Financial

Memorandum of Agreement

Background:

The Workforce Investment Act of 1998 (WIA), Section 117, established a local workforce investment
board (WIB), which, in partnership with the chief local elected official, is responsible for setting policy
and overseeing workforce investment programs for a local workforce investment area (LWIA). The
Madera County LWIA includes the entire county and the local board is named the Madera County
Workforce Investment Board (WIB) and the chief local elected official is the Madera County Board of
Supervisors (BoS). The Board of Supervisors appoints members of the WIB, which per the WIA must be
comprised of a private sector majority while also including a cross section of required public agencies
and organized labor.

The establishment of a One-Stop delivery system for workforce development services is a cornerstone of
WIA, section 134(c), and is the primary charge of the WIB, section 117(d), section 118(b). The WIA
specifies that the WIA funded Adult and Dislocated Worker programs must be provided through the
One-Stop delivery system, section 134(d), and further specifies the specific services that must be
provided, section 134(c) and (d), and the partners that must participate in the operation of the system
and the delivery of these services, section 121(b).

The agreement between the Madera County WIB and Madera County One-Stop Operator Consortium
partners regarding the operation of the local One-Stop system in Madera County is documented in a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). The MOU contains the provisions required by WIA, section
121©(2). These provisions cover services to be provided through the One-Stop delivery system; the
funding of the services and operating costs of the system; and methods for referring individuals
between required One-Stop partners. The MOU’s provisions also determine the duration and
procedures for amending the MOU, and contain other provisions that are consistent with WIA Title 1,
the accompanying regulations, and agreed to by the parties, WIA section 121©

The local One-Stop delivery system is a network of One-Stop Career Centers that operate under the
brand Madera County Workforce Assistance Center, within which are entities responsible for
administering separate workforce investment, educational, and other human services programs and
funding streams.

Purpose:
The purpose of this MOA is to document an agreement between the WIB and the One-Stop Operator

Consortium partner agencies for the operation of the local One-Stop delivery system, consistent with
local policies and the WIA, section 1210.

33


nmartin
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 6.3


Governance Structure:

A. The Chief Local Elected Official (CLEO)-The Madera County Board of Supervisors (BoS) is the

C.

chief elected official for the Madera County Local Workforce Investment Area. The County is
the official grant recipient of Workforce Investment Act funds and is financially responsible to
the Department of Labor and the State of California Employment Development Department
Workforce Services Division for the administration of the funds pursuant to the requirements of
the Workforce Investment Act.

The Workforce Investment Board (WIB)-The WIB is appointed by the County Board of
Supervisors and is comprised of representatives of business, education, providers, labor
organizations, community-based organizations, economic development agencies and One Stop
partners. The WIB is responsible for oversight authority and accountability of the One Stop
Service Delivery System including (but not limited to) policy development, distribution of WIA
funding, and formation of a strategic five year plan.

The Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation (MCWIC)- The MCWIC provides staff
oversight to the WIB with responsibilities that include fiscal and program compliance monitoring
of the WIA program service delivery contracts and acts as the administrative and fiscal agent
and operator of the Madera County Workforce Assistance Centers as defined in the
Memorandum of Understanding and CLEO contract.

The One Stop Operator Consortium — The members of the One Stop Operator Consortium are
composed of entities appointed by the WIB.

The Consortium Shall:

Work in coordination with the WIB staff to implement the WIB Strategic Plan.

Ensure roles and duties of one stop coordination meet the needs and objectives of all partner
agencies, both customers as well as staff.

Ensure all customers, job seekers, employers, entrepreneurs, and business persons are given the
opportunity to navigate and participate within the One Stop in the most expeditious manner.

Coordinate grant opportunities to augment regular funds granted to each partner within the
Madera County Workforce Assistance Centers.

Work in coordination with the WIB staff to develop One Stop system marketing materials which
promote the message of seamless service to the public.

Ensure promotional materials emulate the fact that success of the system is due to synergy of
the partnership.

Works with partners to identify service gaps and duplication and work to resolve these through
the One Stop Partner Meetings.

34



MADERACOUNTY

INVESTMENT CORPORATION

Agenda ltem 6.4
[ ] Consent X] Action [ ] Information

To: Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation

From: Elaine Craig, Executive Director
Workforce Investment Board
Date: January 23, 2014

Subject: Approve Financial Reports

Recommendation:

Staff recommend approval of the year to date financial reports ending December 2013.

Summary:

Staff will bring to the Board at the regularly scheduled meetings year to date financial reports
that include the budget, balance sheet, statement of activities and the bank reconciliation for
review and approval.

Financing:

Workforce Investment Act of 1998




AGENDAITEM 6.4

Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation
Balance Sheet - Balance Sheet by Fund
As of 12/31/2013
(In Whole Numbers)

Current Year

Assets

Cash 78,356
Due From MCSOS 1,435

Fixed Assets
Computer & Software 52,758
Office Equipment 7,220
Vehicles 2,125
Furniture & Fixtures 11,215
Accumulated Depreciation (8,870)
Total Fixed Assets 64,448
Total Assets 144,239

Liabilities and Net Assets

Dependent Benefits Payable (982)
457 Plan Payable 5,286
FSA Payable (240)
Excess Revenues over Expenditures 140,175
Total Liabilities and Net Assets 144,240
Total Balance Sheet 144,240

Date: 1/16/14 12:36:48 PM Page: 1

36


nmartin
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 6.4


AGENDAITEM 6.4

Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation
Balance Sheet - FY 2013-2014
As of 12/31/2013
(In Whole Numbers)

Current Year

Assets
Cash 78,356
Due From MCSOS
Due From Grants (44,879)
Due From MCSOS Receivable 1,435
Total Due From MCSOS (43,444)
Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid Insurance Expense (17,696)
Total Prepaid Expenses (17,696)
Total Assets 17,216

Liabilities and Net Assets

Grants Payable (44,879)
Employee Payroll and Taxes Payable

Vacation Payable (15,249)

Total Employee Payroll and Taxes Payable (15,249)

Dependent Benefits Payable (982)

457 Plan Payable 5,286

FSA Payable (240)
Excess Revenues over Expenditures

Grant Revenue 1,207,861

Other Income 48,005

Interest Revenue 2

Other (1,240,740)

Total Excess Revenues over Expenditures 15,128

Fund Balance 58,152

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 17,216

Total Balance Sheet 17,216

Date: 1/16/14 01:52:28 PM Page: 1

37


nmartin
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 6.4


Madera County Workforce Corporation
Budget Summary
From 7/1/2013 Through 12/31/2013

AGENDAITEM 6.4

GL Account Original Board Approved
Code Account Title Budget YTD Actual Expense Encumbrances Budget Balance
5100 Staff Salaries 1,250,577.00 555,348.51 0.00 695,228.49
5110 Payroll Tax Expense (FUTA) 1,251.00 0.00 0.00 1,251.00
Employer Medicare Expense
5111 (Medicare) 18,134.00 29,044.42 0.00 (10,910.42)
5112 Social Security Employer Exp (OASDI) 77,535.00 12,685.66 0.00 64,849.34
CA Unemployment Insurance Exp (CA
5115 sul) 42,519.00 0.00 0.00 42,519.00
CA Unemployment Insurance Exp
5116 (ETT) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5120 Workers Compensation Expense 8,505.00 3,364.94 0.00 5,140.06
5130 Group Health Insurance Expense 193,799.00 97,203.00 77,778.00 18,818.00
5140 Employers 457 Expense 72,606.00 32,765.21 0.00 39,840.79
5160 Group Dental Insurance 7,552.00 3,133.95 3,760.74 657.31
5170 Group Vision Insurance 2,035.00 850.85 1,021.02 163.13
5180 Group Life Insurance 630.00 304.15 364.98 (39.13)
Subtotal Salaries and Benefits 1,675,143.00 734,700.69 82,924.74 857,517.57
5200 Materials and Supplies 33,799.00 7,482.82 6,903.63 19,412.55
5300 Rent Expense 88,316.00 42,211.40 31,124.95 14,979.65
5320 Telephone Expense 8,681.00 3,720.25 6,603.27 (1,642.52)
5330 Utilities Expense 28,958.00 12,002.57 13,437.44 3,517.99
5400 Postage Expense 5,003.00 47.81 0.00 4,955.19
5410 Printing Expense 3,995.00 3,015.98 1,682.83 (703.81)
5420 Advertising Expense 5,001.00 942.23 0.00 4,058.77
5430 Bank Charges 91.00 36.00 0.00 55.00
5440 Dues and Membership Expense 4,251.00 1,735.00 0.00 2,516.00
5450 Publications Expense 1,637.00 636.39 141.13 859.48
5500 Auditing Fees 15,000.00 13,150.00 3,350.00 (1,500.00)
5510 Legal Fees 19,999.00 671.85 19,328.15 (1.00)
5530 Taxes and Fees 150.00 29.00 50.00 71.00
5600 Office Equipment 7,999.00 1,309.29 691.16 5,998.55
5610 Equipment Maintenance 6,744.00 9,116.61 1,565.89 (3,938.50)
5620 Equipment Rental 3,601.00 1,815.88 1,313.23 471.89
5630 Software Expense 5,401.00 1.00 0.00 5,400.00
5640 Internet Expense 10,680.00 1,216.17 3,845.54 5,618.29
5650 Computer Hardware 0.00 0.00 26,005.67 (26,005.67)
5710 Employee Education Expense 1,498.00 8,209.41 0.00 (6,711.41)
5720 Staff Travel Expense 24,500.00 7,804.08 1,988.40 14,707.52
5730 Meeting Costs 841.00 300.00 102.05 438.95
5810 General Outside Services 77,012.00 43,562.29 45,278.52 (11,828.81)
5900 Insurance Expense (GenLiab/D&O) 7,425.00 6,896.00 0.00 529.00
Subtotal Operating/Overhead 360,582.00 165,912.03 163,411.86 31,258.11
5800 Subcontracted Program Services 1,022,039.00 349,483.09 466,570.09 205,985.82
5700 Client Travel Expense 7,500.00 5,893.18 1,546.00 60.82
Subtotal Client Direct Program 1,029,539.00 355,376.27 468,116.09 206,046.64
0.00
BUDGET BALANCE 3,065,264.00 1,255,988.99 714,452.69 1,094,822.32

38


nmartin
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 6.4


Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation AGENDAITEM 6.4
Statement of Activities - Board Report - Stmt of Revenue vs. Expenditures
From 7/1/2013 Through 12/31/2013

Total
Operating Revenue
Grant Revenue 1,207,861.26
State/Local Revenue 48,004.53
Other
Interest Revenue 2.39
Total Other 2.39
Total Operating Revenue 1,255,868.18
Expenditures
Salaries 540,099.30
Payroll Taxes 45,095.02
Benefits
Group Health Insurance Expense 97,203.00
Employers 457 Expense 32,765.21
Group Dental Insurance 3,133.95
Group Vision Insurance 850.85
Group Life Insurance 304.15
Total Benefits 134,257.16
Materials & Supplies 9,854.21
Overhead/Operating Expenses 156,057.82
Client Program Expenses (SS, ITA, Contracts, etc.) 355,376.27
Total Expenditures 1,240,739.78
Net Revenue over Expenditures 15,128.40
Beginning Net Assets
49,704.92
Total Beginning Net Assets 49,704.92
Ending Net Assets 73,279.96

Date: 1/16/2014, 1:04 PM

39Page: 1


nmartin
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 6.4


Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation
Statement of Activities - Board Report - Stmt of Revenue vs. Expenditures
From 7/1/2013 Through 12/31/2013

AGENDAITEM 6.4

NEG OJT WIA Adult #201 #202
Operating Revenue
Grant Revenue 112,873.79 390,943.64
State/Local Revenue 0.00 0.00
Other
Interest Revenue _0.00 0.00
Total Other 0.00 _0.00
Total Operating Revenue 112,873.79 390,943.64
Expenditures
Salaries 20,186.26 133,260.53
Payroll Taxes 1,660.44 10,426.14
Benefits
Group Health Insurance Expense 2,771.61 21,325.14
Employers 457 Expense 1,189.43 7,551.78
Group Dental Insurance 99.21 885.59
Group Vision Insurance 26.94 240.44
Group Life Insurance 9.67 86.03
Total Benefits 4,096.86 30,088.98
Materials & Supplies 290.48 1,760.28
Overhead/Operating Expenses 4,430.85 32,534.28
Client Program Expenses (SS, ITA, Contracts, etc.) 82,735.01 11,529.17
Total Expenditures 113,399.90 219,599.38
Net Revenue over Expenditures (526.11) 171,344.26
Beginning Net Assets
0.00 0.00
Total Beginning Net Assets 0.00 0.00
Ending Net Assets (526.11) 171,344.26

Date: 1/16/2014, 1:04 PM

40Page: 2


nmartin
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 6.4


Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation

AGENDAITEM 6.4

Statement of Activities - Board Report - Stmt of Revenue vs. Expenditures

Operating Revenue
Grant Revenue
State/Local Revenue
Other
Interest Revenue
Total Other
Total Operating Revenue

Expenditures

Salaries

Payroll Taxes

Benefits
Group Health Insurance Expense
Employers 457 Expense
Group Dental Insurance
Group Vision Insurance
Group Life Insurance

Total Benefits
Materials & Supplies
Overhead/Operating Expenses

Client Program Expenses (SS, ITA, Contracts, etc.)

Total Expenditures

Net Revenue over Expenditures

Beginning Net Assets

Total Beginning Net Assets
Ending Net Assets

Date: 1/16/2014, 1:04 PM

From 7/1/2013 Through 12/31/2013

WIA Dislocated Worker (DW)

WIA Youth #301 #501 #502
333,319.37 145,201.35
0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00
333,319.37 145,201.35
67,657.51 93,467.16
5,396.86 7,556.16
11,002.71 11,026.28
3,730.20 5,555.40
392.55 400.69
106.58 108.76
38.10 39.16
15,270.14 17,130.29
857.11 639.00
17,802.07 18,010.74
228,961.42 11,599.38
335,945.11 148,402.73
(2,625.74) (3,201.38)
0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00
(2,625.74) (3,201.38)

41

Page: 3


nmartin
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 6.4


Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation
Statement of Activities - Board Report - Stmt of Revenue vs. Expenditures
From 7/1/2013 Through 12/31/2013

AGENDAITEM 6.4

Operating Revenue

WIA - Rapid Resp. (RR) #540
#541

CDCR Transition Contract

Grant Revenue 81,896.54 0.00
State/Local Revenue 0.00 0.00
Other
Interest Revenue _0.00 0.00
Total Other 0.00 _0.00
Total Operating Revenue 81,896.54 _0.00
Expenditures
Salaries 53,909.21 69,111.37
Payroll Taxes 4,372.34 6,130.27
Benefits
Group Health Insurance Expense 9,152.79 10,304.00
Employers 457 Expense 3,229.11 4,473.36
Group Dental Insurance 299.30 513.67
Group Vision Insurance 81.27 139.45
Group Life Insurance 29.12 49.31
Total Benefits 12,791.59 15,479.79
Materials & Supplies 658.26 2,092.91
Overhead/Operating Expenses 12,372.02 25,230.11
Client Program Expenses (SS, ITA, Contracts, etc.) (21.72) (38.37)
Total Expenditures 84,081.70 118,006.08
Net Revenue over Expenditures (2,185.16) (118,006.08)
Beginning Net Assets
0.00 0.00
Total Beginning Net Assets 0.00 0.00
Ending Net Assets (2,185.16) (118,006.08)

Date: 1/16/2014, 1:04 PM

42Page: 4


nmartin
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 6.4


Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation
Statement of Activities - Board Report - Stmt of Revenue vs. Expenditures
From 7/1/2013 Through 12/31/2013

AGENDAITEM 6.4

Vet Connect - Contract DEI - WIA
Operating Revenue
Grant Revenue 0.00 81,689.14
State/Local Revenue 0.00 0.00
Other
Interest Revenue _0.00 0.00
Total Other 0.00 _0.00
Total Operating Revenue 0.00 81,689.14
Expenditures
Salaries 13,488.37 17,822.58
Payroll Taxes 1,100.57 1,449.26
Benefits
Group Health Insurance Expense 1,923.08 2,927.56
Employers 457 Expense 799.16 1,067.16
Group Dental Insurance 101.77 81.58
Group Vision Insurance 27.65 22.13
Group Life Insurance 9.87 7.94
Total Benefits 2,861.53 4,106.37
Materials & Supplies 233.96 96.67
Overhead/Operating Expenses 3,949.78 4,154.50
Client Program Expenses (SS, ITA, Contracts, etc.) 0.00 15,848.65
Total Expenditures 21,634.21 43,478.03
Net Revenue over Expenditures (21,634.21) 38,211.11
Beginning Net Assets
0.00 0.00
Total Beginning Net Assets 0.00 0.00
Ending Net Assets (21,634.21) 38,211.11

Date: 1/16/2014, 1:04 PM

43Page: 5


nmartin
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 6.4


Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation
Statement of Activities - Board Report - Stmt of Revenue vs. Expenditures
From 7/1/2013 Through 12/31/2013

AGENDAITEM 6.4

DEI - WP DEI-Flex Funding #329
Operating Revenue
Grant Revenue 56,975.31 4,962.12
State/Local Revenue 0.00 0.00
Other
Interest Revenue _0.00 0.00
Total Other 0.00 _0.00
Total Operating Revenue 56,975.31 4,962.12
Expenditures
Salaries 56,794.34 0.00
Payroll Taxes 4,643.53 0.00
Benefits
Group Health Insurance Expense 9,055.81 0.00
Employers 457 Expense 3,392.73 0.00
Group Dental Insurance 318.14 0.00
Group Vision Insurance 86.38 0.00
Group Life Insurance 30.90 0.00
Total Benefits 12,883.96 0.00
Materials & Supplies 809.81 1,687.62
Overhead/Operating Expenses 14,348.97 7,983.25
Client Program Expenses (SS, ITA, Contracts, etc.) (26.72) 2,583.18
Total Expenditures 89,453.89 12,254.05
Net Revenue over Expenditures (32,478.58) (7,291.93)
Beginning Net Assets
0.00 0.00
Total Beginning Net Assets 0.00 0.00
Ending Net Assets (32,478.58) (7,291.93)

Date: 1/16/2014, 1:04 PM

44Page: 6


nmartin
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 6.4


Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation
Statement of Activities - Board Report - Stmt of Revenue vs. Expenditures
From 7/1/2013 Through 12/31/2013

AGENDAITEM 6.4

Operating Revenue

CCP Realignment Contract

City of Madera CDBG

Grant Revenue 0.00 0.00
State/Local Revenue 15,780.30 0.00
Other
Interest Revenue _0.00 0.00
Total Other 0.00 _0.00
Total Operating Revenue 15,780.30 _0.00
Expenditures
Salaries 14,586.97 0.00
Payroll Taxes 1,200.66 0.00
Benefits
Group Health Insurance Expense 18.02 0.00
Employers 457 Expense 872.98 0.00
Group Dental Insurance 37.43 0.00
Group Vision Insurance 10.16 0.00
Group Life Insurance 3.66 0.00
Total Benefits 942.25 0.00
Materials & Supplies 83.69 612.31
Overhead/Operating Expenses 2,450.50 250.00
Client Program Expenses (SS, ITA, Contracts, etc.) 0.00 2,206.27
Total Expenditures 19,264.07 3,068.58
Net Revenue over Expenditures (3,483.77) (3,068.58)
Beginning Net Assets
0.00 0.00
Total Beginning Net Assets 0.00 0.00
Ending Net Assets (3,483.77) (3,068.58)

Date: 1/16/2014, 1:04 PM

5Page: 7


nmartin
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 6.4


Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation
Statement of Activities - Board Report - Stmt of Revenue vs. Expenditures
From 7/1/2013 Through 12/31/2013

AGENDAITEM 6.4

Wells Fargo Grant One-Stop Partners
Operating Revenue
Grant Revenue 0.00 0.00
State/Local Revenue 10,000.00 17,992.62
Other
Interest Revenue _0.00 2.39
Total Other 0.00 2.39
Total Operating Revenue 10,000.00 17,995.01
Expenditures
Salaries 0.00 (1,810.14)
Payroll Taxes 0.00 1,026.53
Benefits
Group Health Insurance Expense 0.00 17,696.00
Employers 457 Expense 0.00 806.36
Group Dental Insurance 0.00 0.16
Group Vision Insurance 0.00 0.04
Group Life Insurance 0.00 0.02
Total Benefits 0.00 18,502.58
Materials & Supplies 0.00 21.65
Overhead/Operating Expenses 2,150.00 8,526.75
Client Program Expenses (SS, ITA, Contracts, etc.) 0.00 0.00
Total Expenditures 2,150.00 26,267.37
Net Revenue over Expenditures 7,850.00 (8,272.36)
Beginning Net Assets
0.00 18,250.45
Total Beginning Net Assets 0.00 18,250.45
Ending Net Assets 7,850.00 14,932.48

Date: 1/16/2014, 1:04 PM 46Page: 8


nmartin
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 6.4


Operating Revenue
Grant Revenue
State/Local Revenue
Other
Interest Revenue
Total Other
Total Operating Revenue

Expenditures

Salaries

Payroll Taxes

Benefits
Group Health Insurance Expense
Employers 457 Expense
Group Dental Insurance
Group Vision Insurance
Group Life Insurance

Total Benefits
Materials & Supplies
Overhead/Operating Expenses

Client Program Expenses (SS, ITA, Contracts, etc.)

Total Expenditures

Net Revenue over Expenditures

Beginning Net Assets

Total Beginning Net Assets
Ending Net Assets

Date: 1/16/2014, 1:04 PM

Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation
Statement of Activities - Board Report - Stmt of Revenue vs. Expenditures
From 7/1/2013 Through 12/31/2013

Assessment Services

Van Maint Account

0.00
3,205.00

o
o
S

o
o
S

3,205.00

1,625.14
132.26

0.00
97.54
3.86

1.05
0.37
102.82
10.46
623.52
10.00
2,494.20

710.80
16,255.16

16,255.16
19,932.81

0.00
1,026.61

o
o
o

o
o
o

1,026.61

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
10.00
0.00
0.00
1,240.48
10.00
1,240.48

(213.87)

15,199.31
15,199.31
15,510.84

AGENDAITEM 6.4

7Page: 9


nmartin
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 6.4


AGENDAITEM 6.4

Aged AR Report by Customer December 31, 2013
Row Labels Sum of Amount Outstanding
CCP $ 3,483.77
12/30/2013 $ 3,483.77
CDBG $ 3,068.58
10/2/2013 $ 350.00
12/30/2013 $ 2,718.58
CDCR $ 112,400.46
10/2/2013 $ 46,010.56
11/1/2013 $ 36,527.01
12/4/2013 $ 29,862.89
Constellation Wines $ 750.00
CcvocC $ 3,188.48
11/1/2013 $ 1,526.73
12/30/2013 $ 1,661.75
DOR $ 2,442.92
9/4/2013 $ 594.95
11/1/2013 $ 579.30
11/20/2013 $ (6.60)
12/4/2013 $ 575.22
12/9/2013 $ 135.00
12/30/2013 $ 565.05
EDD - DEI Flex $ 7,291.93
12/5/2013 $ 790.48
12/30/2013 $ 6,501.45
EDD - DEI WP $ 49,416.80
12/5/2013 $ 33,554.79
12/30/2013 $ 15,862.01
First 5 $ 169.68
12/10/2013 $ 169.68
Georgia Pacific $ 140.00
9/30/2013 $ 140.00
Fresno Regional WIB $ 21,634.21
12/16/2013 $ 16,346.19
12/30/2013 $ 5,288.02
Rose DelLeon $ 183.32
12/30/2013 $ 183.32
Vantagepoint (ICMA) $ 689.25
12/13/2013 $ 689.25
Grand Total $ 204,859.40

Note: Not currently recorded in accounting system -
tracked manually on separate database

48


nmartin
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 6.4


Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation
Reconcile Cash Accounts

AGENDAITEM 6.4

Summary

[ h Account: 1010 Cash in BA - Main

weconciliation ID; Bank Reconciliation for 1010 for 12/31/13
Reconciliation Date: 12/31/2013 !
Status: Open

L/l

Bank Balance : 94,630.85
Less Outstanding Checks/Vouchers 22,942.36
Plus Deposits in Transit 0.00
Plus or Minus Other Cash Hems 0.00
Plus or Minus Suspense Items . V
Reconciled Bank Balance 71,688.49
3 Balance Per Books -  71,688.49
Unreconciled Difference 0.00 1[/\
e A
Click the Next Page toolbar button to view details.
. L}/
“(? /]

49

Date: 1/7/14 05:26:16 AM Page: 1


nmartin
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 6.4


Madera County Worlkforce Investment Corporation
Recorcile Cash Accounts

fm R —.

AGENDAITEM 6.4
Summary

“sh Account; 1020 Cash in BA - Payrell
~dconciliation ID: Bank Reconciliation mgo for £2/31/13
Reconciliation Date: 12/3172013
Status: Open

N

Bank Balance ’ 6,667.98
Less Qutstanding Checks/Vouchers 0.00
Plus Deposits in Transit 0.00
Plus or Minus Other Cash Hems 0.00
Plus or Minus Suspense Items 0,00
Reconcifed Bank Balance 6,667.98
}s Balance Per Books 6,667.98
Unreconciled Difference 0.00

Click the Next Page toolbar button to view details.

R

50

Date; 1/6/14 69:56;47 AM Page: 1


nmartin
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 6.4


MADERACOUNTY

INVESTMENT CORPORATION

Agenda Item 6.5

[ ] Consent X] Action [ ] Information

To: Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation

From: Elaine Craig, Executive Director
Workforce Investment Board
Date: January 23, 2014

Subject: Approve Budget Revision

Recommendation:

Staff recommend approval of line item revisions/adjustments to the MCWIC budget resulting in an
increase to the overall budget balance.
Summary:

Staff has determined that several line items in the budget need to be revised/adjusted and have provided
a detailed budget summary sheet outlining the proposed line item revisions/adjustments with notes as to
why the revision, whether increase or decrease, needs to be made. The overall increase to the budget
balance is due to the award of $25,000 from the Chukchansi grant.

Financing:
Workforce Investment Act of 1998




Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation

Summary Budget Comparison
From 7/1/2013 Through 12/31/2013

AGENDAITEM 6.5

GL Original Board YTD Actual Budget Adjustments Revised Budget - Revised Budget
Code Account Title Approved Budget Expense Encumbrances Budget Balance Increase/(decrease) Pending Board Balance Comments

5100 Staff Salaries 1,250,577.00 555,348.51 0.00 695,228.49 ) 1,250,577.00 $ 695,228.49

- Jessica Roche:
5110 Payroll Tax Expense (FUTA) 1,251.00 0.00 0.00 1,251.00) $ (243.00) $ 1,008.00 $ 1,008 adjust payroll tax calc.
5111 Employer Medicare Expense (Medicare) 18,134.00 29,044.42 0.00 (10,910.42)] $ 59,401.00 ¢ 77,635.00 $ 48,490 budget s/b 5112
5112 Social Security Employer Exp (OASDI) 77,535.00 12,685.66 0.00 64,849.34] $ (59,401.00) % 18,134.00 $ 5,448.34 budget s/b 5111

- 1 .
5115  CA Unemployment Insurance Exp (CA SUI) 42,519.00 0.00 0.00 42,519.00] $ (37,045.00) 5474.00 $ 5,474 J€ssica Roche:

correct payroll tax budget calc
5116 CA Unemployment Insurance Exp (ETT) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00] $ 161.00 & 161 16
5120 Workers Compensation Expense 8,505.00 3,364.94 0.00 5,140.06) $ 1,250.00 $ 9,755.00 $ 6,390.|Jessica Roche:
breakout from gl #5115 for trackin
5130 Group Health Insurance Expense 193,799.00 97,203.00 77,778.00 18,818.00 $ 193,799.00 $ 18,818. purposes g g
5140 Employers 457 Expense 72,606.00 32,765.21 0.00 39,840.79 8 72,606.00 $ 39,840.79
5160 Group Dental Insurance 7,552.00 3,133.95 3,760.74 657.31 $ 7,552.00 $ 657.31
5170 Group Vision Insurance 2,035.00 850.85 1,021.02 163.13 8 2,035.00 $ 163.13
5180 Group Life Insurance 630.00 304.15 325.98 (0.13) $ 630.00 $ (0.13)
Subtotal Salaries and Benefits 1,675,143.00 734,700.69 82,885.74 857,5656.57 1,639,266.00 5
Jessica Roche:
5200 Materials and Supplies 33,799.00 7,482.82 6,903.63 19,412.55] $ (14,500.00) $ 19,299.00 $ 4,912.54$1500.00 DEI Printing
5300  Rent Expense 88,316.00 42,211.40 31,124.95 14,979.65 88,316.00 $ 14,979.64 feli’soo L. CE2 1 EEiEg! Ek el
5320 Telephone Expense 8,681.00 3,720.25 6,603.27 (1,642.52)] $ 1,650.00 $ 10,331.0 7.4
5330  Utilities Expense 28,958.00 12,002.57 13,437.44 3,517.99 $ 28,958.00 $ 3,517.9|Yessica Roche:
final 3 at&t bills that paid when with

5400 Postage Expense 5,003.00 47.81 0.00 4,955.19 $ 5003.00 $ 4,955.1)MCOE - done
5410 Printing Expense 3,995.00 3,015.98 1,682.83 (703.81)] $ 1,500.00 $ 5495.00 $ 796.19
5420 Advertising Expense 5,001.00 942.23 0.00 4,058.77| $ 5001.00 $ 4,058.77
5430 Bank Charges 91.00 36.00 0.00 55.00 8 91.00 $ 55.00
5440 Dues and Membership Expense 4,251.00 1,735.00 0.00 2,516.00 $ 4,251.00 $ 2,516.00
5450 Publications Expense 1,637.00 636.39 141.13 859.48 # 1,637.00 $ 859.48

- Jessica Roche:
5500 Auditing Fees 15,000.00 13,150.00 3,350.00 (1,500.00)] $ 2,000.00 ¥ 17,000.00 $ 500.0d 990 filing
5510 Legal Fees 19,999.00 671.85 19,328.15 (1.00) $ 19,999.00 $ (1.00 adiditional auditor misc. support
5530 Taxes and Fees 150.00 29.00 50.00 71.00 8 150.00 $ 71.00
5600 Office Equipment 7,999.00 1,309.29 691.16 5,998.55 “g 7,999.00 $ 5,998.55

. ) Jessica Roche:

5610  Equipment Maintenance 6,744.00 9,116.61 1,565.89 (3,938.50)| $ 4,480.00 $ 11,224.00 $ 5{Barraccuda Web Sec $3375.00
5620  Equipment Rental 3,601.00 1,815.88 1,313.23 471.89 $ 3601.00 $ 4|Barracude 2nd box Energize Sec $1105.00
5630 Software Expense 5,401.00 1.00 0.00 5,400.00 $ 5401.00 $ 5,400.00

Date: 1/16/2014, 1:34 PM

2
Page: 1


nmartin
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 6.5

nmartin
Typewritten Text


Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation

6.5

Summary Budget Comparison AGENDAITEM
From 7/1/2013 Through 12/31/2013
GL Original Board YTD Actual Budget Adjustments Revised Budget - Revised Budget
Code Account Title Approved Budget Expense Encumbrances Budget Balance Increase/(decrease) Pending Board Balance Comments
5640 Internet Expense 10,680.00 1,216.17 3,845.54 5,618.29 F 10,680.00 5,618.29
|
Jessica Roche:
5650 C ter Hard 0.00 0.00 26,005.67 26,005.67 38,000.00 38,000.00 11,99
omputer nardware : (26, ) ’ 4 ' | _Chuck Grant $25,000
5710 Employee Education Expense 1,498.00 8,209.41 0.00 (6,711.41) 10,910.00 & 12, 4,19{-$13,000 correct GL from 5200 to 5650
5720 Staff Travel Expense 24,500.00 7,804.08 1,988.40 14,707.52 8 24,500.00 147072 -
Jessica Roche:
5730 Meeting Costs 841.00 300.00 102.05 438.95 841.00 $ 43]$3500WipFli Non-Profit Acctg/Mngmt
$1,500 Additl Pgm Staff Training
5810 General Outside Services 77,012.00 43,562.29 45,278.52 (11,828.81) 17,360.00 ¥ 94,372.00 K ¥ivw
5900  Insurance Expense (GenLiab/D&O) 7.425.00 6,396.00 0.00 529.00 $ 7,425.00 $ 57Jessica Roche:
— Workforce Skills $2700
Subtotal Operating/Overhead 360,582.00 165,912.03 163,411.86 31,258.11 421,982.00 $ 31,254 Career Pillar $2000
Randstat Serv $12,660
5800 Subcontracted Program Services 1,022,039.00 349,483.09 466,570.09 205,985.82 (5,910.00) $ 1,016,129.00 200,075
5700  Client Travel Expense 7,500.00 5,893.18 1,546.00 60.82 5,387.00 $ 00 $ 5,44 €5sica Roche:
Lisa Jordon DEI training
Subtotal Client Direct Program 1,029,539.00 355,376.27 468,116.09 206,046.64 $ 1,029,016.00 $ 046
0.00 $ - Jessica Roche:
BUDGET BALANCE 3,065,264.00 1,255,988.99 714,413.69 1,094,861.32 25,000.00 1,094,8¢ Increase Client Mileage

Date: 1/16/2014, 1:34 PM

3,090,264.00

3
Page: 2


nmartin
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 6.5


MADERACOUNTY

INVESTMENT CORPORATION

Agenda Item 6.6

[ ] Consent X] Action [ ] Information

To: Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation

From: Elaine Craig, Executive Director
Workforce Investment Board
Date:

Subject: Approve Form 990 - Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax
for Submission to IRS

Recommendation:

Staff recommend approve of Form 990 — Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax to be
submitted to Internal Revenue System.

Summary:

A draft of MCWIC’s annual Form 990 return shall be reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors
prior to being filed with the Internal Revenue Service. This review and approval shall be documented with
the signature of the Board/Committee Chair. Form 990 was prepared by and will be submitted by Morse
Wittwer Sampson, LLP.

Financing:
Workforce Investment Act of 1998




MADERACOUNTY

INVESTMENT CORPORATION

Agenda ltem 7.1

[ ] Consent [ ] Action X Information

To: Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation

From: Elaine Craig, Executive Director
Workforce Investment Board
Date: January 23, 2014

Subject: MCWIC Business Policies and Procedures Manual

Information:

The MCWIC Business Policies and Procedures Manual is an accounting manual that is intended to
provide an overview of the accounting policies and procedures for Madera County Workforce Investment
Corporation, which shall be referred to as “MCWIC” or “the Organization” throughout this manual. Staff
will finalize the manual and submit it for approval at a later Board meeting.

Financing:

Workforce Investment Act of 1998




AGENDAITEM 7.1

MCWIS |

Accountir‘& Financia
Policies and Procedures Man

&



nmartin
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 7.1


Effective Date(s) of Accounting Policies

The effective date of all accounting policies described in this manual is (date of
Board Approval). If a policy is added or modified subsequent to this date, the effective date of the
new/revised policy will be indicated parenthetically immediately following the policy heading.

Table of Contents

57



INTRODUCGTION ..cutiiiiiiiiiiiniiiniiiniiisiiisiiissiississssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssses 8

GENERAL POLICIES ...ccttistiiteinieneesseesseesseessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssnssssssssssssss 9
ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE ..ottt ettt ese s se e sssesesessesenessnsasessnsennenes 9
The Role Of the BOArd Of DIFECLOIS ......c..ccviieeirieieiesieete ettt ettt e se e sseseaensens 9
The Roles of the Executive Director and SEaff...........cccovreirineineeee et 9
ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT OVERVIEW .....ooooiieteirisieiis ettt a st s st sa s sassenensees 9
(@ 0= a1 4= 111 ] o S 9
TSy 010 1S 1 1 1 1 10
Standards for Financial Management Systems (Government GrantsS)............ccecvevevveviereresesiesiseeeeieiesiesesnens 10
BUSINESS CONDUCT ...c.ootiiirieitisieeirieteeseseesestesesessesessssesesesse e sdonssansnsssesinessesessssesensssesesessssesensesessssss essesesessssesesases 11
Practice of EthiCal BENAVIOF ...........covieiieieiieieisie et ot sta sttt atetbn ettt ettt s te et s te e s e ste e esen saenseneens 11
Compliance with Laws, Regulations, and Organization POIICIES .............ccocetieieuieieieieeseeese s eese et ieiesiesneas 11
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST ....oooteiririeiieieeirieesesiseeseseesdhesssssssnssseseessesasessssesenssonsasabonesssesessssesensssssesessesesessessessssesasees 12

([0 [N Lol 1o o PO TOTROUTSTTRPRR 1 s SOURURRRORS. SR 12
What Constitutes a Conflict Of INtEreSt? ..o
DiSCIOSUIE REQUITEIMENTS ....c.vivieiieeieeieeieeieiestesestestee s st s St te e sestessestaesesssessessessessessensasuasnssbasssesssssessesessen srsessessessens 13
Resolution of Conflicts of Interest — insert the WIB policy on conflict of interest procedures per OMB........... 14
Disciplinary Action for Violations of this-Policy
POLICY ON SUSPECTED MISCONDUCT ... fueutstetestiinecernesteeesesesesessssesassssesassssesesessesesssesesessssesessesesessesensssesessssssesessssessnsss as
T To [N Lol 1 o] o PO TSRS OSSOSO
(D= {1 0T T LT o S oo OSRGOS
Reporting ReSPONSIDIILIES .....ccocvveeveiieeieeieiesbe s es
Whistleblower ProteCtioN. ... ..coeeeerieiriisiisiabeeesieceiesiestsis et

Investigative ReSpONSIDIlILIES ......iiuc..oveeiecieieseie i it
Protection of Reco Federal Matters .

DYoo [T Tz Vg YA Ao 10T g B U s o o
(@70 a1 To L= a1 1=V L SO S
Disclosure to Outside Parties.........cccevismmmnrcieeeeeeeieiannns \ .................................................................................. 18

SECURIT Y it i e snensiiiannssnessnsansssnsnn st Bhnnessesenesssnnss OO 18
ACCOUNEING DEPAIMMENL........c.cririeiiirretiirieieir ettt sttt sttt sttt sttt sttt sttt ne et saenneseaenanssas 18
A Electronically Stored ACCOUNLING DAA .....ccciiuericieriieiieeieeieiieeeeeese s se ettt e e teanenneas 18

St (o) 2= ol TGI8 1= ST 19
Stora f Sensitive Data....... \a ................................................................................................................................ 19
Destruction of ConsSUMEr INfOMMALION .......ccccciiureiriecreeteceecteecteeete ettt et e e et e v e ete et eesteebeeseessesssesseeaseessessen 19
GENEIAl OFfICE SECUILY ...t eishe ettt sttt ettt e et e st te e st et e e st et e et et et esse s e se st e et eassessassanss seseensansensensen 19
GENERAL LEDGER AND CHART OF ACCOUNTS ... ..ottt sttt aestestesrsetesaeenesseeneeneeneens 20
Chart Of ACCOUNTS OVEIVIEW .......ceiveiteereereeeeeiteeeteeeteeiteeteeeseeeteesteeseeeseesseetseessesseeaseessesssesssessseasssssssssesssessssssessessassesseens 20
Distribution Of Chart OFf ACCOUNLS .........covieeeeveeteeeeeeeeteeeteeete ettt ettt e e ettt et e et e et e b e ebeessessseassessessesasesssesseass oo 20
CONIOl Of Chart Of ACCOUNIS (.cuveeriiviereeteetie ettt ettt et e et et e e ettt e et e et eeteeeseeeseeasesssessseasesasssassesseasseassessenseseenseens 20
ACCOUNTE DETINITIONS ...ttt ettt e et e et e et et e e e ete e s e et e e st e ese et s et e estaeseesseasaesse sessseasseseeanesasenses 21
Fiscal Year Of OrQANIZAtION ..........ccccveieieestis sttt et te st et ettt e e e te st e tessesseeseansessessessesessensassnsesansens 22
ACCOUNTING ESHMALES .....oeviiieieeeietieeeee ettt e et e et e e e bt et e e at e st et et et e se et e tasseeseassessesnens asseensnssensensenes 22
JOUMN@I ENETIES ..ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e ettt et e et e et e et e et e e s e e st e s tseasseseeasesteeassesseasa s easaesseseeasaessaeseeasenarens 23
POLICIES ASSOCIATED WITH REVENUES AND CASH RECEIPTS...uutttiirttirnrteercsnteeiesseeesisssssessessssesssssssessns 23
REVENUE........coo oottt ettt ettt e et e et e et et e s beeaeeaeeseeae e e et easesee et esseeteeseeseessensensseeseensensensenteseeetesaeereereeneenseneens 23
Revenue REeCOGNItION POLCIES ........cooveieierieeeie ettt ettt e et testesteese e st essestessesessesassensensrsens 23
RefuNdS Of REVENUE RECEIVEM ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et et e et et e e s e et estseseesssasessseasseseeseaes 24
L YO 07 =1 o 2N 1 [ O TR 24
Overview Of Gift ACCEPLIANCE POILICIES ........ooveviieeieieieteeteeee ettt ettt te e te st s e stesteestessessesensensessesees 24
(@21 (=To [ 141130 ] 11 24
Gift ACCEPLANCE PrOCEUUIES.......ceiveeietieeeeestee ettt et ettt e et e st e e bt s st et e e st e st et et et esseaseasessaessassessessansessassensssensensen 25
CONTRIBUTION ACCOUNTING ...ttt ettt eteeteete st et e et e e ese e e e et e tesasetestestesteeseessensensensessessessesreeseene seeres 26

3 58



(B LY 1011 0] 1TSS 26

Distinguishing Contributions from EXchange TranSaCONS ...........c.covevvevieviieiecieieieieteiesteste st e e ete e et ae s 26
Recognition of Contribution INCOME (GAAP) ..ottt ettt e s e e a e et e s et e be st s aseaseesseses 27
Valuation of NON-Cash CONIDULIONS...........cvrieiriiieieieiet ettt sttt sttt sttt te e s ae s aesteeens 27
UNcoNditioNal PrOMISES 10 GIVE.......ooveuiriiieeiiiieiisieieitsie ettt ettt sttt te e seste st s tese st stensesesseneesassenenss sens 28
CoNitioNAl PTOMISES 10 GIVE ..ottt sttt sttt ettt sttt te e st s te st e tesse e stasesesteneesessen ssenens 28
RECEIPLS ANA DISCIOSUIES ......c.vevieeietieteeeeee ettt ettt ettt e e e e teeteettett e st et et et e saasaessetsessessessassesseseasssessessaseas 29
[RS FOIMN 8283 ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e te sttt ea bt et e st s et e st e s e st et et e st et e s e st st et e st s et 2t sesen st esesssesanssassaen 30
IRS FOIMN 8282 ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e b e st et e st et e st et et e st et e s s st et et e st et 2atsesensasesssssesesesasnaen 30
ADMINISTRATION OF FEDERAL AWARDS ........cociiieeirisieeiiste it ee sttt sa st se b assesesassssesassssesasessesasan 31
(D= 1] a1 (T 1TSS 31
Preparation and REVIEW Of PrOPOSAIS.........ccccvvvieiiiieietieieieieese sttt stt et ettt ettt se s s e te s e e e e s esaessessessessssassasssasen 31
Compliance with Laws, Regulations and ProviSions Of AWAIAS...........cccccecevieeeieieieieieieeeseeeeeeeeeeeesiessesnens 32
(Do Tol0] g LT a1 AN a0 T g 1T = Lo ] o SRS 33
CloSe OUL Of FEAETAI AWAIS ......oveeieeieieeeteesee ettt ettt sttt te sttt te st e te st et s te s et s teneenessen ssenens 33
COST SHARING AND MATCHING (IN-KIND) = GOVERNMENT GRANTS ...cooiiiieeeiiee ettt e eetre e eeite e e etve e e eite e e eeasae e ssavaeeesatseeenns 34
(@Y= AV = OSSR 34
BILLING/INVOICING POLICIES ..ottt sttt s s sttt s s sassesesasassesasessesasansesesanssass snsnsas 37
OVEIVIBW....eeeieeeteete ettt ettt ettt et e ettt ea ettt e s e s et e et s et e st et e a s e s et e n e st s e st e s et e st e se s 2 te st atanseseasenseseatensesensensasensans 37
Responsibilities for Billing AN CONECTION................ccueeeeeeueeeeeeiee e eee e ee e e et tee e ettt e e ettt a e e asaassttaseesssaaesssssasasssseesasees 37
(101 (o] 3 T=T g 10 )Y/o 11 s o[PS USRS 38
Billing and Financial Reporting — GOVEIrNMENT GIraNtS ...........cccveeeieieieiieerieieeeceeeeeeteetesiessessessesseeresssessessessessnaes 38
Cash Drawdowns Under Letters of Credit (GOVErNMENt GrantS)........cccccvceviereeierieieieieeieereeeeeeeeseeesessessesnens 38
Accounts RECEIVADIE ENLIY POICIES........cooveieieeecese ettt ettt ettt et s b e e te et eeteetsest e st essesesesseanen 39
Classification of INCOME ANA NET ASSELS ......ocveuiriiieieieieteseeesie ettt ettt sttt ste st se e sesenseseseaes 39
CASH RECEIPTS ...ttt ettt ettt b et s s te s e a b ese s b et e se s sesase s e s ese s et e s e s ebasensebese 2ebebesessetesessesesensesesanes 40
(@Y= V= SRS 40
Processing of Checks and Cash Received in the Malil.............cccveveieieiieiicececieeceeeeee e 40
ENAOIrSEMENT Of CRECKS .......ceieiieee ettt ettt et et te e seste e se s s seseesensenees 40
TiMENNESS Of BANK DEPOSIES .....ocvvieveieciieieciietiete ettt te st et e et e et et e s e s et e eseetaetsetsetsassessassassesassasassanss ersesen 40
RECONCIIAtION Of DEPOSIES. .....ccvieiievietietieeieiestee et tte ettt ettt et et e e s teeteete e st e st e st e ssessa st s asassasssetsessessessessessesssassessessassens 40
SEGREGATION OF DUTIES ... oot iiiiii et s e s s s s e bbbttt sttt bttt bttt ettt 2 e e e eaaaaaeeaaeeeenenas 41
Control Grid - ReVenue QN CASN RECEIPES ...........uueeeeeeeeeiee e eettee e ettt e e ettt e e st eeattse e e e tttaaeestssaasassaseessssasesssssasasssssesnsees 41
POLICIES ASSOCIATED WITH EXPENDITURES AND DISBURSEMENTS .....ttcoierteermeernsssenssesssessssessaessassssnssns 42
PURCHASING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES........cccoeitrieteiisteiste ittt s e ss e sa s sensssns 42
(@Y= AV =SSOSR 42
ReSPONSIDIlity fFOr PUICRASING .......coveieieeeieseeseete ettt ettt ettt ettt st eeteete e e e st e s et essesesssasasssesasassens 42
Code Of CONAUCT IN PUICNASING ......ccuveuieeieiiiecieeece ettt ete et st te ettt et et et e s e et e seeseeteateetaessassessesassessasssesesssesnen 42
Procurement Procedures (GOVEINMENT GIANTS) .........ccuevvevievvieieiiieiieiietietieiessestessessesseetessseeetsessessessesssssesssesesssssenses 42
USE OF PUICNASE OFUBIS....c.eeeieiiieiieieettste ettt ettt ettt et te e se et e e st st et e sease st e seate s esansessensnsensenees 43
Vendor Files and Required DOCUMENTALION ..........cc.ecveiuieiieeietieieieieste st e et tee et est et et e teeteete et etaessessessesssssessaeseases 43
Receipt and ACCEPLANCE Of GOOUS .......c.cvevieieeeietecteeeeteete ettt e sttt et ettt et et et e s b e teeseeteetseseess et essesesessesssasan 44
POLITICAL INTERVENTION ..ottt ettt tase st esa st sasse s e s besassssetasessesasessesesessesasensasesen sassesensasas 44
Pronibited EXPENAITUIES ......ccvevieeeeietieeeeeee ettt ettt ettt e vt e b e ettt e st et et e s s s e saesseteessessessessessess aessssseasasens 44
ENdOrsements Of CANUIAALES .........covveirieieeiieieisie ettt sttt te e seste e esessen nseneaes 44
Individual vs. Organizational INTEIVENTION...........cceviceeieieeeietieetee ettt ettt ettt e te e e e e e te e e s et e ssessesseasaeseass 45
Prohibited Use of Organization ASSetS and RESOUICES ..........ccccveieieieiiesiieieeeceeeeeeeeiestestessesesseeresssessesseseseans 45
LOBBYING ....oouiieteiiiiteiiste et te sttt sttt ese s b et ase s et et et et esessesesasessesasessesasessetes e st esesensebes e ssesesensebesassseseseasesasessataseneas 45
CHARGING OF COSTS TO FEDERAL AWARDS .......cooiiieiirieieeistete ettt ese e esse s st st sassssesassssesasessesassnns 45
(@Y= AV = OSSR 45
Segregating Unallowable from AlIOWADIE COSES........c..cveieieiieicececieietieteeete sttt ettt sa e re s 45
(O3 g1 =T ¢ F= W (o g2 110117 7= T o111 Y OSSR 46
(D1 C=Tot A O L] (=3O OO R 47

T To 1= A= T o B0 fo T 0 A @0 1] 1= 47
Lo Tt A O a s A = L= OSSPSR 48

4 59



(@00 1S3 B 2 Yo LU 48

Accounting for SPECIfic EIEMENTS Of COSt........ccvevieeiiieceieiietieieeee ettt ettt e e et ta et et e s esssssesseeseanes 48
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE MANAGEMENT .....oootiiirietiseeetsteets ettt s e s et s et sbesensssesassssesasessnsasn 51
(@Y= AV = SRS 51
Recording Of ACCOUNES PAYADIE.........c.ooviieiiiictietieeetetee ettt ettt ettt ettt e et e e e s teete et e st et et essessesssasassseseassseas 51
EStabliShment Of CONIOI DEVICES.......c.covieiriiieeisieiettsie ettt et sttt te s teste e tesse e stesesessensessssenenseses 52
Reconciliation of A/P Subsidiary Ledger to General LEAQET ........c..ovevvevievvieiicicieieieieiesiesie sttt e e 52
Management of Accounts Payable Vendor Master File...........c.cveveveieieoiieeeecieeeeeteete et 53
TRAVEL AND BUSINESS ENTERTAINMENT ....c.ootiiiieeisietiiste ettt sttt s b s s esesasassesasessesasas 53
TrAVEl AGVANCES.....c.ooviieeietiieieiesie ettt sttt stes et ssessesessessesessesesdbiEbe e teteteste st etesse st etessese eststesesesseeessssesensens 53
ReasonNableness Of TraVEl COSES.....ccuviviieiriiieisieieisie et iasntaass ettt e et e stesse e s tese e stesesssseesses s 54
CASH DISBURSEMENTS (CHECK-WRITING) POLICIES ........ooocitiiiaiii ettt e essssessssssesasennes 54
(O g TTot Q= (=T T T =\ 1[0 [P O OSSR
CRECK SIGNING.....itiitieiieieieeeee ettt ettt e te st eete e e esee s font e ate s e sasnaasasbn s etsessessessasssasesss essassasaasasssassassassessenses
MaUING OFf CRECKS ....ecvveeieeieeeeee ettt S et e et e st e et e tessssaaeaa S hn et et et esasssetaasaeseesesaesaaseessessessessersens
Voided Checks and StOP PaYMENTS........c..cveieieieiiecilereiaiestieieieiesteetesteese e bass e bin e sessesessessessseseessessessessesssesssasen
SEGREGATION OF DUTIES......cooitieiisieieirieteessie e siinssasassssesssssesesessesesessesesssesesessas
Control Grid — Purchasing and Dusbursements
CREDIT CARDS ...ttt ettt et sas s saesasbas e sesessesesessesesesssesessssesasessesesssssussnatihe ssessesesessesesessssesensesesenes
Issuance of COrporate Credit COIAS...........ouiumiaiiiuiieeieeeeeieessasie e eieeeessesiansas i ereeesiseeaesteseesssanaaasbneeeatsssesssssaesssssaseaens
PAYROLL AND RELATED POLICIES.....coiuitiiiirieieirieieesssssestine s sbassasassssesessssesesessssesssesesessssesassssthossssesessssssessssesesens
Payroll AQMINISTIALION ........c.ocvieiieicie et ittt ettt ettt e asaastasta st e e te e st e st essestessaseseasassseseessessessasses stsesssssessessesans
PAYTOI TAXES ..uvivievievietietieieeeteeteste et et asseiesuasaas ibae e esseseessessessessestaasasbanseeseessessessessessessassessse assassasaasaasesssesesssassaseans
Personnel Activity Reports (GOVEIrNMENT GIANTS) ....itie..cveriecrieieciiesieiees i eietestestesteeseetestseeesessessessessessesssesassseseeses 58
Preparation of Timesheets
Processing Of TIMESNEOTS.cuuie.ccvvcviciieeieieiecise et eie s i e
REVIEW Of PAYTOIL.......ciiiiiieiiiiiceeiiec et el aie s sae e e v

Distribution of Payroll.................cccoiieie i
Internal Audit of Payroll. Data
SEGREGATION OF DUTIES. ..ottt sttt te st st eete et sa e b e b e sbesbesbesbeeteeseessessansesbesbeseste st nbentessers
Control Grid — Payroll and HUMGN RESOUICES...................c..ueeaiieeeeesieeeeateeeesieeeesiseeeasseseestssasessssasassssessssssessssasasssesessses 61
POLICIES PERTAINING.TO SPECIFIC ASSET ACCOUNTS . ctecccttieiterereeerieeseeessssesssssessssssssssssssssssssssssassssssssssnes 61

CAS D CASH MANAGEMENT oot oo oo ee oo e ee e e oo eeeeeeee oo 62
Ca COUNTS...eeereeeeeeee Seeree e eeerereee s aeene et eeteseresesesesesessnesesesssssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssesesssssssssssssessssssssereees 62

Auth d Signers................... \\ ................................................................................................................................. 62
BanNK RECONCIHIALIONS ......cveuieiiiiatie ettt attat i et tetes e es e e ats et e e te e tete st e se s e st s sen s e st asensaseasessesessese sstesensessnsensesess 62
Cash FIOW MANAGEMENL ..........iieiiiiteciietieeieieist e e et et et et et ete s e s seeseeteasteteessessessessessasssassasesssatsassassessassessssessessessesen 63
IS Lo O g =T o0 SRS 63
L= 1Y O T o D o SRRSO 63
L YT = T3 (=] £ OSSR 64
PREPAID EXPENSES ...t sh ettt ettt ettt e e e ettt e e e s ettt e e e e e s aa et e e eeee s e ase b et e e e e e s nnn et e eeeeen teeeeesaansnreneeeessannnnneeeess 64
ACCOUNTING TIEALMENT .....octeieieiitietieeieeieete ettt ettt et et et et e et e e teete e st eteete e st esse st easesa et e sasssetsassessessesss sessessessessassenes 64
Lo Tol=Ta [0 =TT 64
PROPERTY AND EQUIPIMENT ....ciiittieeeieitet e e e ettt et e s ettt e e s e ettt e e e s e e e e e e e e e e aaansbe e e e e e s e nnneteeeeesannnbeeeeeeaan eeeessannnnneneeas 64
CaPITANIZALION POICY ....icviiuieeieieeceee ettt ettt ettt et e bt eeas et e e ts e st e st e st e s esa s s teassatsatsesae setsessessessassessensen 64
CONEIIDULEA ASSOLS ...ttt ettt et s e sttt e s e ettt et e et e s bt e st e s ataesaseesta e sessasteaastasateesasaasataasssas saanseasasaasasessasassaseens 65
Equipment and Furniture Purchased With Federal Funds (Per OMB Circ. A-110 _34).....cccccvevvevvevvevveresrrerenn, 65
Establishment and Maintenance of a Fixed Asset Listing (Government Grants)...........cccceceeveveieveviesiesresreenenns 66
Receipt of Newly-Purchased Equipment and FUIMNITUIE ...........ccoveieieiecieeiecece ettt 66
Depreciation aN USEIUI LIVES ........c.ooviieieiieiesieteetettetteee ettt ettt ettt ettt e st e e testeetaets e st esse st essesesssasassansensenens 66
Changes in EStIMAated USEIUI LIVES.......c..cveieiieciieiecieeeetetetee ettt et ettt ettt e s e s taete e s etsetsessessessassesanes 67
Repairs of Property and EQUIPIMENT........c..coiiiiiieiceeieietieiet ettt te sttt ete ettt ete e sessassessaetaassesaessessessesesessasseasen 67
Dispositions of Property and EQUIPIMENL...........cociiieieieeieieieieee st e ettt ett et e tesessesseste e s e e essesaessessessesssasessesseases 68
Write-Offs of Property and EQUIPIMENT..........ccvoveiieeiicectieticteetiettetetee et teete et ettt easete s e sesseateesseseessessessessesesesseasen 68
IMPAUITMENT LOSSES ... cuieiiieiietieti ettt et e ettt et e at et et e s e s e e s e teeseeteets e st ess e st e st et e s e saessetaasseseesateateessassessessessenes 68

5 60



LEASES ...t R ettt £t e bbbttt 68

ClaSSIfICALION Of LEASES.....cvecveieceieiectietietteete ettt et ettt ettt e e st e et e et eetseteeat e st e st e ate s e sseasaaseassatsassessessasse sessessassesseasen 68
Reasonableness of Leases (Government Grant PUrPOSES ONIY) ..c..ccvvcvivvieiieeieieieieieiesiesie et e et eieae e 69
ACCOUNTING FOF LEASES ....oevieieteetietieeeee ettt ettt ettt ettt e et e et e et e e bt e teeat e st et et s s e se et e taessetsessetsessesse sessessessessessenns 69
W E B S TE COS T S ittt ittt e e e s sttt bbbt bttt b4ttt sttt e ee 42 e 0000000 aeeeeaeeeeeaeeaesesenennnnns 70
Costs t0 Be EXPENSEA AS INCUITEM. ......ccuveuieeieieiesiietecteettetet ettt sttt ettt et et et e b et e et e s teeteetsetsetsessessessassesenns 70
INTANGIBLE ASSETS......co oottt sttt sttt sttt ettt st e st st et e b e st eneebesbe st ebesses e st ensese st eebensesesteneetenseneas 70
ACQUISITION OF INTANGIDIE ASSELS ...ttt et et e et e et e e te et et et e e s e s s saessatassseseesans 70
AccoUNtiNG fOr INTANGIDIE ASSELS.......cviieeieecieeeee ettt ettt et s et e et e st e e te e e et e st et e ssesse s e sasssatasssesees e 71
AMOIEIZATION .ooooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt ettt ettt et sttt sttt 4ttt 44ttt sttt e ettt et ettt et ee 2 s sasasesssasassssnsnssssassssssnnns 71
POLICIES PERTAINING TO LIABILITY AND NET ASSET ACCOUNTS....ccctuiituiimeicieniirniisnsisessrsssiesssrssssrssssssssssssssasssssssrssssres 72
ACCRUED LIABILITIES ..ottt sttt sttt sttt te sttt eseste e etessesestessesestansesessaneesessenessassesessanes ssesessensesessaneas 72
[Aentification Of LIGDIIILIES .......c.ccveieieieieeee ettt ettt ettt ettt e et et e e te e st e ts e st ess et e ssesse s seaseseaseans 73
ACCIUEB LBAVE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et et et et e s e st st e e se et e e ts e st ets e st e st e st et e sa s e ete easeasasaaseaseassetsassesseaes 73
INCOME TAXES PAYABLE ....cotttitittiitiiiiitieeeieieeeee e te e eeeeteeetetetetateeaeaeaaaeaaaeaeaeeeseseseeeseeeesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesssssass teseseseseseseseseeneees 73
ACCTUAL OF INCOME TAXES.....oievievietieeieeieiesteete et et et et et et e et e st e e teeteete e st ets e st e st et et sasassaaseaseessetsassessessessessan susessessassanns 73

T ToTo] ¢ g TSI - V' oo 1Y o] F= USRS 73
NOTES PAYABLE ......cttttitiiiiitiiieitieteieteteeeeeee e teeetetetetetetataaaeaeataettaaaeaeteteeeeeteesesesesesesesesesesesesesessssssssssss sesesesesesesesesesesseeeeeeeereeeeens 74
(311 o o) oy SRR USS 74

T ToT0] (0] LCT=T o 1oL T OSSPSR 74
Accounting and ClASSITICALION ........cc.ccvivieiiieiiietietietieeee ettt ettt ettt s et e s teeteete e st etse st essessesssasssasasseesasenns 75
Non-Interest-Bearing NOtES PaYabIe ..........c.ccvovieioieieieeeee ettt e ettt e e sseenn 75
NET ASSETS ...ttt sttt st et b et e sttt e st e b et e st e b en s e st b enses e s s eneese st 2aseneesentenessenseseabenses e sanenn 76
ClasSIfICAtION Of NEBT ASSEIS ......vecvieiieiietieeieieteetee ettt ettt et e et et e e e e tt e st e st e st et e se s e sssasaateassessassessessasesassan sasersesen 76
Reclassifications from Restricted to UNrestricted NEt ASSELS ......c.cvvevevievrieiiicieieieieiesteste st s e 76
Reclassifications from Unrestricted to ReSrICted NEt ASSELS ......cveveveciiieieiecieeeieieieiesteste st 76
DISCIOSUIES.... ettt te et et et et et et et e s et e e s e et e e te e st e te e st ess e st e st e as e s e et s te et s eteassessessess e assetsessessassessaasasasssetenssans 77
POLICIES ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL AND TAX REPORTING....cciicctieterereerssnnsseessseessssnssssnesssassssnssssnens 78
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ..ottt sttt sttt ettt st a s e s e s e b e s ben s et e seneesesesessensesensensesese sseneesensanes 78
Standard Financial Statements of the OrganiZation .............ccccceeeeieieieieiesesee ettt ete et e e se e e e s eeeeens 78
FreqUENCY Of PIrEPATALION .......c.ccveeeieeieeieteetee ettt ettt ettt et e e taeteettett e st et e sse s s asaasaesseteessessessessessessassesssssasens 78
REVIEW AN DISIIDULION.......ccviiiieiiceieeieieeeeee ettt ettt ettt et et et e et e b e s seeseeteessessessassesses srsessessessasens 79

[ To) a1 YA BT 1] 010 o] o IO USROS 79
Special Quarterly [Semi-Annual] DIStHBULION..........ccoveieieieeeece ettt ae s 79
ANNUAl FINANCIAI STAIEMENTS........c.vcieieieciietece ettt ettt ettt et et et e st e s e testeeteeteeteetse st essessesssasssasassssasenns 79
GOVERNMENT RETURNS ...ttt ettt et e e ta e eeeese e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e aeateseseseeeseeeseeeeees nananssssssssnsssssssnss 80
OVEBIVIBW......vteeieeteie sttt ettt ettt et et e et e et e e ttett e st e st e st et e s e sa e s s teesseseess e st e st easeas et et s taessetaesee sataessestessessessessanssasasssasensenseas 80
FIlING OF REIUIMS ...ttt ettt ettt et et e et et e e st e st e ts e st e st e st et e s et s taasa et basaasaateessessassessassans 80
Review of FOrm 990 by BOArd Of DIFECLOIS ........cceeuieuieeieieiesiecieceetee ettt ettt e s te et ts st e s ese e sssasaasaeseess 80
Public Access t0 INfOrMation RETUINS ........cc.ooviivieiicieieieieeete ettt ettt ettt ettt e te e e e s eta et et essessesessasseasan 81
TRANSACTIONS WITH INTERESTED PERSONS ........ooieieeeeese ettt 82
Identification Of INTEIESIEU PEISONS .........c.ecveieeieieecee ettt s et e ettt et et e s et e e e e ssetaets e st essesessesesseasan 82
Record of Transactions With INtEreSted PEISONS...........ccvevveviieieiieiieeetietieietete st e ettt ettt besss e avseseeas 82
UNRELATED BUSINESS ACTIVITIES ...ttt sttt sttt sttt st sttt ne e st sbasae e sbenaesesteneesensns 82
Identification and ClASSIfICALION............ccecvieiiieieieieietee ettt ettt s et e et e e e e ts e vt e st ess e s esse s e sesssatasssass enns 82
Allocation of EXpenses t0 UNrelated ACHVITIES.........ccvcvieieieieieieesesee ettt te ettt eas et sessestasseeseeaes 82
[RT=T 0 To) 1 1] o O OO SRS 82
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES ....otiiotiieterseeresreistessseesssssessssessseessssssssssessssessssssssssesssassssassssssasssassssasssssness 84
BUDGETING ....otiietiiteietistete ettt ettt ettt s st ae st st et es e st eneesessesees et eseesenses e s enses e s eneeseas e sseneesentenessenseseasensesensanennn 84
OVEIVIBW......vteeeeeteie ettt ettt ettt e et e v e et e et e e ttett e st e st e st et e s e teessateessess e st e st e st e st e st e s b e s s teeasetbesee satasaessessassessesseasesasssasanteaseas 84
Preparation and AGOPLION ..........c.coieieieieesice ettt ettt ettt e et eeteett et e st et esse st e asassassseteessessessesseseseassessessaseas 84
MONITOIING PEITOIMEANCE ......c.vitieeeeietieeeeeeee ettt ettt ettt et et e st e e teeteett e st e st e st e s et s saasa st s eteessessessessesseas eessessessasaas 84
BUAQEL MOGIfICALIONS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et e e tt e st e st e st e st et s s e sassseteassessessasse satsesesssessessesans 85

6 61



ANNUAL AUDIT oo bbb bbb 85

Role of the INAEPENUENT AUITON ........cviieieeiciecteeteeteetetee ettt ettt ettt ettt e et e et e e te e st e s e st essesesessasssasassseseaseesas 85
F 0 To [1 (o] g T To (=T o T=T g To [T o Vot USRS 85
How Often to Review the Selection Of the AUAITON ..........c.ccevieieieieeeeeee ettt 86
SY=1[=Tox (T gTo BT a 12 0 Lo 11 (o] S OSSPSR 86
Preparation for the ANNUAT AUI...........ccveieieieeeeieieeeeeeee sttt ettt ettt e et e e s te e vt et e st et et e s essesssasessaeseaseesas 87
(7] g T [N o [TaTo IR 1 g [=I NN (o || USSR 88
W0 Lo [ Vo [ 1V K o 1 T=d 1 %SRS 88
Internal Control Deficiencies Noted iN the AUGIL.............ooveveriieiecicieeeieeeeeet ettt ettt teereeas 89
INSURANCE ..ottt stsse e se e s et st sesassesesesessesesaddobanssesesessssesasesse stessesesessasesasesesessssesesensnsess 89
OVEIVIBW......vteeveieie sttt eteettete et e et e e e st e ete et ett et estessesssasessasssesssssessessessesdonsansassssssasssssessasse saseessessessessessesseasesesssasansessens 89

DireCt Charging Of COSIS ......cicuiciievieiieisieeiesieeieeiectie et eteesssetess e idonaasaassassessessessessessessessesssessssasssadiessessesss sersessessessens 92
AllOCAtioN Of OVEINEAU COSES........eeei et ittt ettt s eae e aatt e e et e e st e st seastseasessasasassssestsstassastssssssssssssssnsesns 93
SUBRECIPIENTS ...ttt ettt sts s sassstesies e esesssesseessesssesaessetineessessesasesssesssesesssesseesssen sssessesssesseesesssesssesses

Making of SUBAWArdS..........cccccvveveeeiciieicieetie st ee it :
Monitoring of Subrecipients




INTRODUCTION

The following accounting manual is intended to provide an overview of the accounting policies and
procedures for Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation, which shall be referred to as
“MCWIC” or “the Organization” throughout this manual.

MCWIC is incorporated in the state of California. MCWIC is exempt from Federal income taxes under
IRC Section [501(c)(3)] as a nonprofit corporation.

This manual shall document the financial operations of the Organization. Its primary purpose is to
formalize accounting policies and selected procedures for the accounting staff and to document internal
controls.

The contents of this manual were approved as official policy of the Organization by the Board of
Directors, Executive Director, and Fiscal Manager. All MCWIC staff are bound by the policies herein,
and any deviation from established policy is prohibited.



GENERAL POLICIES

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

The Role of the Board of Directors

MCWIC is governed by its Board of Directors, which is responsible for the oversight of the Organization
by:

1. Planning for the future

2. Establishing broad policies, including financial and personnel policies and procedures

3. Approving grant applications

4, Reviewing and approving the annual audit

5. Reviewing financial information ;

6. Identifying and proactively dealing with emerging issues \

7. Interpreting the Organization’s mission to the public

8. Soliciting prospective contributors

9. Hiring, evaluating, and working with the Executive Director.

10. Establishing and maintaining programs and systems designed to assure compliance with terms
of contracts and grants

11. Authorizing establishment of all bank accounts and check signers.

The Executive Director shall be responsible for the day-to-day over§ and management of MCWIC.

/ The Roles of the Executive Director.and Staff

The Board of Directors hires the Executive Director, who reports directly to the board. The Executive
Director is responsible for hiring and evaluating Department Directors for each of the Organization’s
departments. Each Department Director reports to the Executive Director.

from t ecutive Director. All employees within a department shall report directly to that
department’s Supervisor, who shall be responsible for managing and evaluating all employees within
the department.

Deparrgt Directors are responsible for hiring employees to work in that department with approval

ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT OVERVIEW

Organization

The accounting department consists of [2] staff who manage and process financial information for
MCWIC. The following positions comprise the accounting department:

e Fiscal Manager
e Principal Account Clerk

Other officers and employees of MCWIC who have financial responsibilities are as follows:

o Executive Director - Secretary
e Treasurer — Board level
e Full Board of Directors



Responsibilities
The primary responsibilities of the accounting department consist of:

General ledger

Budgeting

Cash and investment management
Asset management

Grants and contracts administration
Purchasing

Accounts receivable and billing

Cash receipts

Accounts payable

Cash disbursements

Payroll and benefits

Financial statement processing

External reporting of financial information
Bank reconciliation

Reconciliation of subsidiary ledgers
Compliance with government reporting requirements
Annual audit

Leases

Insurance

Standards for Financial Management Systems (Government Grants)

In accordance with OMB Circular A-110, Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and
Agreements with Institutions of Higher Education, Hospitals, and Other Non-Profit Organizations,
MCWIC maintains a fund tracking financial management system that provides for the following. Specific
procedures to carry out these standards are detailed in the appropriate sections of this manual.

1. Accurate, current, and complete disclosure of the financial results of each Federally-sponsored
project or program in accordance with the reporting requirements of A-110 and/or the award.

2. Records that identify adequately the source and application of funds for Federally-sponsored
activities. These records shall contain information pertaining to Federal awards, authorizations,
obligations, unobligated balances, assets, outlays, income, and interest.

3. Effective control over and accountability for all funds, property, and other assets. MCWIC shall
adequately safeguard all such assets and assure they are used solely for authorized purposes.

4. Comparison of outlays with budget amounts for each award. Whenever possible, financial
information shall be related to performance and unit cost data.

5. Written procedures to minimize the time elapsing between the transfer of funds to MCWIC from

EDD and the issuance or redemption of checks, warrants, or payments by other means for
program purposes by the recipient.

10 65



6. Written procedures for determining the reasonableness, allocability and allowability of costs in
accordance with the provisions of the applicable Federal cost principles and the terms and
conditions of the Workforce Investment Act.

7. Accounting records including cost accounting records that are supported by source
documentation.

BUSINESS CONDUCT

Practice of Ethical Behavior

Unethical actions, or the appearance of unethical actions, are unacceptable under any conditions. The
policies and reputation of MCWIC depends to a very large extent on the following considerations.

Each employee must apply her/his own sense of personal ethics, which shomextend beyond
compliance with applicable laws and regulations in business situations, to govern behavior where no
existing regulation provides a guideline. Each employee is responsible for applying common sense in
business decisions where specific rules.do not provide all the answers.

In determining compliance with this standard in specific situations, employees should ask themselves
the following questions:

1. Is my action Ieg:} \

2. Is my action ethical?

3. Does my action comply with MCWIC policy?

4. Am |-sure my action does not appear inappropriate?

5. ‘sure that | would not be embarrassed or compromised if my action became known within
rganization or publicly?

6. Am | sure that my action meets my personal code of ethics and behavior?

7. Would | feel comfortable defending my actions on the 6 o’clock news?

Each employee should be able to answer "yes" to all of these questions before taking action.
Each director, manager and supervisor is responsible for the ethical business behavior of her/his
subordinates. Directors, managers and supervisors must carefully weigh all courses of action

suggested in ethical, as well as economic terms, and base their final decisions on the guidelines
provided by this policy, as well as their personal sense of right and wrong.

Compliance with Laws, Regulations, and Organization Policies
MCWIC does not tolerate:

11 66



e The willful violation or circumvention of any Federal, state, local, or foreign law by an employee
during the course of that person's employment;
e The disregard or circumvention of MCWIC policy or engagement in unscrupulous dealings.

Employees should not attempt to accomplish by indirect means, through agents or intermediaries, that
which is directly forbidden.

The performance of all levels of employees will be measured against implementation of the provisions
of these standards.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Introduction

In the course of business, situations may arise in which an Organization decision-maker has a conflict
of interest, or in which the process of making a decision may create an appearance of a conflict of
interest.

All directors and employees have an obligation to:

1. Avoid conflicts of interest, or the appearance of conflicts, between their personal interests and
those of the Organization in dealing with outside entities or individuals,

2. Disclose real and apparent conflicts of interest to the Board of Directors, and

3. Refrain from participation in any decisions on matters that involve a real conflict of interest or
the appearance of a conflict.

What Constitutes a Conflict of Interest?

All employees, directors and officers of MCWIC owe a duty of loyalty to the Organization. This duty
necessitates that in serving the Organization they act solely in the interests of the Organization, not in
their personal interests or in the interests of others.

The persons covered under this policy shall hereinafter be referred to as “interested persons.”
Interested persons include all members of the board of directors and all employees, as well as persons
with the following relationships to directors or employees:

Spouses or domestic partners

Brothers and sisters

Children, grandchildren, and great grandchildren

Spouses of individuals listed in 2 and 3

Corporations, partnerships, LLCs, and other forms of businesses in which an employee or
director, either individually or in combination with individuals listed in 1, 2, 3, or 4, collectively
possess a 35% (based on IRS definition) or more ownership or beneficial interest

oo~

Conflicts of interest arise when the interests of an interested party may be seen as competing with
those of the Organization. Conflicts of interest may be financial (where an interested party benefits
financially directly or indirectly) or nonfinancial (e.g. seeking preferential treatment, using confidential
information).

12 67



Examples of conflicts of interest include, but are not limited to, situations in which a director or
employee:

1.

Negotiates or approves a contract, purchase, or lease on behalf of the Organization and has a
direct or indirect interest in, or receives personal benefit from, the entity or individual providing
the goods or services;

Negotiates or approves a contract, sale, or lease on behalf of the Organization and has a direct
or indirect interest in, or receives personal benefit from, the entity or individual receiving the
goods or services;

Employs or approves the employment of, or supervises a person who is an immediate family
member of the director or employee; \

Uses the Organization’s facilities, other assets, employees, or other resources for personal
gain;

Sells products or services in competition with the Organization;

Receives a substantial gift from a vendor, if the director or employee is responsible for initiating
or approving purchases from that vendor.

/ Disclosure Requirements \

A director or employee who believes that he/she may be perceived as having a conflict of interest in a
discussion or decision must disclose that conflict to the group making the decision. Most concerns
about conflicts of interest may be resolved and.appropriately addressed through prompt and complete
disclosur.

Therefo CWIC requires the following:

On an annual basis, all members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Director, members of
senior management, and employees with purchasing and/or hiring responsibilities or authority
shall inform, in writing, the Executive Director and the chair of the MCWIC, of all reportable
conflicts or confirm that there are no conflicts to report.

Prior to the preparation of the disclosure statements, the accounting department shall distribute
a list of all vendors with whom the Organization has transacted business at any time during the
preceding year, along with a copy of the disclosure statement;

The Executive Director shall review all forms completed by employees, and the MCWIC] shall
review all forms completed by directors and the Executive Director, and determine appropriate

resolution in accordance with the next section of this policy.

If a conflict arises during the year, the employee or board member will immediately notify the
Executive Director who will determine appropriate resolution.

13 68



Resolution of Conflicts of Interest — insert the WIB policy on conflict of interest procedures per

OMB

All real or apparent conflicts of interest shall be disclosed to the Executive Director of the Organization.
Conflicts shall be resolved as follows:

The chair of the board shall be responsible for making all decisions concerning resolutions of
conflicts involving the Executive Director, and other members of senior management.

The Executive Director shall be responsible for making all decisions concerning resolutions of
conflicts involving employees below the senior management level, subject to the approval of the
chair of the board.

An employee or director may appeal the decision that a conflict (or appearance of conflict) exists as
follows:

An appeal must be directed to the chair of the board.

Appeals must be made within 30 days of the initial determination.

Resolution of the appeal shall be made by vote of the full Board of Directors.

Board members who are the subject of the appeal, or who have a conflict of interest with
respect to the subject of the appeal, shall abstain from participating in, discussing, or voting on

the resolution, unless their discussion is requested by the remaining members of the board.

Disciplinary Action for Violations of this Policy

Failure to comply with the standards contained in this policy will result in disciplinary action that may
include termination, referral for criminal prosecution, and reimbursement to the Organization or to the
government, for any loss or damage resulting from the violation. As with all matters involving
disciplinary action, principles of fairness will apply. Any employee charged with a violation of this policy
will be afforded an opportunity to explain her/his actions before disciplinary action is taken.

Disciplinary action will be taken:

1.

Against any employee who authorizes or participates directly in actions that are a violation of
this policy.

Against any employee who has deliberately failed to report a violation or deliberately withheld
relevant and material information concerning a violation of this policy.

Against any director, manager or supervisor who attempts to retaliate, directly or indirectly, or
encourages others to do so, against any employee who reports a violation of this policy.

A board member who violates this policy will be removed from the board.

14 69



Policy on Suspected Misconduct

Introduction

This policy communicates the actions to be taken for suspected misconduct committed, encountered,
or observed by employees and volunteers.

Like all organizations, MCWIC faces many risks associated with fraud, abuse, and other forms of
misconduct. The impact of these acts, collectively referred to as misconduct throughout this policy, may
include, but not be limited to:

. Financial losses and liabilities

. Loss of current and future revenue and customers

. Negative publicity and damage to the Organization’s good public image
. Loss of employees and difficulty in attracting new personnel

. Deterioration of employee morale

. Harm to relationships with clients, vendors, bankers, and subcontractors
. Litigation and related costs of investigations, etc.

Our Organization is committed to establishing and maintaining a work environment of the highest
ethical standards. Achievement of this goal requires the cooperation and assistance of every employee
and volunteer at all levels of the Organization.

Definitions \
For purposes of this pégy, misconduct includes, butis not limited to:

1. Actions that violate the Organization’s Code of Conduct (and any underlying policies) or any of
the accounting and financial policies included in this manual

2. Fraud (see below)

3. ery or alteration of checks, bank drafts, documents or other records (including electronic
records)

4, Destruction, alteration, mutilation, or concealment of any document or record with the intent to
obstruct or influence an investigation, or potential investigation, carried out by a department or
agency of the Federal government or by the Organization in connection with this policy

5. Disclosure to any external party of proprietary information or confidential personal information
obtained in connection with employment with or service to the Organization

6. Unauthorized personal or other inappropriate (non-business) use of equipment, assets,
services, personnel or other resources

7. Acts that violate Federal, state, or local laws or regulations

8. Accepting or seeking anything of material value from contractors, vendors, or persons providing
goods or services to MCWIC. Exception: gifts less than a nominal value ($50 or more).

9. Impropriety of the handling or reporting of money in financial transactions.

15 70



10. Failure to report known instances of misconduct in accordance with the reporting responsibilities
described herein (including tolerance by supervisory employees of misconduct of subordinates).

Fraud is further defined to include, but not be limited to:

. Theft, embezzlement, or other misappropriation of assets (including assets of or
intended for the Organization, as well as those of our clients, subcontractors, vendors,
contractors, suppliers, and others with whom the Organization has a business
relationship)

. Intentional misstatements in the Organization’s records, including intentional
misstatements of accounting records or financial statements

. Authorizing or receiving payment for goods not received or services not performed

. Authorizing or receiving payments for hours not worked

. Forgery or alteration of documents, including but not limited to checks, timesheets,

contracts, purchase orders, receiving reports

MCWIC prohibits each of the preceding acts of misconduct on the part of employees, officers,
executives, volunteers and others responsible for carrying out the Organization’s activities.

Reporting Responsibilities

Every employee, officer, and volunteer is responsible for immediately reporting suspected misconduct
to their supervisor, the Fiscal Manager, or Executive Director. When supervisors have received a
report of suspected misconduct, they must immediately report such acts to the Director or Fiscal
Manager.

Whistleblower Protection

The Organization will consider any reprisal against a reporting individual an act of misconduct subject
to disciplinary procedures. A “reporting individual” is one who, in good faith, reported a suspected act
of misconduct in accordance with this policy, or provided to a law enforcement officer any truthful
information relating to the commission or possible commission of a Federal offense or any other
possible violation of the Organization’s Code of Conduct.

Investigative Responsibilities

Due to the sensitive nature of suspected misconduct, supervisors and managers should not, under any
circumstances, perform any investigative procedures.

The Fiscal Manager has the primary responsibility for investigating suspected misconduct involving
employees below the Executive Director and executive management level. The Fiscal Manager shall
provide a summary of all investigative work to the full board.

An Audit Committee may be implemented for investigating suspected misconduct involving Executive
Director and executive level positions, as well as board members and officers. However, the Audit
Committee may request the assistance of the Fiscal Manager in any such investigation.

Investigation into suspected misconduct will be performed without regard to the suspected individual's
position, length of service, or relationship with the Organization.

16 71



In fulfilling its investigative responsibilities, the board shall have the authority to seek the advice and/or
contract for the services of outside firms, including but not limited to law firms, CPA firms, forensic
accountants and investigators, etc.

Members of the investigative team (as authorized by the board) shall have free and unrestricted access
to all Organization records and premises, whether owned or rented, at all times. They shall also have
the authority to examine, copy and remove all or any portion of the contents (in paper or electronic
form) of filing cabinets, storage facilities, desks, credenzas and computers without prior knowledge or
consent of any individual who might use or have custody of any such items or facilities when it is within
the scope of an investigation into suspected misconduct or related follow-up procedures.

The existence, the status or results of investigations into suspected misconduct shall not be disclosed
or discussed with any individual other than those with a legitimate need to know in order to perform
their duties and fulfill their responsibilities effectively.

Protection of Records — Federal Matters \

MCWIC prohibits the knowing destruction, alteration, mutilation, or concealment of any record,
document, or tangible object with the intent to obstruct or influence the investigation or proper
administration of any matter within the jurisdiction of any department or agency of the United States
government, or in relation to or contemplation of any such matter or case.

Violations of this policy will be considered violations.of the Organization’s Code of Ethics and subject to
the investigative, reporting, and disclosure procedures described earlier in this Policy on Suspected

Misconduct. \

Disciplinary Action

Based on the results of investigations into allegations of misconduct, disciplinary action may be taken
against violators. Disciplinary action-shall-be coordinated with appropriate representatives from the
Human Resources Department. The seriousness of misconduct will be considered in determining
appropriate disciplinary action, which may include:

imand

Probation

Suspension

Demotion

Termination

Reimbursement of losses/or damages
Referral for criminal prosecution or civil action

This listing of possible disciplinary actions is for information purposes only and does not bind the
Organization to follow any particular policy or procedure.

Confidentiality

The board and the Fiscal Manager treat all information received confidentially. Any employee who
suspects dishonest or fraudulent activity will notify the Fiscal Manager or the Board Chair immediately,
and should not attempt to personally conduct investigations or interviews/interrogations related to any
suspected fraudulent act (see Reporting Procedures section above).

17 72



Great care must be taken in the investigation of suspected improprieties or irregularities so as to avoid
mistaken accusations or alerting suspected individuals that an investigation is under way. Investigation
results will not be disclosed or discussed with anyone other than those who have a legitimate need to
know. This is important in order to avoid damaging the reputations of persons suspected but
subsequently found innocent of wrongful conduct and to protect MCWIC from potential civil liability.

An employee who discovers or suspects fraudulent activity may remain anonymous. All inquiries
concerning the activity under investigation from the suspected individual(s), his or her attorney or
representative(s), or any other inquirer should be directed to the Board Chair or legal counsel. No
information concerning the status of an investigation will be given out. The proper response to any
inquiry is “I am not at liberty to discuss this matter.” Under no circumstances should any reference be
made to “the allegation,” “the crime,” “the fraud,” “the forgery,” “the misappropriation,” or any other
specific reference.

” ”

The reporting individual should be informed of the following:

1. Do not contact the suspected individual in an effort to determine facts or demand restitution.
2. Do not discuss the case, facts, suspicions, or allegations with anyone unless specifically asked

to do so by the MCWIC legal counsel or the Board Chair.

Disclosure to Outside Parties

Allegations of and information related to allegations of suspected misconduct shall not be disclosed to
third parties except under the provisions described in this policy (such as disclosure to outside
investigators hired by the Organization to aid in an investigation).

However, all known frauds involving the Executive Director, senior management, or members of the

Board of Directors, as well as all material frauds involving employees below the senior management
level, shall be disclosed by the Board Chair to the Organization’s external auditors.

SECURITY
Accounting Department

MCWIC’s corporate seals and blank check stock shall be stored in a fireproof file safe. This safe will be
locked with a key that is kept in the Accounting Department. Access to this safe shall be by keys in the
possession Executive Director.
MCWIC currently has no petty cash drawer. If in the future it is decided that a petty cash drawer is
required, it must be approved by the board and policy implemented prior to the implementation of petty
cash.

Access to Electronically Stored Accounting Data
MCWIC utilizes passwords to restrict access to accounting software and data. Only duly authorized

accounting personnel with data input responsibilities will be assigned passwords that allow access to
the system.

18 73



Accounting personnel are expected to keep their passwords secret and to change their passwords on a
regular basis, no less frequently than every 60 days. Administration of passwords shall be performed by
a responsible individual independent of programming functions.

Each password enables a user to gain access to only those software and data files necessary for each
employee's required duties.

Storage of Back-Up Files

MCWIC maintains back-up copies of electronic data files off-site'in a secure environment. Access to
back-up files shall be limited to individuals authorized by management. A log should be kept which
records the whereabouts of each backup media. Multiple .copies of backup media are recommended
so as to not overwrite the most recent backup.

The Organization should have a regularly scheduled test of its capability to I&pre from backup media.
Storage of Sensitive Data

In addition to accounting and financial data stored in the Accounting Department, other sensitive data,
such as social security numbers of employees or clients, etc. may be stored in areas other than the
accounting department, such as in a secure file room that remains locked. Therefore, the Organization:

1. Minimizes the storage of sensitive data outside the Accountirhepartment by shredding
documents with such data or deleting the sensitive data from documents that are stored outside
the Accounting Department whenever possible; and

2. Requires that all sensitive data that is stored in areas other than the Accounting Department be
secured in locked filing cabinets that are placed in offices that are locked after hours.

Further, Organization restricts access to sensitive data to Organization employees only (no
tempora orkers, contractors, or volunteers) and only to employees with a legitimate need for such
access. The Organization also requires employees to claim print jobs which contain sensitive
information immediately upon printing.

Destruction of Consumer Information

As stated earlier, all sensitive data must be securely stored and shredded when no longer needed.
MCWIC will also shred all consumer information obtained by the Organization for any reason.
Shredding will be performed on a schedule determined by each department that possesses such data
and the schedule shall be made a part of the Record Retention policy (see the “Fiscal Management”
policies section of this manual).

General Office Security
During normal business hours, all visitors are required to check in with the receptionist. After hours, an

alarm code is required for access to MCWIC. Alarm codes are issued only to specific employees of
MCWIC.

19 74



GENERAL LEDGER AND CHART OF ACCOUNTS

The general ledger is the collection of all asset, liability, net assets, revenue and expense accounts. It
is used to accumulate all financial transactions and is supported by subsidiary ledgers that provide
details for certain accounts. The general ledger is the foundation for the accumulation of data and
production of reports.

Chart of Accounts Overview

The chart of accounts is the framework for the general ledger system and the basis for the accounting
system. The chart of accounts consists of account titles and account numbers assigned to the titles.
General ledger accounts are used to accumulate transactions and the impact of these transactions on
each asset, liability, net asset, revenue, expense, and gain and loss account.

MCWIC’s chart of accounts is comprised of six types of accounts:

Assets

Liabilities

Net Assets
Revenues
Expenses

Gains and Losses

U e

The chart of accounts is built on a table-driven six (6) segment structure. The following segments will
be used in the MCWIC chart of accounts:

e Fund

e Funding Source
e GL

o Activity

e Activity Description
e Leverage

Distribution of Chart of Accounts
All MCWIC employees involved with account coding or budgetary responsibilities will be issued a
current chart of accounts. As the chart of accounts is revised, an updated copy of the chart of accounts
shall be promptly distributed to these individuals.
Control of Chart of Accounts
The Fiscal Manager monitors and controls the chart of accounts, including all account maintenance,
such as additions and deletions. Any additions or deletions of accounts should be approved by the

Fiscal Manager, who ensures that the chart of accounts is consistent with the Organizational structure
of MCWIC and meets the needs of each division and department.

20 75



General Ledger

Account Definitions

Assets are probable future economic benefits obtained or
controlled by the Organization as a result of past transactions or
events. Assets are classified as current assets, fixed assets,
contra-assets, and other assets.

Current assets are assets that are available or can be made
readily available to meet the cost of operations or to pay current
liabilities. Some examples are cash, temporary investments, and
receivables.that will be collected Withi& year of the statement
of financial position date.

Fixed assets (property and equipment) are tangible assets with a
useful life of more than one year that are acquired for use in the
operation of the Organization and are not held for resale.

Contra-assets are accounts that reduce asset accounts, such as
accumulated depreciation-and reserves for uncollectible accounts

Other assets include long-term assets that are assets acquired
without the intention of disposing them in the near future. Some
examples are security deposits, property and long-term

Liabilities are probable future sacrifices of economic benefits arising
from present obligations of the Organization to transfer assets or
provide services to other entities in the future as a result of past
transactions or events. Liabilities are classified as current or long-term.

Current liabilities are probable sacrifices of economic benefits that
will likely occur within one year of the date of the financial statements
or which have a due date of one year or less. Common examples
of current liabilities include accounts payable, accrued liabilities,
short-term notes payable, and deferred revenue.

Long-Term Liabilities are probable sacrifices of economic benefits
that will likely occur more than one year from the date of the
financial statements. An example is the non-current portion of a

Account Range Category Definition
1000 - 1999 Assets
/ receivable
investments.
2000 — 2999 Liabilities
mortgage loan.
3000 - 3999 Net Assets

21 76



Net Assets is the difference between total assets and total
liabilities.

4000 - 4999 Revenues
Revenues are inflows or other enhancements of assets, or
settlements of liabilities, from delivering or producing goods,
rendering services, or other activities that constitute an
organization’s ongoing major or central operations. Revenues
include grants received from government agencies, private
foundations and corporations, and contributions received from
donors.

5000 - 5999 Expenses
Expenses are outflows or other activities using assets, or
incurrences of liabilities from delivering or producing goods,
rendering services, or carrying out other activities that constitute
MCWIC’s ongoing major or central operations.

6000 — 6999 Gains and Losses
Gains are increases in net assets from peripheral or incidental
transactions and from all other transactions and other events and
circumstances affecting the Organization except those that result
from revenues.

Losses are decreases in net assets from peripheral or incidental
transactions and from all other transactions and other events and
circumstances affecting the Organization except those that result

from expenses.

Gains or losses occur when MCWIC sells a fixed asset or writes
off as worthless a fixed asset with remaining book value.

Fiscal Year of Organization

MCWIC shall operate on a fiscal year that begins on July 1 and ends on June 30. Any changes to the
fiscal year of the Organization must be ratified by majority vote of MCWIC’s Board of Directors.

Accounting Estimates

MCWIC utilizes numerous estimates in the preparation of its interim and annual financial statements.
Some of those estimates include:

1. Useful lives of property and equipment
2. Fair values of investments
3. Fair values of donated assets

22 77



4, Values of contributed services

5. Joint cost allocations
6. Allocations of certain indirect costs
7. Allocations of time/salaries

The Fiscal Manager will re-assess, review, and approve all estimates annually. All key conclusions,
bases, and other elements associated with each accounting estimate shall be documented in writing.

Journal Entries
All general ledger entries that do not originate from a subsidiary ledger shal%gsupported by journal
t

vouchers or other documentation, including an explanation of each such en xamples of such
journal entries are:

1. Recording of noncash transactions
2. Corrections of posting errors
3. Nonrecurring accruals of income and expenses

Certain journal entries, called recurring journal entries, occur in evevﬂcounting period. Examples of

such journal entries ary

1. Depreciation of fixed assets

2. Amortization of prepaid expenses

3. Accruals of recurring expenses

4, Amortization of deferred revenue

Recurr urnal entries shall be supported by a schedule associated with the underlying asset or

liability account or, in the case of short-term recurring journal entries or immaterial items, a journal
voucher.

All journal entries not originating from subsidiary ledgers shall be authorized in writing by the Fiscal
Manager by initialing or signing the entries.

POLICIES ASSOCIATED WITH REVENUES AND CASH RECEIPTS

REVENUE

Revenue Recognition Policies

23 78



MCWIC receives revenue from several types of transactions. Revenue from each of these types of
transactions is recognized in the financial statements in the following manner:

1. Grant income — Recognized as income when received, based on incurrence of allowable costs
(for cost-reimbursement awards) or based on other terms of the award (for fixed price, unit-of-
service, and other types of awards) — also see the later section on federal awards.

2. Rent income - Recognized as income when received, based on the terms of each sublease
3. Assessment Services - Recognized as income when received
4. Contributions - Recognized as income when received or when unconditionally promised (see

the next section on contribution income)

Immaterial categories of revenue may be recorded on the cash basis of accounting (i.e., recorded as
revenue when received) as deemed appropriate by the Fiscal Manager.

Refunds of Revenue Received
The following policies apply to refunds associated with revenue collected by MCWIC:
It is the policy of MCWIC to require the following in connection with any refund transaction:
1. Written request from the payor for a refund, via mail, facsimile or e-mail.

2. Approval by the Director.

GIFT ACCEPTANCE
Overview of Gift Acceptance Policies

A gift/contribution is consideration given to the Organization for which the donor receives no direct
benefit and requires nothing in exchange (it is nonreciprocal) other than assurance that the intent of the
contribution will be honored by MCWIC. Two broad principles apply to all gifts given to the
Organization:

1. A gift shall not be accepted that is not in the charitable interest of the donor, considering the
donor’s financial situation and philanthropic interests, as well as tax, legal, and other relevant
factors.

2. A qift shall not be accepted unless there is a reasonable expectation that acceptance of the gift

shall ultimately benefit MCWIC and the focus of the program.

Categories of Gifts

24 79



Gifts to the Organization are classified into two categories, based on the level of risk associated with
acceptance of the gift.

Gifts of marginal risk include the following:

° Cash and cash equivalents (e.g. certificates of deposit)

° Gifts of securities actively traded on a U.S. public market (e.g. publicly-traded stocks, mutual
funds, corporate and government bonds, etc.)

° Personal property with a fair value of less than $5,000 (new or used)

Gifts of the preceding three categories shall be considered to'be of marginal risk only if they are either
unrestricted or restricted to one specific, existing MCWIC program.

Gifts of greater-than-marginal risk include the following: \

° Any gift requiring the acceptance of a restriction that (a) is not clearly identifiable with an
existing program of MCWIC, (b) would require the addition or modification of an MCWIC
program, (c) would not be consistent with the mission of MCWIC, (d) would not be consistent
with MCWIC’s tax-exempt purpose under IRC section 5901(c)(3), (e) would violate any federal,
state or local law or regulation, or (f) would result in excessive control to the donor, or anyone
designated by the donor, over the subsequent.use of the contributed asset

° Any gift from a donor involved in businesses or activities thalﬁy be deemed to be inconsistent

with the missinCWIC

Personal prop with a fair value of $5,000 or more (new or.used)

Real property (either an outright gift of property or the donated use of such property)
Non-publicly-traded securities (e.g. ownership interests in privately-held businesses,
partnerships, etc.)

Charitable remainder trusts

ritable lead trusts

itional promises to give/pledges

Unusual items or items of questionable value (including works of art, animals, historic artifacts,
memorabilia, etc.)

Life insurance

Notification of the intent to give non-cash assets through a bequest

Gift Acceptance Procedures

Gifts of marginal risk may be accepted by the Executive Director without any further review and
approval. Gifts of greater-than-marginal risk may be accepted only after review and approval of both the
Fiscal Manager and the Executive Director. This review and approval shall be documented on a Gift
Acceptance form.

It is also the policy of MCWIC to liquidate all gifts of public-traded securities within ten days of receipt
unless it is determined by the Fiscal Manager that holding the securities as an investment of the
organization would be fiscally prudent, appropriate and consistent with the Organization’s investment
policies.

25 80



CONTRIBUTION ACCOUNTING
Definitions

The following definitions shall apply with respect to the policies associated with revenue and related
assets described in this manual:

Contribution — An unconditional transfer of cash or other assets to the Organization, or a settlement or
cancellation of the Organization's liabilities, in a voluntary nonreciprocal transfer by another entity or
individual.

Condition — A donor-imposed stipulation that specifies a future and uncertain event whose occurrence
or failure to occur gives the promisor a right of return of the assets it has transferred to the Organization
or releases the promisor from its obligation to transfer its assets. In practical terms, this means a donor
has imposed some type of stipulation other than a purpose or time period stipulation (which are defined
as restrictions below) and that condition has some degree of uncertainty as to whether or not it will
occur, and if the condition is not met, the organization is not entitled to the contribution. Conditions may
or may not be within the control of the organization.

Restriction — A donor-imposed stipulation that specifies a use for the contributed asset that is either
limited to a specific future time period or is more specific than the broad limits resulting from the nature
of the Organization, the environment in which it operates, and the purposes specified in the Articles of
Incorporation and Bylaws. Restrictions on the use of an asset may be temporary or permanent.

Nonreciprocal Transfer — A transaction in which an individual or entity incurs a liability or transfers
assets to MCWIC without directly receiving value in exchange.

Promise to Give — A written or oral agreement to contribute cash or other assets.

Exchange Transaction — A reciprocal transaction in which MCWIC and another entity each receive
and sacrifice something of approximately equal value.

Distinguishing Contributions from Exchange Transactions

MCWIC receives income in the form of contributions, revenue from exchange transactions, and income
from activities with characteristics of both contributions and exchange transactions. MCWIC shall
consider the following criteria, and any other relevant factors, in determining whether income will be
accounted for as contribution income, exchange transaction revenue, or both:

1. MCWIC's intent in soliciting the asset, as stated in the accompanying materials;
2. The expressed intent of the entity providing resources to MCWIC (i.e., does the resource
provider state that its intent is to support MCWIC's programs or that it anticipates specified

benefits in exchange?);

3. Whether the method of delivery of the asset is specified by the resource provider (exchange
transaction) or is at the discretion of MCWIC (contribution);

26 81



Whether payment received by MCWIC is determined by the resource provider (contribution) or
is equal to the value of the assets/services provided by MCWIC, or the cost of those assets plus
a markup (exchange transaction);

Whether there are provisions for penalties (due to nonperformance) beyond the amount of
payment (exchange transaction) or whether penalties are limited to the delivery of assets
already produced and return of unspent funds (contribution); and

Whether assets are to be delivered by MCWIC to individuals or organizations other than the
resource provider (contribution) or whether they are delivered directly to the resource provider

or to individuals or organizations closely connected to the resource provider.

Recognition of Contribution Income (GAAP)

MCWIC shall recognize contribution income based on the following factors: \

1.

Unconditional contributions of assets (cash, property, etc)shall be recognized as income upon
receipt of the asset by the Organization

Unconditional promises to contribute assets shall be recognized as income upon receipt of clear
communication of the promise from the donor or the donor’s legal representative (e.g. trustee,
attorney, etc) — see additional guidelines in the next section \

Conditional comﬁjtions and conditional promises to give shall be recognized as income upon
the satisfaction of the condition

Contributed services shall be recognized as income only to the extent that the contributed

services possess either one of the following characteristics:
The service creates or enhances a nonfinancial asset (e.g. land, buildings, intangible
assets, etc.), or

b. The service requires a specialized skill, it is provided by an individual possessing that
skill, and the service.is one that would typically need to be purchased if it had not been
contributed to the organization.

All non-cash contribution income received shall be recorded at fair value (see policy in next section).

Contribution income shall be classified as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted
in accordance with the definitions and guidelines described earlier.

Valuation of Non-Cash Contributions

As stated in the preceding section, all non-cash contributions of assets shall be recorded at their fair

value as of the date of the gift. Fair values used in accounting for donated assets shall be determined
by the Organization, not by the donor, although in some cases a value may have been provided by a
donor (see subsequent policies associated with IRS Form 8283).

27 82



The determination of the fair value of donated assets shall be determined as follows:

4.

For contributions of publicly-traded securities, fair value shall be determined by the Fiscal
Manager based on a Web-based search of the closing price of the security on the date that the
security was transferred to MCWIC (in addition, a print-out of this Web search shall be retained
in the accounting department’s records for future reference and substantiation of this procedure.

For contributions of personal property, fair value shall be determined by the Fiscal Manager,
using appropriate public records (price lists for new assets, other guides for used assets)

subject to the review and approval of the Director.

For contributions of real property, fair value shall be determined by an appraisal performed by
an independent appraiser hired by MCWIC (not an appraiser hired by the donor).

For contributions of all other assets, fair value shall be determined by the Fiscal Manager.

For contributed services that meet the previously described criteria for recording, the fair value of the
services shall be determined by multiplying the hours worked by each volunteer, as documented on the
Organization’s Volunteer Time Sheet, by an applicable hourly rate. The applicable hourly rate shall be
determined by Executive Director and shall generally be equal to an estimate of an hourly wage rate
plus estimated employee benefits costs at FTE% or an hourly rate typically charged by external
contractors possessing the skills provided by the volunteer.

All determinations of hourly rates used to value contributed services shall be reviewed and approved by
the Fiscal Manager.

Unconditional Promises to Give

Unconditional promises to give shall be recorded as assets and increases in temporarily
restricted net assets (contribution income) in the period that MCWIC receives communication of
the promise.

Unconditional promises to give that are to be collected within one year shall be recorded at their
face value, less any reserve for uncollectible promises, as estimated by management.
Unconditional promises to give that are collectible over time periods in excess of one year shall
be recorded at their discounted net present value.

Accretion of discount on such promises to give shall be recorded as contribution income in each
period leading up to the due date of the promise to give. The interest rate that shall be used in
calculating net present values of unconditional promises to give is the risk-free rate of return
available to MCWIC at the time the Organization receives a promise from a donor, considering
the dollar amount of the promise and the time period of the promise (e.g. for promises of less
than $100,000, the Organization shall generally use the interest rate applicable to certificates of
deposit for the same approximate duration available from its bank).

When the final time or use restriction associated with a contributed asset has been met, a
reclassification between temporarily restricted and unrestricted net assets shall be recorded.

Conditional Promises to Give

28 83



The Organization shall not record an asset or contribution income for any conditional promise to give.
However, the Organizational shall maintain a record of such conditional promises to give and monitor
these gifts for purposes of identifying when the condition associated with each such promise has been
satisfied. As noted below, this schedule shall also be used in connection with preparing the
organization’s footnote disclosures associated with contributions.

Receipts and Disclosures

MCWIC and its donors are subject to certain disclosure and reporting requirements imposed under the
Internal Revenue Code and the underlying regulations. To comply with those rules, MCWIC shall
adhere to the following guidelines with respect to contributions received by the Organization.

The Accounting Department shall provide a receipt to the donor for every. separate contribution
received. All receipts shall include the following information: \

1. The amount of cash received and/or a description (but not an assessment of the value) of any
noncash property received;

2. A statement of whether MCWIC provided any goods or services to the donor in consideration, in
whole or in part, for any of the cash or property received, and

3. If any goods or services were provided to the donor. by MC a description and good faith
estimate of the WJG of those goods or services.

When MCWIC receives cash in excess of $75, or noncash property with a value in excess of $75, as
part of a quid pro quo transaction, the Organization shall follow additional disclosure procedures. For
purposes of this paragraph, a "quidpro quo transaction”.is one in which MCWIC receives cash or
property in‘a transaction that is part contribution and part exchange transaction (i.e., the value of the
goods rvices provided to the donor by MCWIC is less than the value of cash or property provided
by the r). In such instances, MCWIC shall provide to the donor a receipt stating that only the
amount contributed in excess of the fair market value of the goods or services provided by MCWIC may
be deducted as a charitable contribution. The receipt shall also include a good-faith estimate of the fair
market value of the goods or services provided to the donor by MCWIC.

IRS rules provide for certain exceptions to the preceding disclosure rules applicable to quid pro quo
transactions. As such, MCWIC shall not provide receipts when it receives cash or property in excess of
$75 in any of the following circumstances:

1. The goods provided to the donor during (yr) bear MCWIC's name or logo and have an
aggregate cost of $9.50 or less and the donor gave the Organization at least $47.50;

2. The goods provided to the donor in (yr) have a fair market value equal to no more than 2% of
the contribution or $95, whichever is less; or

3. The gift received by MCWIC resulted from the Organization's (yr) fund-raising appeal that

included articles worth no more than $9.50, as well as a request for contributions and a
statement that the recipient may keep the article even if a contribution is not made.

29 84



The preceding thresholds are adjusted for inflation by the IRS on an annual basis.

All estimates of the fair market value of goods or services provided by MCWIC shall be prepared by the
Accounting Department.

MCWIC complies with all current Federal and state rules regarding solicitation and collection of
charitable contributions, whether specifically addressed in this manual or not, as well as all future
revisions to those rules.

IRS Form 8283

In certain instances, MCWIC may be requested to sign a Form 8283 (section b, Part 1V) by a donor who
has made a material contribution of non-cash assets to the Organization. The signature of an
organization official on Form 8283 signifies an acknowledgement of the description of the donated
asset and the date of the gift. It does NOT represent any level of certification of or agreement to the
valuation of the gift that has been assigned by the donor or the donor’s appraiser, but it does serve to
inform MCWIC of the value intended to be deducted by the donor, which is useful in connection with
the subsequent filing of Form 8282 (see the next section for the policies regarding Form 8282).

Any Form 8283 presented by a donor for signature by MCWIC shall be reviewed, along with the
donated asset and any relevant documentation pertaining to the asset’s description and condition, by
the Director, who shall have final responsibility for agreeing or disagreeing with the donor’s description
of the asset and for signing the Form 8283.

The Fiscal Manager shall retain a copy of any Form 8283 that has been signed within the accounting
department for subsequent tracking of the donated asset (see related policy below).

IRS Form 8282

When MCWIC subsequently sells assets that have been contributed to it, the filing of a Form 8282 may
be required. Among the exceptions from filing Form 8282 are subsequent sales of assets contributed to
the Organization more than three years before the sale, and sales of assets that when contributed had
a fair value of $5,000 or less, as evidenced by the Form 8283 presented to the Organization by the
donor at the time of the gift.

Form 8282 is not required with respect to donated assets that are consumed or distributed in fulfillment
of the Organization’s tax-exempt mission.

Responsibility for tracking donated assets and determining whether filing Form 8282 is required is
assigned to the Accounting Department. It is the policy of MCWIC to file such forms in a timely manner
(within 125 days of the sale). Upon completion of a Form 8282 by the Accounting Department the form
shall be reviewed and signed by the Fiscal Manager. Delivery of the form to IRS shall be done by mail,
performed by the Accounting Department.

A Form 8282 shall also be prepared and filed if MCWIC transfers a donated asset to another charitable

nonprofit organization (subject to the same exceptions as described above). In such cases, the Form
8282 shall be filed with IRS within 125 days of the transfer and a copy of the Form 8282 shall be

30 85



provided to the successor nonprofit organization with 15 days of filing the Form 8282 with the IRS,
along with a copy of the original Form 8283 received from the donor.

There are two exceptions to filing a Form 8282:

1) ltems valued at $500 or less
2) Items consumed or distributed for charitable purpose

ADMINISTRATION OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Definitions

MCWIC may receive financial assistance from a donor/grantor agency through the following types of

agreements: \

Grant: A financial assistance award given to the Organization to carry out its programmatic purpose.

Contract: A mutually binding legal agreement where the Organization agrees to provide supplies or
services and the funder agrees to pay'for them.

Cooperative Agreement: A legal agreement where the Organization implements a program with the
direct involvement of the funder.

Throughout this manua,éederal assistance received.in any of these forms will be referred to as a
Federal “award.”

Preparation and Review of Proposals

Individ epartments are responsible for preparing proposals for projects that the department intends
to purs owever, all proposals shall be reviewed by the Fiscal Manager prior to submission to
government agencies or other funding sources. Final proposals shall be reviewed and approved in
writing by the Executive Director.

e Grant applications, in alignment with the program, will be approved by the Executive
Director.

e The full Board will approve acceptance of all grants.

e The full Board will be involved in all decisions concerning new funding sources.

Post-Award Procedures

After an award has been made, the following steps shall be taken:

1. Verify the specifications of the grant or contract. The Accounting Department shall review the
terms, time periods, award amounts and expected expenditures associated with the award. A
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number shall be determined for each award.
All reporting requirements under the contract or award shall be summarized.

2. Create new general ledger account numbers (or segments). New accounts shall be established
for the receipt and expenditure categories in line with the grant or contract budget.



3.

Gather documentation. A file is established for each grant or contract. The file contains the
proposal, all correspondence regarding the grant or contract, the final signed award document
and all reports submitted to the funding sources.

Compliance with Laws, Regulations and Provisions of Awards

MCWIC recognizes that as a recipient of Federal funds, the Organization is responsible for compliance
with all applicable OMB laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grants. To ensure that the
Organization meets this responsibility, the following policies apply with respect to every grant or
contract received directly or indirectly from a Federal agency:

1.

2.

For each Federal award, the Executive Director will designate a manager as "grant manager.”

The grant manager shall take the following steps to identify all applicable laws, regulations, and
provisions of each grant and contract:

a. Read each award and prepare a summary of key compliance requirements and
references to specific laws and regulations.
b. Review the “OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement" (updated annually) published

by the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) for compliance requirements unique to
the award and for compliance requirements common to all Federal awards.

C. Review the section of the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) applicable to
the award.
d. The grants manager will communicate grant requirements to those who will be

responsible for carrying them out, or impacted by them.

The Accounting Department shall forward copies of applicable laws regulations to the grant
manager (such as OMB Circulars, pertinent sections of compliance supplements, and other
regulations).

The grant manager and/or the Accounting Department shall identify and communicate any
special changes in policies and procedures necessitated by Federal awards as a result of the
review of each award.

The grant manager shall take all reasonable steps necessary to identify applicable changes in
laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grants. Steps taken in this regard shall
include, but not be limited to, reviewing subsequent grant and contract renewals, reviewing
annual revisions to the “OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement,” and communications
with Federal awarding agency personnel.

The grant manager shall inform the independent auditors of applicable laws, regulations, and
provisions of contracts and grants. The grant manager shall also communicate known instances

of noncompliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grants to the auditors.

The grant manager will be responsible for all monitoring activities of the grant and work directly
with all state and federal monitors specific to program monitoring.



Document Administration
For each grant/award received by MCWIC from a federal, state, or local government agency, a master
file of documents applicable to the award shall be prepared and maintained. The responsibility for
assembling each master file shall be assigned to the Program Manager assigned to administer the

program.

The master file assembled for each government award shall include all of the following documents
(including originals of all documents received from the awarding agency):

1. Copy of the initial application for the award and corresponding budget
2. All correspondence to and from the awarding agency post-application, leading up to the award

3. The final, approved budget and program plan, after making any modmtions

4, The grant agreement and any other documents associated with the initial making of the award
5. Copies of pertinent laws and regulations, including awarding agency guidelines, associated with
the award

6. Subsequent grant modifications (financial and programmatic\)\
7. Subsequent cofépondence to/from the awarding agency

8. Results of any monitoring visits conducted by the awarding agency, including resolution by
MCWIC of any findings arising from such visits

9. espondence and other documents resulting from the closeout process of the award

The preceding grant document file shall be organized into three sections as follows:

1. Pre-award documents

2. Post-award documents

3. Laws, regulations, and agency guidelines
4. Audit/monitoring-related documents

The original grant document file shall remain in the office of the Program Manager. Electronic forms of
the final award documents and any other pertinent documentation will be kept on MCWIC’s network
and available to appropriate personnel within MCWIC.

Close Out of Federal Awards

MCWIC shall follow the close out procedures described in OMB Circular A-110 and in the grant
agreements as specified by the granting agency.

33 88



MCWIC and all subrecipients shall liquidate all obligations incurred under the grant or contract within 60
days of the end of the grant or contract agreement.

COST SHARING AND MATCHING (IN-KIND) - GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Overview

MCWIC values contributed services and property that are to be used to meet a cost sharing or
matching requirement at their fair market values at the time of contribution, unless award documents or
Federal agency regulations identify specific values to be used.

MCWIC shall claim contributions as meeting a cost sharing or matching requirement of a Federal award
only if all of the following criteria are met:

1.

2.

They are verifiable from MCWIC records.
They are not included as contributions for any other Federally-assisted project or program.

They are necessary and reasonable for proper and efficient accomplishment of project or
program objectives.

They are allowable under OMB Circular A-122.

They are not paid by the Federal government under another award, except where authorized by
Federal statute to be used for cost sharing or matching.

They are provided for in the approved budget when required by the Federal awarding agency.
They conform to all provisions of OMB Circular A-110.

In the case of donated space, (or donated use of space), the space is subject to an independent
appraisal to establish its value.

The following flowchart should be used to determine the allowability of in-kind.



#1
Is it verified, in writing, that
the donation/service was
received?

#1A
Can you get it verified in
writing? Unallowable

YES

an you document that the
source of the donation is
ot being used for anothe
Federal program?

#2
Is it not included as
contributions for another
federally-assisted

project/program?

SLEUNEGILS

YES

#3
s it necessary & reasonable
for proper & efficient
accomplishment of project or
program objectives?
What's the benefit?

STOP

Unallowable
In-Kind

#4
Is it allowable under the NO STOP
. Lk
applicable cost principles™? Tl
In-Kind
YES -
#5
Itis paid by n;);\-Federal NO To
funds™"? Unallowable
Go To
YES »| Question #6
35

90



From
Question
#5

#6
Is it provided for in the
approved budget?

#6A
Is it something you would

have put in the budget? Unallowable
In-Kind

YES

Would the agency pay,

out of Federal funds, the NO.
same amount being claimed '
as the in-kind value? Unallowable
In-Kind
YES
#8
Would the agency want to

defend paying Federal money
for it?

YES

v

IN-KIND IS
ALLOWABLE

* OMB Circular A-21 - Colleges and Universities, OMB Circular A-87 - State and Local Units of Government, A-122 - Non-Profit Organizations

** Except where authorized by Federal statute to be used for cost sharing or matching:
Determinations have been made on a case-by-case basis on whether Federal funds from other programs are allowable match for an ACF
program. These determinations are based on specific requirements of ACF programs and language in applicable statutes. Specifically:
1. USDA funds are of Federal origin and, therefore, cannot be counted as match.
2. Bureau of Indian Affairs - Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (P.L. 93-638, as amended). The Act authorizes the
use of funds for matching purposes as long as the identified use is specifically related to the approved grant activities.
3. Title XX Social Services Block Grant funds are considered to be Federal funds and, therefore, may not be used as match for ACF
programs.
4. Expenditure of funds from the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, P.L. 93-383 may count as allowable match for a
Head Start program for renovation of a building. The determination is dependent on whether or not the Head Start grant is
included as part of the “Community Development Program,” as required by the Housing and Community Development Act.
(Grants Administration Manual, Section 3.05.408(b)(1-4))

36 91



Valuation and Accounting Treatment

In-kind typically falls into one of the following categories:

= Cash
= Space
= Supplies

The following sections discuss the valuation and accounting treatment for each category.

Cash
e MCWIC shall recognize cash contributions as in-kind income in the period in which they are
spent on allowable program costs.
¢ Any discounts received on goods or servicesare recognized as in-kind only if such discounts
are not available to the general public. \

Space
o Will be valued at the fair rental'value of comparable space as established by an independent
appraisal of comparable space and facilities in a privately-owned building in the same locality
¢ Information on the date of donation and records from the appraisal will be maintained in a
property file
e |fless than ana?-length transaction, will be valued based in actual allowable costs not to
exceed fair m t value

Supplies
Donated supplies must be used.in the program and shall be valued at fair market value at the time of
donation. Supplies can be counted as match only if the program would have purchased such items
itself.
BILLING/INVOICING POLICIES
Overview

The Organization’s primary sources of revenue are:

o Reimbursement grants — billed monthly, or as funders require, based on allowed, incurred

expenses
o Fee-for-service income — billed monthly based on number of units of services provided
Responsibilities for Billing and Collection

MCWIC’s Accounting Department is responsible for the invoicing of funding sources and the collection

of outstanding receivables. (Note: Cash receipts, credit memo, and collection policies will be discussed
in subsequent sections.)

37 92



Customer Invoicing

It is the policy of MCWIC to complete customer orders and forward an invoice once services have been
rendered.

Billing and Financial Reporting — Government Grants

MCWIC strives to provide management, staff and funding sources with timely and accurate financial
reports applicable to Federal awards. These reports include monthly and cumulative expenditures, a
project budget, and a balance remaining column.

MCWIC shall prepare and submit financial reports as specified by the financial reporting clause of each
grant or contract award document. Preparation of these reports shall be the responsibility of Accounting
Department, subject to review and approval by Fiscal Manager.

The following policies shall apply to the preparation and submission of billings to Federal agencies
under awards made to MCWIC:

1. The Organization will request reimbursement after expenditures have been incurred, unless an
award specifies another method.

2. Each award normally specifies a particular billing cycle. Therefore, a schedule is established for
each grant and contract to ensure that reimbursement is made on a timely basis along with any
other reporting that is required in addition to the financial reports.

3. Requests for reimbursement of award expenditures will use the actual amounts as posted to the
general ledger as the source for all invoice amounts.

4. All financial reports required by each Federal award will be prepared and filed on a timely basis.
To the extent MCWIC'’s year-end audit results in adjustments to amounts previously reported to
Federal agencies, revised reports shall be prepared and filed in accordance with the terms of
each Federal award.

MCWIC shall maintain separate billing records in addition to the official general ledger accounting
records. Billing records shall be reconciled to the general ledger on a monthly basis.

If a Federal award authorizes the payment of cash advances to MCWIC, the Fiscal Manager may
require that a request for such an advance be made. Upon receipt of a cash advance from a Federal
agency, MCWIC shall reflect a liability equal to the advance. As part of the monthly close-out and
invoicing process, the liability shall be reduced, and revenue recognized, in an amount equal to the
allowable costs incurred for that period.

Cash Drawdowns Under Letters of Credit (Government Grants)
Cash drawdowns under letters of credit from Federal agencies shall be made weekly or bi-weekly in

conjunction with the accounts payable and payroll schedule, based on need. All Federal funds shall be
deposited into an interest-bearing cash account under the cash receipts policies and procedures

38 93



described in this manual. MCWIC requires that Federal funds will be disbursed within 3 operating
business days of receipt using the following process. An example of the process is as follows:

1. On Wednesday the accounting department will print out a listing of checks to be disbursed
2. The Fiscal Manager approves the listing
3. On Wednesday by 1:00 p.m., the accounting department draws down the cash required

4. On Thursday, the checks are printed and signed

5. On Friday, the cash is verified as received in the bank account via EFT delivery process,
and the checks are then disbursed.

Accounts Receivable Entry Policies \

Individuals independent of the cash receipts function shall post customer invoices, credit adjustments,
and other adjustments to the accounts receivable subsidiary ledger.

Posting of credit memos and other adjustments to customer accounts receivable shall also be
performed by an individual independent of the cash receipts function.of MCWIC.

/ Classification of Income and Net A&s
All income received by MCWIC is classified as "unrestricted,” with the exception of the following:

1. Grants and other awards received from government agencies, other grantors, and donors which
are classified as temporarily restricted.

MCWiI y raise other forms of contribution income which carry stipulations that the Organization
utilize the funds for a specific purpose or within a specified time period identified by the donor of the
funds. When this form of contribution income is received, MCWIC shall classify this income as
Temporarily Restricted income.

As with all Temporarily Restricted net assets, when the restriction associated with a contribution has
been met (due to the passing of time or the use of the resource for the purpose designated by the
donor), MCWIC will reclassify the related net assets from "Temporarily Restricted" to "Unrestricted" in
its Statement of Financial Position and reflect this reclassification as an activity in its Statement of
Activities.

From time-to-time, the MCWIC Board of Directors may determine that it is appropriate to set funds

aside for specific projects. Such funds shall be classified as “unrestricted,” labeled “Board-
Designated,” and reported as a separate component of unrestricted net assets.

39 94



CASH RECEIPTS
Overview

Cash (including checks payable to the Organization) is the most liquid asset an organization has.
Therefore, it is the objective of MCWIC to establish and follow the strongest possible internal controls in
this area.

Processing of Checks and Cash Received in the Mail
The following procedures will be followed for funds received by mail:

= Cash receipts are received in a central location, rather than at remote sites, to ensure that cash
received is appropriately directed, recorded, and deposited on a timely basis.

= Mail is opened and a listing of cash/checks received shall be prepared in an open area, in the
presence of other employees.

» A deposit slip is prepared from the cash/checks received and compared to the daily receipts
listing for discrepancies.

= Deposits are prepared and taken to the bank by an individual other than the employee who
prepared the daily cash receipts listing.

Note: If cash is received, a second signature is required on the cash receipt transmittal form as
verification of the cash.

Endorsement of Checks
All checks received that are payable to the Organization shall immediately be restrictively endorsed by
the individual who prepares the daily receipts listing. The restrictive endorsement shall be a rubber
stamp that includes the following information:
1 For Deposit Only
2 MCWIC
3. The bank name
4 The bank account number of MCWIC

Timeliness of Bank Deposits

Bank deposits will be made on the day the cash receipts are received. In no event shall deposits be
made more than two business days after the receipts were received.

Reconciliation of Deposits
On a periodic basis, the Fiscal Manager, who does not prepare the initial cash receipts listing or bank

deposit, shall reconcile the listings of receipts to bank deposits on the monthly bank statement. Any
discrepancies shall be immediately investigated.

40 95



SEGREGATION OF DUTIES

Control Grid - Revenue and Cash Receipts
MCWIC strives to maintain adequate segregation of duties in its income and cash receipts functions.
The following table illustrates how responsibilities have been assigned. In this table, personnel are
identified as follows:
A. Fiscal Manager

B. Principal Account Clerk #1

C. Principal Account Clerk #2

Note: if 2 X’s for one category, then one is back up to the other

A B C
Produce invoice to bill customer X
Enter invoice into A/R system X
Initial receipt of funds (cash or checks) X
Restrictively endorse checks
Prepares initial record of funds collected x
Preparation of deposit sli
Take deposit slipto b X X \
Enter payments into A/R system X
Reconcile log of collections w/. A/R X '
posting

Authoriz edits or other adjustments X

Posts s/adjustments to A/R system X

Authoriz ite-off of bad deb X

Posts bad debt write-offs to A/R system X

Prepares periodic customer statements X
Reconciles A/R with general ledger X

Reconciles bank statement X
Reviews A/R aging X

Performs follow-up calls on old A/R X

Prepares Cash Draws X X
Authorizes Cash Draws X

41 9%



POLICIES ASSOCIATED WITH EXPENDITURES AND DISBURSEMENTS

PURCHASING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
Overview

MCWIC requires the practice of ethical, responsible, and reasonable procedures related to purchasing,
agreements and contracts, and related forms of commitment. The policies in this section describe the
principles and procedures that all staff shall adhere to in the completion of their designated
responsibilities.

The goal of these procurement policies is to ensure that materials and services are obtained in an
effective manner and in compliance with the provisions of applicable Federal statutes and executive
orders.

Responsibility for Purchasing

All department heads or their designees shall have the authority to initiate purchases on behalf of their
department, within the guidelines described here.

The Accounting Department shall be responsible for processing purchase orders. The Executive
Director has approval authority over all purchases and contractual commitments, and shall make the
final determination on any proposed purchases where budgetary or other conditions may result in
denial.

Code of Conduct in Purchasing

Ethical conduct in managing the Organization's purchasing activities is absolutely essential. Staff must
always be mindful that they represent the Board of Directors and share a professional trust with other
staff and the general membership.

» Staff shall discourage the offer of, and decline, individual gifts or gratuities of value in any way
that might influence the purchase of supplies, equipment, and/or services.

= Staff shall notify their immediate supervisor if they are offered such gifts.

= No officer, board member, employee, or agent shall participate in the selection or administration
of a vendor if a real or apparent conflict of interest would be involved. Such a conflict would
arise if an officer, board member, employee or agent, or any member of his/her immediate
family, his/her spouse/partner, or an organization that employs or is about to employ any of the
parties indicated herein, has a financial or other interest in the vendor selected.

= Officers, board members, employees, and agents shall neither solicit nor accept gratuities,
favors, or anything of monetary value from vendors or parties to sub-agreements.

* Unsolicited gifts of a nominal value of less than $25 may be accepted with the approval of the
Executive Director.

Procurement Procedures (Government Grants)

42 97



Refer to MCWIC’s Separate Procurement Policy for the following:

Authorizations and Purchasing Limits

Required Solicitation of Quotations from Vendors (Government Grants)

Extensions of Due Dates and Receipt of Late Proposals

Evaluation of Alternative Vendors

Affirmative Consideration of Minority, Small & Women-Owned Businesses (Government
Grants per OMB Circ. A-110_44(3)(b)

Availability of Procurement Records - Government Grants per OMB Circ. (A-
110_44(3)(e)

Provisions Included in All Contracts — Government Grants per OMB Circ. A-110
Appendix A

Special Purchasing Conditions
Right to Audit Clause \

Use of Purchase Orders

MCWIC utilizes a purchase order system. A properly completed purchase order shall be required for
each purchase decision (i.e., total amount of goods and services purchased, not unit cost), with the
exception of travel advances and expense reimbursements, which require the preparation of a separate
form described elsewhere in this manual. A properly.completed purchase order shall contain the
following information, at a minimum:

1.

o o M~ w N

10.

11.

Specifications or statement of services required \
Vendor name,taddress, point of contact and phone number
Source of funding (if applicable)
Delivery or performance schedules

ery, packing and transportation requirements

Special conditions (if applicable)

Catalog number, page number, etc. (if applicable)

Net price per unit, less discount, if any

Total amount of order

Authorized signature (Fiscal Manager and Executive Director)

Date purchase order was prepared

Purchase orders are pre-numbered by the accounting system, and the log is audited on an annual

basis.

Vendor Files and Required Documentation

43 98



The Accounting Department shall create a vendor folder for each new vendor from whom MCWIC
purchases goods or services.

The Accounting Department shall mail a blank Form W-9 to new vendors and request that the vendor
complete and sign the W-9 (or provide equivalent, substitute information) and return it in the postage-
paid envelope provided. Completed, signed Forms W-9 or substitute documentation shall be filed in
each vendor’s folder. Vendors who do not comply with this request shall be issued a Form 1099 at the
end of each calendar year in accordance with the policies described in the section of this manual on
“‘Government Returns.” See the section on “Payroll and Related Policies” for guidance on determining
whether a vendor should be treated as an employee.

Receipt and Acceptance of Goods

A designated individual (outside of the accounting department) shall inspect all goods received. Upon
receipt of any item from a vendor, the following actions shall immediately be taken:

1. Review bill of lading for correct delivery point

2. Verify the quantity of boxes/containers with the bill of lading

Examine boxes/containers for exterior damage and note on the bill of lading any discrepancies
(missing or damaged boxes/containers, etc.)

Sign and date the bill of lading

Remove the packing slip from each box/container

Compare the description and quantity of goods per the purchase order to the packing slip
Examine goods for physical damage

Count or weigh items, if appropriate, and record the counts on the purchase order

w

i S

This inspection must be performed in a timely manner to facilitate prompt return of goods and/or
communication with vendors.

POLITICAL INTERVENTION
Prohibited Expenditures

Consistent with its tax-exempt status under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, MCWIC
shall not incur any expenditure for political intervention. For purposes of this policy, political intervention
shall be defined as any activity associated with the direct or indirect support or opposition of a
candidate for elective public office at the Federal, state or local level. Examples of prohibited political
expenditures include, but are not limited to, the following:

Contributions to political action committees

Contributions to the campaigns of individual candidates for public office

Contributions to political parties

Expenditures to produce printed materials (including materials in periodicals) that support or
oppose candidates for public office

5. Expenditures for the placement of political advertisements in periodicals

oM~

Endorsements of Candidates

44 99



MCWIC will not endorse any candidates for public office in any manner, or otherwise make statements
that support or oppose a candidate or a political party, either verbally or in writing. This policy extends
to the actions of management, the board of directors, volunteers, and other representatives or agents
of MCWIC, when these individuals are acting on behalf of, or are otherwise representing, the
Organization.

Individual vs. Organizational Intervention

The preceding policies prohibiting acts of political intervention apply to.the organization and to
individuals acting on behalf of the organization. It does not apply to the personal lives of employees and
volunteers of the organization, who have the right to support-or oppose political candidates and parties
as individuals. Employees and volunteers of MCWIC who@ngage in political activities outside the
scope of their employment with or service to the Organization shall at all times be mindful of
maintaining a clear distinction between personal activities and those which can be attributed to the
Organizational. “{‘

Prohibited Use of Organization Assets and Resources

No assets or human resources of the Organization shall be utilized for political activities, as defined
above. This prohibition extends to the use of Organization assets or human resources in support of
political activities that are engaged in personally by board members, members of management,
employees, or any other representatives of MCWIC. While there is rohibition against these
individuals engaging in political activities personally (on their own tinr&nd without representing the
Organization), these individuals must at all times be aware that Organization resources cannot at any
time be utilized in support of political activities.

LOBBYING

Unlike cal intervention, described in the preceding section, expenditures by a section 501(c)(3)
public charity. for lobbying activities are allowable under the Internal Revenue Code. However, no
lobbying expenditures may be charged directly or indirectly to any Federal award (i.e., the charity must
have a non-Federal source of income to which such lobbying costs can be cited as the source of the
activity). MCWIC will not be involved in any lobbying activities.

CHARGING OF COSTS TO FEDERAL AWARDS
Overview

MCWIC charges costs that are reasonable, allowable, and allocable to a Federal award directly or
indirectly. All unallowable costs shall be appropriately segregated from allowable costs in the general
ledger in order to assure that unallowable costs are not charged to Federal awards.

Segregating Unallowable from Allowable Costs

45 100



The following steps shall be taken to identify and segregate costs that are allowable and unallowable
with respect to each Federal award:

1.

The budget and grant or contract for each award shall be reviewed for costs specifically
allowable or unallowable.

Accounting personnel shall be familiar with the allowability of costs provisions of OMB Circular
A-122, "Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations," particularly:

a. The list of specifically unallowable costs found in Attachment B (Selected Items of Cost),
such as alcoholic beverages, bad debts, contributions, fines and penalties, lobbying, etc.
b. Those costs requiring advance approval from Federal agencies in order to be allowable

in accordance with Attachment B, such as foreign travel, equipment purchases, etc.

No costs shall be charged directly to any Federal award until the cost has been determined to
be allowable under the terms of the award and/or OMB Circular A-122.

For each Federal award, an appropriate set of general ledger accounts (or account segments)
shall be established in the chart of accounts to reflect the categories of allowable costs
identified in the award or the award budget.

All items of miscellaneous income or credits, including the subsequent write-offs of uncashed
checks, rebates, refunds, and similar items, shall be reflected for grant accounting purposes as
reductions in allowable expenditures if the credit relates to charges that were originally charged
to a Federal award or to activity associated with a Federal award. The reduction in expenditures
shall be reflected in the year in which the credit is received (i.e., if the purchase that results in
the credit took place in a prior period, the prior period shall not be amended for the credit).

Criteria for Allowability

All costs must meet the following criteria from A-122, Attachment A, in order to be treated as allowable
direct or indirect costs under a Federal award:

The cost must be “reasonable” for the performance of the award, considering the following
factors:

a. Whether the cost is of a type that is generally considered as being necessary for the
operation of the Organization or the performance of the award;
b. Restraints imposed by such factors as generally accepted sound business practices,

arm’s length bargaining, Federal and state laws and regulations, and the terms and
conditions of the award;

C. Whether the individuals concerned acted with prudence in the circumstances;

d. Consistency with established policies and procedures of the Organization, deviations
from which could unjustifiably increase the costs of the award.

The cost must be “allocable” to an award by meeting one of the following criteria:

a. The cost is incurred specifically for a Federal award;

b. The cost benefits both the Federal award and other work, and can be distributed in
reasonable proportion to the benefits received; or

C. The cost is necessary to the overall operation of the Organization, except where a direct

relationship to any particular program or group of programs cannot be demonstrated.

46 101



3. The cost must conform to any limitations or exclusions of OMB Circular A-122 or the Federal
award itself.

4. Treatment of costs must be consistent with policies and procedures that apply to both Federally
financed activities and other activities of the Organization.

5. Costs must be consistently treated over time.
6. The cost must be determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
7. Costs may not be included as a cost of any other Federally financed program in the current or

prior periods.
8. The cost must be adequately documented: \
Direct Costs

Direct costs include those costs that are incurred specifically for one award or non-Federal function.
MCWIC identifies and charges these costs exclusively to each award or program.

Each invoice shall be coded with the appropriate account number reflecting which program received
direct benefit from the expenditure. Invoices are approved by the awriate project director and
reviewed by the Fiscal Manager.

Personnel activity reports (PAR’s) are also submitted on a monthly basis, reflecting employees' work
and which programs directly benefited from their effort. PAR’s shall serve as the basis for charging
salaries directly to Federal awards and non-Federal functions. See the Payroll section of this manual
for detailed procedures.

Equipment purchased for exclusive use on a Federal award and reimbursed by a Federal agency shall
be accounted for as a direct cost of that award (i.e., such equipment shall not be capitalized and
depreciated).

Indirect and Joint Costs

Indirect costs are those that have been incurred for common or joint objectives and cannot be readily
identified with a particular grant or program. Joint costs benefit more than one, but not necessarily all,
awards. Indirect costs, but not joint costs, may be allocated to benefiting grants through the use of an
indirect cost rate.

Examples of indirect costs are:
e The Accounting Department
e The Front Reception Services
e Information Technology Dept.

47 102



Examples of joint costs are:
o Shared space
e Vehicle Use

Per Federal guidelines, each grant will be charged its fair share of costs. Any costs not reimbursed by a
particular funding source will be allocated on a monthly basis utilizing the FTE allocation method.

Indirect Cost Rate

MCWIC does not currently have a federally approved indirect cost rate. Submission for federally
approved indirect rate will be done in FY 14-15.

Once MCWIC maintains an annual indirect cost budget. Each year a new indirect cost budget is
prepared and submitted to MCWIC’s Cognizant Agency for approval. The indirect cost rate approved is
used when determining the overhead applied to each Federal award.

Examples of the types of expenditures normally included in the indirect cost pool are:

General administration

Salaries and benefits of the executive officers, finance, accounting and administrative personnel
Depreciation of equipment and buildings

Office rent and maintenance

General office repairs and maintenance

abwpnp=

These rates are submitted to MCWIC’s Cognizant Agency and will be binding on all other Federal
agencies and their contracting officers unless specifically prohibited by statute.

MCWIC’s process for developing and submitting its indirect cost proposal is:

Cost Pools

Direct and joint costs are allocated to the benefiting programs using cost pools under the following
methodology:

1. Costs will be allocated to all programs on an equitable basis regardless of any limits
imposed by funding sources.

2. As much as possible, costs will be charged directly to benefiting programs.

3. All remaining shared costs will be allocated on the most meaningful measures. The
following basis will be used:

a. Facilities and related costs will be allocated based on square footage occupied

b. Costs of the Human Resources Department will be allocated based on number of
employees

c. Fiscal and accounting-related costs will be allocated based on number of transactions.

4. Program-related costs will be allocated based on direct FTE % applied to those programs.

Accounting for Specific Elements of Cost

48 103



MCWIC shall utilize the following methods of charging specific elements of cost to Federal awards as
direct or indirect costs:

Salaries and Wages — Salaries and wages shall be charged directly and indirectly based on the
functions performed by each employee, as documented on each employee’s timesheet (or personnel
activity sheet), as follows:

Direct costs — The majority of the employees of MCWIC charge their time directly since their
work is specifically identifiable to specific grants or other (non-Federal) programs or functions of
the Organization.

Indirect costs — The following staff charge 100 percent of their salary costs indirectly:

Receptionist ;
Resource Room Attendents \
Information Technology Staff

Mixed charges — The following employees may charge their salary costs to both direct and
indirect activities:

Executive Director
Administrative Assistant

Accounting Department staff \
Manage

Program staff

Compensated absences (vacation leave earned, sick leave used, and holiday pay) are considered part
of salary costs. The accounting system records salaries associated with compensated absences as a
direct or indirect cost in the same manner that salary costs are recorded.

Emplo enefits — MCWIC incurs costs for the following statutory and non-statutory employee
benefits:

o FICA

e Unemployment insurance

o Worker's compensation

e Health insurance

o Contributions to pension plan

Since the MCWIC accounting system tracks employee benefit costs by individual employee, each such
benefit cost shall be charged directly and indirectly in the same proportions as each individual’s salary.

Occupancy Expenses — Monthly rent expense and related pass-through expenses shall be allocated
directly and indirectly, based on approximate square footage of space utilized, as follows:

Direct costs — The cost of space occupied by staff whose salaries are directly charged to
Federal awards is charged directly to those same awards.

49 104



Indirect costs — The costs of space occupied by staff whose salaries are indirectly charged is
also charged indirectly. The cost of space for staff whose salaries are charged on a mixed basis
(directly and indirectly) shall be allocated on a mixed basis in the same ratio as their salaries are
allocated.

The cost of space associated with common areas, such as hallways, restrooms, and conference
rooms, shall be accounted for as an indirect cost.

Utilities — Utilities costs include electricity and water. Such utilities costs shall be charged directly and
indirectly in the same proportion as occupancy costs.

Supplies and Materials — To the maximum extent possible, office supplies and materials are charged
directly to the grant or program/function that uses the supplies or materials, based on the completion of
a supplies usage form. All supplies and materials used by staff that are engaged in indirect activities
shall be charged indirectly.

Postage and Shipping — To the maximum extent possible, postage and shipping costs shall be
charged directly to the grant or program/function that benefits from the postage or shipping costs,
based on the postage log kept near the postage machine and the UPS/FedEx shipping logs.

Photocopying and Printing — Photocopying costs include all paper and copy supplies, copier
maintenance charges and the actual lease cost of the copier. Photocopying costs shall be charged
directly and indirectly based on the user codes input into the copier prior to making photocopies.
All printing costs are charged directly to the benefiting grant or program/function.

Communications — Communications costs include the costs of local telephone service and long-
distance telephone charges, including charges associated with telephone calls, facsimile transmissions,
and Internet dial-up connections.

Local telephone service costs are charged directly and indirectly based upon the number of telephone
units assigned to MCWIC. Each telephone unit is identified to either a direct or an indirect activity, as
determined annually based on an approximation of time charges of employees associated with each
telephone unit. No telephone units shall be charged as mixed-use units due to the immateriality of the
costs involved. For example, if MCWIC has 100 telephone units and 15 of those units are assigned to
employees who work directly on a particular grant, 15 percent of each month’s local telephone service
costs shall be allocated to that grant.

Outside Services — MCWIC incurs outside service costs for its annual audit, legal fees, and for staff
development specialists. Outside service costs shall be charged as follows:

Audit fees — Cost of the financial statement audit and preparation of Form 990 shall be charged
as an indirect cost. Additional audit costs related to that portion of the audit associated with
OMB Circular A-133 shall be charged directly to the audited programs, based on estimates
received from the independent CPA firm.

Legal fees — Legal fees shall be charged directly to the program/function that benefits from the

services. Legal fees that are not identifiable with specific direct grants or programs shall be
charged indirectly.

50 105



Staff Development Specialists — Costs associated with staff development specialists shall be
charged directly to the program/function that benefits from the services. Fees that are not
identifiable with specific direct grants or programs shall be charged indirectly.

Insurance — To the extent that insurance premiums are associated with insurance coverage for
specific grants or programs, those premium costs shall be charged directly. All insurance costs that are
not identifiable with specific direct grants or programs (such as the Organization’s general liability
coverage) shall be charged indirectly.

Credits — The applicable portion of any credits resulting from cash discounts, volume discounts,
refunds, write-off of stale outstanding checks, trade-ins, scrap‘sales or similar credits shall be credited
directly or indirectly in the same manner as the purchase that resulted in the credit.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE MANAGEMENT \
Overview

MCWIC strives to maintain efficient business practices and good cost control. A well-managed
accounts payable function can assist in accomplishing this goal from the purchasing decision through
payment and check reconciliation. The following are general policies for accounts payable:

» Assets or expenses-and-the related liability are recorded by an individual who is not responsible
for ordering angieiving.

» The amounts recorded are based on the vendor invoice for the related goods or services.

= The vendor invoice should be supported by an approved purchase order where necessary, and
should be reviewed and approved by department supervisor prior to being processed for
payment.

» |nvoices and related general ledger account distribution codes are reviewed prior to posting to

‘SUbsidiary system.

The primary objective for accounts payable and cash disbursements is to ensure that:

1. Disbursements are properly authorized
2. Invoices are processed in a timely manner
3. Vendor credit terms and.operating cash are managed for maximum benefits

Recording of Accounts Payable

All valid accounts payable transactions, properly supported with the required documentation, shall be
recorded as accounts payable in a timely manner.

Accounts payable are processed on a daily basis. Information is entered into the system from approved
invoices or disbursement vouchers with appropriate documentation attached.

Only original invoices will be processed for payment unless duplicated copies have been verified as
unpaid by researching the vendor records. No vendor statements shall be processed for payment.

51 106



Establishment of Control Devices

The accounting department establishes control of invoices as soon as they are received. Vendors will
be instructed to mail (or email upon individual approval) all invoices directly to the Accounts Payable
Department.

Upon receipt, each invoice shall be “date received” stamped. Invoices are then matched up with
approved purchase orders. If no purchase order has been approved, then upon research of

purchase/invoice, requisition is created and submitted to Executive Director for approval.

Note: All purchases are required to go through the purchase order process, no matter the purchase
amount.

Payment Discounts

To the extent practical, MCWIC takes advantage of all prompt payment discounts offered by vendors.
When such discounts are available, and all required documentation in support of payment is available,
payments will be scheduled so as to take full advantage of the discounts.

Employee Expense Reports

Reimbursements for travel expenses, business meals, or other approved costs will be made only upon
the receipt of a properly approved and completed expense reimbursement form (see further policies
under “Travel and Business Entertainment”). All required receipts must be attached, and a brief
description of the business purpose of trip or meeting must be noted on the form. Expense reports will
be processed for payment in the next vendor payment cycle if received within two business days of the
deadline. Expenses older than 30 days following the end of the month the expense was incurred, will
not be reimbursed.

The accounting department will periodically check expense reports against timesheets to ensure
agreement of dates and activities.

Reconciliation of A/P Subsidiary Ledger to General Ledger
At the end of each monthly accounting period, the total amount due to vendors per the accounts
payable subsidiary ledger shall be reconciled to the total per the accounts payable general ledger
account (control account). All differences are investigated and adjustments are made as necessary.
The reconciliation and the results of the investigation of differences are reviewed and approved by the
Fiscal Manager.
Also on a monthly basis, the accounting department shall perform the following procedures:

1. Check all statements received for unprocessed invoices.

2. Check the purchase order file for open purchase orders more than 60 days old with no activity
and follow up.

52 107



Management of Accounts Payable Vendor Master File

Upon the receipt of an invoice from a new vendor that is not already in MCWIC’s Accounts Payable
Vendor Master File, the accounting department shall mail (or email) a Form W-9 and a request for
completion of the Form W-9, including the vendor’s full address and Federal employer identification
number.

All vendors to be paid during a fiscal year, the file shall include all of the following data:

Vendor’s legal name and any DBA name(s)

Street address (payments may be mailed to a P.O. Box, but a street address must be in the file)
Federal employer identification number

Telephone number

Fax number

Contact name \
Payments shall not be made to any vendor whose file does not comply with the preceding
requirements.

oo hshwdN -

On an annual basis, vendors that have not been utilized over the preceding 24-month period shall be
made inactive from the master vendor file. In addition; on an annual basis an internal audit shall be
performed of the master vendor file and of payment histories made ach vendor. This analysis, to be
performed by the Fisca‘%nager shall consist of the following procms, at a minimum:

1. Cross-checking of vendors with matching street or P.O. Box addresses
2. Review of payment histories for signs of repeat invoice numbers or other indications of duplicate
payments

TRAV‘VD BUSINESS ENTERTAINMENT

Travel Advances

Funds will be advanced for upcoming travel only upon receipt of a completed and properly approved
request for travel advance. Travel advance amount will be determined by researching actual costs to
be incurred based on conference or meeting agenda etc. Travel advances are to be used only for the
purpose intended. Travel expenses are to be made in accordance with the Organization’s travel
policies as explained later in this section.

Employees receiving travel advances are required to sign for the advance signifying their
acknowledgement of, and agreement to, these policies. Employees receiving travel advances must
submit an expense report up immediate return from required travel. Any outstanding advances more
than 30 days old that have not been confirmed with a receipt, will be deducted from an employee's next
paycheck.

An employee will not be reimbursed for expense reports not meeting the preceding criteria. If the
expense report results in a balance due to MCWIC (as a result of receiving a travel advance greater

53 108



than actual business expenditures), the employee must attach a check or sign a statement indicating
authorization to settle the balance due through a payroll deduction.

No further travel advances will be issued to any employee who has an outstanding balance due to
MCWIC from previous business trips.

Reasonableness of Travel Costs

MCWIC shall reimburse travelers only for those business-related costs that are reasonably incurred.
Accordingly, the following guidelines shall apply:

1. Suites and other upgraded rooms at hotels shall not be allowed. Travelers should stay in
standard rooms.

2. Ask hotels for any available discounts — nonprofit, government or corporate rates.

2. When utilizing rental cars, travelers should rent midsize or smaller vehicles. Share rental cars
whenever possible.

3. Business-related long-distance telephone calls while away on business travel are permitted, but
should be kept to a minimum. Expense reports should explain long-distance charges.

4. Personal long-distance calls while away on business are reimbursable if kept to a minimum,
such as one nightly call home to family. Personal calls in excess of this shall not be
reimbursed.

5. Whenever possible, travelers should utilize long-distance calling cards when placing calls while
away on travel. Avoid using the hotel’s long-distance service if possible.

6. Reasonable tips for baggage handling shall be reimbursed. No receipts are required.

7. Foreign travel charged to Federal grants must be approved in writing by the funding source prior
to travel.

CASH DISBURSEMENTS (CHECK-WRITING) POLICIES

Check Preparation
MCWIC prints vendor checks and expense reimbursement checks on a bi-weekly basis. Checks shall
be prepared by persons independent of those who initiate or approve expenditures, as well as those

who are authorized check signers.

All vendor and expense reimbursement checks shall be produced in accordance with the following
guidelines:

1. Expenditures must be supported in conformity with purchasing, accounts payable, and travel
and business entertainment policies described in this manual.

2. Timing of disbursements should generally be made to take advantage of all early-payment
discounts.

3. Generally, all vendors shall be paid within 30 days of submitting a proper invoice upon delivery
of the requested goods or services.

4, Total cash requirements associated with each check run is monitored in conjunction with

available cash balance in bank prior to the release of any checks.

54 109



5. All supporting documentation is attached to the corresponding check prior to forwarding the
entire package to an authorized check signer.

6. Checks shall be utilized in numerical order and unused checks are stored in a locked cabinet in
the accounting department.

7. Checks shall never be made payable to “bearer” or “cash.”

8. Checks shall never be signed prior to being prepared.

9. Upon the preparation of a check, vendor invoices and other supporting documentation shall

immediately be canceled in order to prevent subsequent reuse.
Check Signing

Checks shall be signed by an individual other than the one who approved the transaction for payment.
Authorized check signers must be approved by the fullboard. The Executive Director is the primary

check signer. \

Check signers should examine all original supporting documentation to ensure that each item has been
properly checked prior to signing a check. Checks should not be_ signed if supporting documentation
appears to be missing or there are any questions about a disbursement.

Equipment used to sign checks (plates, stamps, CD, etc.) will be kept in a locked drawer (safe).
Access to the equipment shall be restricted to the Fiscal Manager and the Executive Director. The
accounting department staff will request the equipment as needed. Fiscal Manager will review
check run and supporti)r%ocumentation, and initial approval. *

Mailing of Checks

After signature, checks are returned to the individual who prepared them, who then mails checks
immediately. Checks shall not be mailed by or returned to individuals who authorize expenditures.

Voided Checks and Stop Payments

Checks may be voided due to processing errors by making proper notations in the check register and
defacing the check by clearly marking it as “VOID.” All voided checks shall be retained to aid in
preparation of bank reconciliations.

Stop payment orders may be made for checks lost in the mail or other valid reasons. Stop payments
are processed by telephone instruction and written authorization to the bank by accounting personnel
with this authority. A journal entry is made to record the stop payment and any related bank fees.

Lost payments must have a completed Affidavit of Lost/Destroyed Payment form from the vendor prior
to the check being cancelled and re-issued.

55 110



SEGREGATION OF DUTIES

Control Grid — Purchasing and Dusbursements
MCWIC strives to maintain adequate segregation of duties in its purchasing and disbursements
functions. The following table illustrates how responsibilities have been assigned. In this table
personnel are identified as follows:
A. Fiscal Manager
B. Principal Account Clerk #1
C. Principal Account Clerk #2
D. Program Manager
E. Executive Director

F. Program Supervisor

G. Administrative Assistant

Duty A B C D E F

Inputs data into vendor master file X

Obtains Form W-9 from new vendors X

Authorizes purchases X X

Prepares requisition for client related X
items

Prepares requisition for operating
business related items

Prepares request for proposal X

Administers collection of proposals X

Evaluates proposals X

>

Receives vendor invoice

Approves vendor invoice X

Assigns general ledger coding X

Inputs invoice into A/P system

Selects A/P to be paid

XXX X

Runs A/P checks

Reviews checks X

Signs checks X

Mails checks X

Maintains custody of unused checks X

Reconciles A/P to general ledger X

Performs bank reconciliation X

Review cancelled checks X

56




Reviews bank reconciliations X X

CREDIT CARDS
Issuance of Corporate Credit Cards

MCWIC employees who will be using the corporate vehicle for Organization business may request a
corporate fuel credit card by contacting the administrative assistant. or manager. Cardholders will be
required to sign a statement acknowledging that the card shall be used exclusively for the corporate
vehicle. The corporate vehicle fuel cards will be kept in‘a locked drawer.

MCWIC will also have a corporate credit card which is to be used to book tn\arrangements or
authorized online payments which already have an approved purchase order.  The corporate credit
card is not to be used offsite and will be kept in the safe.

PAYROLL AND RELATED POLICIES

Payroll Administration

MCWIC operates on almi-monthly payroll. A personnel file is qstablished and maintained for all
employees with current documentation, as described throughout this section and more fully described
in MCWIC's Personnel Manual.

The following forms, documents and information shall be obtained and included in the personnel files of
all new loyees:

1 MCWIC Employment Application (and resume, if applicable)

2 Applicant references (work & personal)

3 Interview questions and notes

4 Form W-4 Employee Federal Withholding Certificate

5. Form State Withholding Certificate

6. Form 1-9 Employment Eligibility Verification

7 Copy of driver’s license

8 Copy of Social Security card issued by the Social Security Administration
9. Starting date and scheduled hours

10. Job title and starting salary

11. Authorization for direct deposit of paycheck, along with a voided check or deposit slip

For employees without a current, valid driver’s license, acceptable alternative documents shall include:

U.S. Passport

Certificate of U.S. Citizenship (INS Form N-560 or N-561)
Voter’s registration card

U.S. Military card

oM~

57 112




5. ID card issued by a Federal, state or local government, provided it contains a photo
6. School record or report card (for persons under age 18 only)

For employees without a Social Security card, acceptable alternative documents shall include:

U.S. Passport

Certificate of U.S. Citizenship (INS Form N-560 or N-561)

Original or certified copy of a birth certificate issued by a state, county or municipal authority
Certificate of Birth Abroad issued by the Department of State (Form FS-545 or Form DS-1350)
U.S. Citizen ID Card (INS Form 1-197)

Native American tribal document

ID Card for use of Resident Citizen in the United States (INS Form 1-179)

Nooahs~owd -~

All of the following changes in payroll data are to be authorized in writing:

New hires

Terminations

Changes in salaries and pay rates
Voluntary payroll deductions

Changes in income tax withholding status
Court-ordered payroll deductions

IR ol

New hires, terminations, and changes in salaries or pay rates shall be authorized in writing by the
Executive Director.

Voluntary payroll deductions and changes in income tax withholding status shall be authorized in
writing by the individual employee.

Documentation of all changes in payroll data shall be maintained in each employee’s personnel file.
If changes to be made are for the individual who is responsible for making changes in the payroll
system, then an alternate accounting department individual is to make the change in the accounting
system.

Payroll Taxes
The Accounting Department is responsible for ensuring all required tax forms are properly completed
and submitted, and that all required taxes are withheld and paid. The Accounting Department may
utilize the services of an outside payroll service center for the processing of payroll, as determined by

the Fiscal Manager.

MCWIC will obtain an updated Form W-4 from each employee in January of each year. Withholding of
Federal income taxes shall be based on the most current Form W-4 prepared by each employee.

Personnel Activity Reports (Government Grants)

58 113



MCWIC follows the guidelines in OMB Circular A-122, Attachment B.8, Compensation for Personal
Services, as well as requirements in specific grants. Therefore, salaries and wages charged to
Federal grants will be supported as follows:

1. Charges will be based on documented payrolls approved by responsible officials of the
Organization.

2. Every staff member whose compensation is charged, in whole or in part, directly or indirectly
to Federal awards, will complete activity reports that account for the total activity for which
the employee is compensated.

3. The reports will reflect an after-the-fact determination of the actual activity of each
employee. Budget estimates will not be used as support for charges to awards.

4. The reports must be signed by the individual employee or by a re&qnsible supervisor who
has first-hand knowledge of the activities performed by the employee.

5. The reports will be prepared.on a monthly basis.
6. Charges for non-exempt employees will also be supported by records required by the Fair
Labor Standards Act.

7. Salaries an%ges of employees used in meeting cost s&\g or matching (in-kind) are
supported in the same manner as salaries:and wages charged to Federal awards.

Preparation of Timesheets

Each MCWIC employee must submit to the Accounting Department a signed and approved timesheet
no late n 9:00 am on the 1st business day following the close of each pay period. Timesheets shall

be pre in accordance with the following guidelines:

1. Each timesheet shall reflect all hours worked during the pay period (time actually spent on the
job performing assigned duties), whether compensated or not.

2. Timesheets shall be prepared in ink (or electronically).

3. Errors shall be corrected by crossing through the incorrect entry, filling in the correct entry, and

placing the employee’sinitials next to the change (i.e., employees shall not use “white out” or
correction tape)

4, Employees shall identify and record hours worked based on the nature of the work performed;
5. Compensated absences (vacation, holiday, sick leave, etc.) should be clearly identified as such;
6. Timesheets shall be signed by the employee prior to submission.

After preparation, Management shall approve timesheets prior to submission to the Accounting
Department. Corrections identified by an employee’s supervisor shall be authorized by the employee by
initialing next to the change.

An Organization employee who is on leave, traveling, or is ill on the day that timesheets are due may
telephone or email timesheet information (actual time worked and the appropriate classifications) to his
or her supervisor (or designated alternate). The employee must initial a timesheet submitted in this

59 114



manner immediately upon his/her return to the office. Timesheets submitted in this manner shall bear
the notation, "Time reported by telephone or e-mail by (employee) to (supervisor or designated
alternate)." The timesheet shall be signed by the supervisor or the designated alternate.

Pay periods are as follows:
1t through 15" - pay date 20"
16"™  through End of Month - pay date 5" of following month

Processing of Timesheets

The accounting department will process the timesheets by checking them for mathematical accuracy
(not required if timesheets are electronic), then entering all timesheets into the payroll system.

The accounting department may not change or correct timesheets. When errors are noted, if a
corrected and approved timesheet is not resubmitted in time to the accounting department, the
employee may not receive a pay check until the next pay period.

Tampering with, altering, or falsifying time records, recording time on another employee's time record,
or willfully violating any other timesheet policy or procedure may result in disciplinary action, up to and
including discharge.

Review of Payroll
Upon production of all payroll reports from payroll service, the Fiscal Manager or Executive Director
reviews payroll prior to processing. The Fiscal Manager or Executive Director shall sign the payroll
register, indicating approval of the payroll submission.
Distribution of Payroll
Payroll payments (or check stubs for electronic deposits) shall be distributed by individuals who do not
approve timesheets, are not responsible for hiring and firing, and do not control the preparation of
payroll.
Internal Audit of Payroll Data
MCWIC will conduct an annual internal audit of certain payroll data. This internal audit shall be

performed by the Fiscal Manager. The purpose of this internal audit is to determine the integrity of the
Organization’s payroll records. The internal audit shall include the following procedures:

1. Tracing a sample of salaries, withholdings, deductions, and direct deposit information to
supporting documentation in each selected employee’s payroll and/or personnel file.

2. Tracing a sample of new hires and departures to personnel files, including verification of first
and last pay dates.

3. Cross-checking the payroll master files for employees with identical addresses, social security

numbers, or direct deposit bank account information.
SEGREGATION OF DUTIES

60 115



Control Grid — Payroll and Human Resources
MCWIC strives to maintain adequate segregation of duties in its payroll and human resources
functions. The following table illustrates how responsibilities have been assigned. In this table,
personnel are identified as follows:
A. Executive Director
B. Fiscal Manager
C. Principal Account Clerk #1

D. Principal Account Clerk #2

E. Payroll Service

Duty

Authorize new hires

Authorize salary adjustments

XXX >

Authorize terminations

XXX X

Sets up new employee in P/R system ;
Enters salary adjustments to P/R system \
Enters direct depositwlR system

Deletes terminated e ees from P/R

Review changes to payroll master file ’ X

Approves timesheets X
Enters timesheets \ X

Reviews input of timesheet data

Revie ribution of time

XX | X

Reviews oll register
Signs payroll register for Direct osit X

Processing

Has access to unused payroll checks X

Reviews annual W-2 Report X X

Distributes annual W-2 forms

POLICIES PERTAINING TO SPECIFIC ASSET ACCOUNTS

61

116




CASH AND CASH MANAGEMENT
Cash Accounts

General Checking Account (operating account):

The primary operating account provides for routine business check disbursements. All cash and credit
card deposits are made to this account.

Cash transfers are done on an as needed basis to cover disbursements.

In addition, all advances of Federal funds shall be deposited in an interest-bearing account and interest
earned in excess of $100 shall be returned to the awarding agency. Interest earned on such funds will
be allocated to Federal awards based on the percentage of funds received during the month for each
award.

Payroll Account:

The payroll account is separate from the operating account. As such, only the amount needed to cover
each payroll is transferred into this account from the operating account, based on the amount
calculated and communicated by the outside payroll service center.

Transfers from the operating account into the payroll account are initiated by the Fiscal Manager and
authorized by the Executive Director.

Authorized Signers

The following MCWIC personnel are authorized to sign checks drawn on the general operating and
payroll accounts:

Elaine Craig, Executive Director — Primary Signature
Tracie Scott-Contreras, Program Manager — 1st Emergency Backup Signature
Jessica Roche, Fiscal Manager — 2™ Emergency Backup Signature

Fiscal Manager or Executive Director will promptly notify the Organization’s financial institutions of
changes in authorized signatures upon the departure of any authorized signer. Refer to the section
titled “Check Signing” for procedures.

Bank Reconciliations
Bank account statements are received each month and forwarded to the Fiscal Manager. The Fiscal
Manager shall open the statement and review its contents for unusual or unexplained items, such as
unusual endorsements on checks, indications of alterations to checks, etc. Unusual or unexplained

items shall be reported immediately to the Board Chair.

After this review is complete, the entire bank statement is forwarded to the Accounting Department,
where a reconciliation between the bank balance and general ledger balance is prepared by someone

62 117



who is not an authorized check signer. The bank reconciliation process will be completed within one
week of receipt of each bank statement.

The reconciliation process shall involve an inspection of the fronts and backs of cancelled checks
returned with the bank statement. The purpose of this inspection is to identify signs of forgery, altered
or substitute checks, unusual endorsements, or other signs of fraudulent activity. If the Organization’s
financial institution does not return original cancelled checks or paper copies thereof, the person
preparing the monthly bank reconciliation shall view electronic copies of cancelled checks provided by
the financial institution via CD-ROM or Internet access to the Institution’s web site.

All bank reconciliations, including any adjusting journal entries resulting from preparing bank
reconciliations, and statements are reviewed and initialed:by the Executive Director on a monthly basis.

Bank reconciliations, cancelled checks, and copies of resulting journal entrieifre filed in the current
year's accounting files.

Cash Flow Management

The Fiscal Manager monitors cash flow needs on a weekly basis to eliminate idle funds and to ensure
that payment obligations can be met. Cash transfers between accounts are performed on an as-
needed basis.

MCWIC adheres to the?quirements of its grants which.may prohibimmng funds between programs,
therefore, cash management and reporting is performed at the program level as well as for the
Organization as a whole.

Stale Checks

MCWI | write off checks. of $50 or less that are more than 6 months old that have not cleared the
Organi n's bank. For uncashed checks that are more than 6 months old and that exceed $50,
contact will be made with the payee to resolve the issue.

All stale checks that are written off within the same fiscal year as they were written shall be
credited/abated back to the same expense or asset account that was debited when the check was
written, or the expenditure.incurred. For stale checks written off in fiscal years subsequent to the year in
which the check was written, the credit shall be to miscellaneous income. For stale checks funded from
Federal funds, the funds must be returned back to the awarding agency.

MCWIC will also comply with the California laws regarding unclaimed property. Accordingly, if

uncashed checks are subject to a state reporting and transfer requirement, the Organization shall file
all appropriate forms and remit unclaimed property to the appropriate jurisdiction.

Petty Cash

MCWIC does not maintain a petty cash fund. Creation of petty cash would require board approval.

63 118



Wire Transfers

The Fiscal Manager and the Executive Director shall be the only MCWIC employees authorized to
transact wire transfers from MCWIC bank accounts. The bank currently requires the use of pass codes
that require a 2 person approval process. One person initiates the transaction, but then the bank
system submits a pass code to other authorized individual. That individual then needs to present the
pass code to the initiator so the wire transfer can be completed. Pass codes, issued only to the Fiscal
Manager and Executive Director are assigned by the bank and are changed on each occurance.

Email confirmations of all banking transactions are automatically sent to each Principal Account Clerk.

PREPAID EXPENSES
Accounting Treatment

MCWIC treats payments of expenses that have a time-sensitive future benefit as prepaid expenses and
will amortize these items over the corresponding time period.

Prepaid expenses with future benefits that expire within one year from the date of the financial
statements shall be classified as current assets. Prepaid expenses that benefit future periods beyond
one year from the financial statement date shall be classified as non-current assets.

Procedures
As part of the account coding process performed during the processing of accounts payable, all
incoming vendor invoices shall be reviewed for the existence of time-sensitive future benefits. If future
benefits are identified, the payment shall be coded to a prepaid expense account code.
The Accounting Department shall maintain a schedule of all prepaid expenses. The schedule shall
indicate the amount and date paid, the period covered by the prepayment, the purpose of the

prepayment, and the monthly amortization. This schedule shall be reconciled to the general ledger
balance as part of the monthly closeout process.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Capitalization Policy
Physical assets acquired with unit costs in excess of $5,000 are capitalized as property and equipment
on the Organization’s financial statements. Items with unit costs below this threshold shall be

expensed in the year purchased.

If an awarding agency requires a lower amount for equipment, MCWIC will adhere to that dollar amount
only for that program or contract.

Capitalized property and equipment additions are accounted for at their historical cost and all such
assets, except land, are subject to depreciation over their estimated useful lives, as described later.

64 119



Capitalized assets will be reported as expensed for grants if they were so budgeted in the grant
application. However, for the Organization’s financial statements, these assets will be capitalized and
depreciated according to these policies.

Contributed Assets

Assets with fair market values in excess of $5,000 (per unit) that are contributed to MCWIC shall be
capitalized as fixed assets on the financial statements. Contributed items with market values below this
threshold shall be expensed in the year contributed.

Capitalized contributed assets are accounted for at their market value at the time of donation and all
such assets, except land and certain works of art and historical treasures, are subject to depreciation
over their estimated useful lives, as described later.

Equipment and Furniture Purchased With Federal Funds (Per OMCirc. A-110_34)

MCWIC may occasionally purchase equipment and furniture that will be used exclusively on a program
funded by a Federal agency. In addition to those policies on Asset Management described earlier,
equipment and furniture charged to Federal.awards will be subject to certain additional policies as
described below.

For purposes of Federal award accounting and administration, "equipment" shall include all assets with
a unit cost equal to the lesser of $5,000 or the capitalization thresho&ilized by MCWIC, described
under Asset Managem&ij6

All purchases of “equipment” with Federal funds shall be approved, in advance and in writing, by the
Federal awarding agency. In addition, the following policies shall apply regarding equipment purchased
and charged to Federal awards:

1.
charge*

2. For equipment (or residual inventories of supplies) with a remaining per unit fair market value of
$5,000 or less at the conclusion of the award, MCWIC shall retain the equipment without any
requirement for notifying the Federal agency.

uate insurance coverage will be maintained with respect to equipment and furniture
ederal awards.

3. If the remaining per unit fair market value is $5,000 or more, MCWIC shall gain a written
understanding with the Federal agency regarding disposition of the equipment. This
understanding may involve returning the equipment to the Federal agency, keeping the
equipment and compensating the Federal agency, or selling the equipment and remitting the
proceeds, less allowable selling costs, to the Federal agency.

4. The Fiscal Manager shall determine whether a specific award with a Federal agency includes

additional equipment requirements or thresholds and requirements that differ from those
described above.

65 120



5. A physical inventory of all equipment purchased with Federal funds shall be performed at least
once every two years. The results of the physical inventory shall be reconciled to the accounting
records of and Federal reports filed by MCWIC.

Establishment and Maintenance of a Fixed Asset Listing (Government Grants)

All capitalized property and equipment shall be recorded in a property log. This log shall include the
following information with respect to each asset: (OMB Circ. A-110_34 (f)(1))

1. Date of acquisition

2. Cost

3. Description (including color, model, and serial number or other identification number)
4, Source of the equipment, including the Federal award number, if applicable

5. Whether the title vests in the Organization or the Federal Government

6. Information to calculate the Federal share of the cost of the equipment, if applicable
7. Location of asset

8. Depreciation method

9. Estimated useful life

A physical inventory of all assets capitalized under the preceding policies will be taken on an annual
basis by MCWIC. This physical inventory shall be reconciled to the property log and adjustments made
as necessary. All adjustments resulting from this reconciliation will be approved by the Fiscal Manager.

Receipt of Newly-Purchased Equipment and Furniture
At the time of arrival, all newly-purchased equipment and furniture shall be examined for obvious
physical damage. If an asset appears damaged or is not in working order, it shall be returned to the

vendor immediately.

In addition, descriptions and quantities of assets per the packing slip or bill of lading shall be compared
to the assets delivered. Discrepancies should be resolved with the vendor immediately.

Depreciation and Useful Lives
All capitalized assets are maintained in the special property and equipment account group and are not
included as an operating expense. Property and equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful

lives using the straight-line method.

In the year of acquisition, depreciation is recorded based on the number of months the asset is in
service, counting the month of acquisition as a full month (Example: an asset purchased on the 15" day

66 121



of the fifth month shall have eight full months of depreciation (eight-twelfths of one year) recorded for
that year.)

Estimated useful lives of capitalized assets shall be determined by the Accounting Department in
conjunction with the department or employee that shall utilize the asset. The following is a list of the
estimated useful lives of each category of fixed asset for depreciation purposes:

Furniture and fixtures Up to 10 yrs

General office equipment 5yrs

Computer hardware and peripherals 3-5 yrs

Computer software 2-3 yrs

Leased assets life of lease
Leasehold Improvements remaining lease term

Alternatively, at the direction of the Fiscal Manager, capitalized assets may Mepreciated over useful
lives expressed in terms of units of production or hours of service in place of the preceding useful lives
expressed in terms of time.

For accounting and interim financial reporting purposes, depreciation expense will be recorded on a
monthly basis.

Changes in Estimated Useful Li

If it becomes apparent‘é the useful life of a particular capitalized asset will be less than the life
originally established, an adjustment to the estimated useful life shall be made. All such changes in
estimated useful lives of capitalized assets must be approved by the Executive Director.

When a change in estimated useful life is made, the new life is used for purposes of calculating annual
depreci expense. In the year in which the change.in estimate is made, the cumulative effect of the
chang Il be reflected as depreciation expense in'the Organization’s statement of activities.

For example, if in the fourth year of an asset’s life, it is determined that the asset will last five years
instead of the original estimate of seven years, depreciation expense for that year shall be equal to the
difference between 4/5 of the asset’s basis (accumulated depreciation at the end of year four) and 3/7
of the asset’s basis (accumulated depreciation at the beginning of the year).

Repairs of Property and Equipment

Expenditures to repair capitalized assets shall be expensed as incurred if the repairs do not materially
add to the value of the property or materially prolong the estimated useful life of the property.

Expenditures to repair capitalized assets shall be capitalized if the repairs increase the value of
property, prolong its estimated useful life, or adapt it to a new or different use. Such capitalized repair
costs shall be depreciated over the remaining estimated useful life of the property. If the repairs
significantly extend the estimated useful life of the property, the original cost of the property shall also
be depreciated over its new, extended useful life.

67 122



Dispositions of Property and Equipment

If equipment is sold, scrapped, donated or stolen, adjustments need to be made to the fixed asset
listing and property log. If money is received for the asset, then the difference between the money
received and the "book value" (purchase price less depreciation) of the asset will be recorded as a loss
(if the money received is less than the book value) or a gain (if the money received is more than the
book value).

Write-Offs of Property and Equipment

The Executive Director approves the disposal of all capitalized fixed assets that may be worn-out or
obsolete. Property that is discovered to be missing or stolen will be reported immediately to the Fiscal
Manager. If not located, this property will be written off the books with the proper notation specifying
the reason.

Impairment Losses

It is the policy of the organization to recognize an impairment loss in the statement of activities with
respect to any property and equipment whose carrying amount (net book value) possesses both of the
following characteristics:

1. The amount is not recoverable and
2. The amount exceeds fair value.

If only one of the preceding characteristics is present, an impairment loss will not be recorded. In
determining whether a carrying amount is recoverable, all future cash inflows shall be considered,
including cash flows from operations attributable to the asset, as well as cash flows from the sale of the
asset. In cases in which no cash flows are directly attributable to an asset, the first characteristic is
considered to have been met, and the determination of whether an impairment loss has been incurred
will be based on the fair market value criterion.

Impairments are distinguishable from changes in estimates resulting from a determination that a
depreciable asset will be useful for a shorter period of time than the original estimate (changes in
estimated useful lives were explained earlier). When an impairment loss is incurred, the loss is
recognized in the statement of activities in the period of the loss and the carrying amount of the long-
lived asset is adjusted downward to the revised amount. If the asset is a depreciable asset, this lesser
amount shall then be used for purposes of calculating future depreciation or amortization expense.

LEASES
Classification of Leases
MCWIC classifies all leases in which the Organization is a lessee as either capital or operating leases.

MCWIC shall utilize the criteria described in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13 in
determining whether a lease is capital or operating in nature. Under those criteria, a lease shall be

68 123



treated as a capital lease if, at the time of entering into the lease, any of the following factors are
present:

1. The lease transfers ownership to MCWIC at the end of the lease term;

2. The lease contains a bargain purchase option;

3. The lease term is equal to 75% or more of the estimated economic life of the leased property; or
4. The present value of the minimum lease payments is 90% or more of the fair value of the leased

property (using, as the interest rate, the lesser of MCWIC's incremental borrowing rate or, if
known, the lessor's implicit rate).

All leases that do not possess any of the four preceding characteristics shall be treated as operating
leases. In addition, all leases that are immaterial.in nature shall be accounted for as operating leases.

Note: Workforce Investment Act funds does not allow the funds to be used to purchase or ‘lease to
purchase’ of property.

Reasonableness of Leases (Government Grant Purposes Only)

MCWIC assess the value of leases according to the requirements 0 B Circ. A-122_43 as follows:
= The rate is reasonable when compared to similar property inWsame area,
=  The rate of any‘ﬁrnatives, and
» The type, life expectancy, condition and value of the property leased.

Rental arrangements will be reviewed every 3 to 5 years to determine if circumstances have changed
and other options are available.

Accounting for Leases

All leases that are classified as operating leases and immaterial capital leases shall be accounted for
as expenses in the period in which the lease payment is due.

All leases that are classified as capital leases shall be treated as fixed asset additions. As such, upon
the inception of a capital lease; MCWIC shall record a capitalized asset and a liability under the lease,
based on the net present value of the minimum lease payments (or the fair value of the leased asset, if
it is less than the present value of the lease payments). Periodic lease payments shall be allocated
between a reduction in the lease obligation and interest expense. The capitalized asset recorded under
a capital lease shall be depreciated over the term of the lease, using the straight-line method of
depreciation.

MCWIC shall also maintain a control list of all operating and capital leases. This list shall include all
relevant lease terms, including a schedule of future annual lease payments obligations.

69 124



WEB SITE COSTS

Costs to Be Expensed As Incurred

Many costs associated with the Organization’s web site are to be expensed as incurred, rather than
capitalized, including the loading of content into the designed pages, as well as:

1.

Planning stage costs, such as:

~@P o0 TD

Development of a project or business plan

Determining functionalities or specifications of the site

Determining hardware and technology requirements

Conceptual formulation of graphics and content

Evaluation and selection of vendors

Addressing legal considerations, such as copyright and trademark issues

Operating costs, such as:

ST TQ M0 00

Training employees involved in support of the site
Registering the site with search engines

User administration activities

Updating site graphics

Performing backups

Creating new links

Verifying that links are functioning properly

Adding new functionalities or features (however, see below)
Performing routine security reviews

Performing routine analysis

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Acquisition of Intangible Assets

Intangible assets include a variety of items, such as copyrights, service marks, trademarks, license
agreements, photographs, videos, and others. The Organization may acquire intangible assets in any
of the following manners:

1.

2.

4.

Via contribution from a donor

By purchase from an outside party that holds title to an intangible asset

By internally developing an intangible asset through utilization of the Organization’s employees,
volunteers, and contractors (e.g. an employee writes a document on behalf of the Organization)

70 125



Accounting for Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired via contribution from donors shall be accounted for as assets measured at
fair value at the date of the gift (see “fair value accounting procedures” for a description of internal
controls over the establishment of fair values).

Intangible assets acquired by purchase shall be capitalized as assets at the purchase price paid for
such assets.

The costs of intangible assets that are developed internally shall be charged to expense (not
capitalized) if any of the following criteria are met:

1. The intangible asset is not specifically identifiable
2. The asset has an indeterminate life, or \
3. The asset is inherent in the Organization and related to the Organization taken as a whole.

Costs of internally-developed intangible assets not meeting any of the three preceding criteria shall be
capitalized. These costs may include salaries, allocated employee benefit costs, consultant fees, and
other related costs.

/ Amortization \

Capitalized intangible assets of the Organization shall be classified into one of three categories, as
follows:

1. Assets with finite. and precise useful lives (such as a license agreement with a fixed term)
2. ts with finite, but imprecise, useful lives
3. Assets with indefinite useful lives

Intangible assets with finite and precise useful lives shall be amortized over their useful lives, using the
straight-line method of amortization.

For intangible assets with finite, but imprecise, useful lives, the organization shall estimate a useful life
and amortize the asset over that life, using the straight-line method of amortization.

For either of the two preceding categories of amortizable intangible assets, the Organization shall
evaluate the useful life on an annual basis to determine whether an adjustment of the useful life is
appropriate.

For intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, the cost of the asset shall remain on the books of the
Organization as an asset, without reducing this basis for amortization, until such time as an impairment
in the value of the asset is determined to have occurred. See the next section for a description of the
Organization’s policies and procedures associated with asset impairments.

71 126



In addition, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives shall be evaluated on an annual basis for
purposes of determining whether the previously indefinite useful life has become finite and estimable
(e.g. a copyright that when initially acquired had an indefinite life, but which has become dated and now
has a finite remaining useful life). If it is determined that any intangible asset previously accounted for
as having an indefinite useful has become an asset with a finite and estimable useful life, the
Organization shall begin amortizing the intangible asset over the estimated remaining useful life (i.e.
rather than recording an impairment in the value of the asset).

POLICIES PERTAINING TO LIABILITY AND NET ASSET ACCOUNTS

ACCRUED LIABILITIES

72 127



Identification of Liabilities

The Accounting Department shall establish a list of commonly incurred expenses that may have to be
accrued at the end of an accounting period. Some of the expenses that shall be accrued by MCWIC at
the end of an accounting period are:

e Salaries and wages (annually)
e Payroll taxes (annually)

¢ Vacation pay (annually)

¢ Rent (monthly)

¢ Interest on notes payable

In addition, MCWIC shall record a liability for deferred revenue (revenue received but not yet earned) in
accordance with the revenue recognition policies described elsewhere in thiwanual. Adjustments to
deferred revenue accounts shall be made monthly.

Accrued Leave
Personnel policies permit employees to carry.forward up to 200 hours of unused vacation leave from

year to year. Such unused leave is payable to an.employee upon termination of employment.

liability at the end of an accounting period shall equal the total earne t unused hours of leave, up to
a maximum of 200 hours, multiplied by each employee’s current hourly pay rate.

Accordingly, MCWIC records a liability for accrued leave to which e%yees are entitled. The total
d

Leave that does not “vest” with employees (i.e., leave that is not paid to employees if unused at the
time of termination of employment),'such as sick leave, shall not be accrued as a liability.

|Ncorv‘axes PAYABLE
Accrual of Income Taxes

MCWIC is exempt from federal income taxes. However, if MCWIC generates taxable income from
unrelated trade or business activities, a liability for income taxes payable shall be accrued at the
applicable corporate income tax rates.

All income taxes payable shall be paid by the due date of the returns on which such income taxes are
to be reported. If MCWIC becomes subject to a requirement to remit estimated income taxes on a
quarterly basis, such amounts shall be accrued and paid quarterly.

Income Tax Positions

MCWIC takes several “income tax positions” that are reflected in the organization’s financial
statements. The primary income tax positions of MCWIC are:

1. That MCWIC qualifies for its exemption from income taxes under IRC section 501(c)(3),
meaning, it has not engaged in any activity that could result in revocation of this exemption

73 128



2. That none of MCWIC’s forms of revenue is subject to the unrelated business income tax.

3. That MCWIC has properly determined which forms of revenue are subject to the unrelated
business income tax and which forms of revenue are exempt from UBIT

4, That the calculations of income, deductions, tax credits, and other amounts reported on Form
990-T are in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code and IRS regulations

5. That MCWIC’s calculations of income, deductions, etc. reported on its state income tax return
are in compliance with state laws and regulations

6. That MCWIC’s allocation of gross taxable income by state is in compliance with all applicable
state laws and regulations (i.e. the organization is filing state returns in each state that would
require a return)

It is the policy of MCWIC that all income tax positions taken by the organization shall meet the “more
likely than not” criterion of FIN 48, meaning, the organization’s management believes that it is more
likely than not that the applicable taxing authorities would concur with the position taken by the
organization. In reaching this determination, the Fiscal Manager shall perform whatever tax research is
considered necessary and shall have the authority to engage the Organization’s independent CPA firm
or other outside experts for advice on such matters.

If the Organization receives advice and/or research from an outside party in connection with this policy,
the organization shall make its own final determination of whether or not to take a particular income tax
position. In doing so, it shall not blindly rely on outside advice. Rather, the organization shall gain a
complete understanding of the conclusions reached by any outside parties in providing counsel to the
organization in connection with this policy. Gaining this understanding and forming the income tax
positions of MCWIC shall be the responsibility of the Fiscal Manager.

The Fiscal Manager shall provide a briefing to the Board of Directors and obtains the board’s
concurrence each time an income tax position is established or changed.

NOTES PAYABLE

General Policy

MCWIC requires that all notes payable be approved by the Board of Directors and signed by the
Executive Director.

Recordkeeping
MCWIC maintains a schedule of all notes payable, mortgage obligations, lines of credit, and other
financing arrangements. This schedule shall be based on the underlying loan documents and shall

include all of the following information:

1. Name and address of lender
2. Date of agreement or renewal/extension

74 129



Total amount of debt or available credit
Amounts and dates borrowed

Description of collateral, if any

Interest rate

Repayment terms

Maturity date

Address to which payments should be sent
0. Contact person at lender

SO0 NO kAW

Accounting and Classification

An amortization schedule shall be maintained for each note payable. Based upon the amortization
schedule, the principal portion of payments due with the next year shall be classified as a current
liability in the statement of financial position. The principal portion of payments due beyond one year
shall be classified as long-term/non-current liabilities in the statement of financial position.

Demand notes and any other notes without established repayment dates shall always be classified as
current liabilities.

Unpaid interest expense shall be accrued as a liability at the end of each accounting period.

A detailed record of all principal and interest payments made over the entire term shall be maintained
with respect to each note payable: Periodically, the amounts reflectzx current and long-term notes
payable per the general ledger shall be reconciled to these payment schedules and the amortization
schedules, if any, provided by the lender. All differences shall be investigated.

Non-Interest-Bearing Notes Payable

Asac ble organization, MCWIC may, from time-to-time, receive notes payable that do not require
the pa t of interest, orthat require the payment of a below-market rate of interest for the type of
obligation involved. In such cases, MCWIC will record contribution income for any unpaid interest.

For demand loans, recording of interest expense and contribution income shall be performed at the end
of each accounting period, based on the outstanding principal balance of the loan during that period,
multiplied by the difference between a normal interest rate for that type of loan and the rate, if any, that
is required to be paid. Determination of the appropriate interest rate shall be performed by the Fiscal
Manager.

For loans with fixed maturities or payment dates, the note payable shall be recorded at the present
value of the future principal payments, using as a discount rate equal to the difference between a
normal interest rate for that type of loan and the rate, if any, required to be paid. The difference
between the cash proceeds of the note and the present value shall be recorded as temporarily
restricted contribution income in the period the loan is made. Thereafter, interest expense shall be
recorded in each accounting period using the effective interest method, with the corresponding credit
entry increasing the note payable account to reflect the amount(s) that shall be repaid.

75 130



NET ASSETS
Classification of Net Assets

Net assets of the Organization shall be classified based upon the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor imposed stipulations.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor imposed stipulations that
may or will be satisfied through the actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor imposed stipulations that
the Organization permanently maintain certain contributed assets. Generally, donors of such
assets permit the Organization to use all or part of the income earned from permanently
restricted net assets for general operations or for specific purposes. Permanent restrictions do
not pass with the expiration of time, nor can they be removed through the Organization’s
actions.

Net assets accumulated that are not subject to donor imposed restrictions, but which the Board of
Directors of the Organization has earmarked for specific uses, shall be segregated in the accounting
records as "board-designated" funds within the unrestricted category of net assets.

Restrictions may be associated with either a time period (e.g. a particular future time period) or a
purpose (e.g. specific programs). A purpose stipulation will be considered a restriction only if it is more
specific than the broad limits resulting from the nature of the Organization, the environment in which it
operates, and the purposes specified in MCWIC's Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws.

Reclassifications from Restricted to Unrestricted Net Assets

The Organization shall report in its statement of activities a reclassification from restricted to
unrestricted net assets if any of the following events occur:

1. Fulfillment of the purpose for which the net assets were restricted (e.g. spending restricted
funds for the stipulated purpose)

2. Expiration of time restrictions imposed by donors
3. Death of an annuity beneficiary
4. Withdrawal by the donor (or by a court) of a time or purpose restriction

If a donor stipulates multiple restrictions (such as a purpose and a time restriction), reclassifications
from temporarily restricted to unrestricted net assets shall be reported only upon the satisfaction of the
final remaining restriction.

Reclassifications from Unrestricted to Restricted Net Assets

76 131



If the Organization receives a restricted contribution from a donor who further stipulates that the
Organization set aside a portion of its unrestricted net assets for that same purpose, the Organization
shall report in its statement of activities a reclassification of net assets from unrestricted to temporarily
or permanently restricted, based on the specific nature of the restriction.

Disclosures

The Organization discloses in a footnote to the financial statements the different types of temporary
and permanent restrictions associated with the Organization’s net assets as of the end of each fiscal

year.

¢

<
A\

77 132



POLICIES ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL AND TAX REPORTING

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Standard Financial Statements of the Organization

Preparing financial statements and communicating key financial information is a necessary and critical
accounting function. Financial statements are management tools used in making decisions, in
monitoring the achievement of financial objectives, and as a standard method for providing information
to interested parties external to the Organization. Financial statements may reflect year-to-year
historical comparisons or current year budget to actual comparisons.

The basic financial statements that are maintained on an organization-wide basis shall include:

1. Statement of Financial Position - reflects assets, liabilities, and net assets of the Organization
and classifies assets and liabilities as current or non-current/long-term.

2. Statement of Activities - presents support, revenues, expenses, and other changes in net
assets of the Organization, by category of net asset (unrestricted, temporarily restricted and
permanently restricted), including reclassifications between categories of net assets.

3. Statement of Cash Flows - reports the cash inflows and outflows of the Organization in three
categories: operating activities, investing activities, and financing activities.

4. Statement of Functional Expenses — presents the expenses of the Organization in a natural
or objective format and by function (i.e., which program or supporting service was served).

Frequency of Preparation

The objective of the Accounting Department is to prepare accurate financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles and distribute them in a timely and cost-effective manner.
In meeting this responsibility, the following policies shall apply:

A standard set of financial statements described in the preceding section shall be produced on a
monthly basis, by the 20" of each month. The standard set of financial statements described in the
preceding section shall be supplemented by the following schedules:

1. Individual statements of activities on a departmental and functional basis (and/or program/grant
basis)
2. Comparisons of actual year-to-date revenues and expenses with year-to-date budgeted amounts

The monthly set of financial statements shall be prepared on the modified accrual method of accounting,
including all receivables, accounts payable received by the 10™ of the month, and actual depreciation
expense.

78 133



Review and Distribution

All financial statements and supporting schedules shall be reviewed and approved by the Fiscal
Manager prior to being issued by the Accounting Department.

After approval by the Fiscal Manager, a complete set of monthly financial statements, including the
supplemental schedules described above, shall be distributed to the following individuals:

= Executive Director
= Department Directors and any other employee with budget-monitoring responsibilities

Financial statements may include an additional supplemental schedule prepared or compiled by the
Fiscal Manager. The purpose of this schedule is to provide known explanations for material budget
variances in accordance with MCWIC’s budget monitoring policies described later in this manual (under
the “Financial Management Policies” section). \

Monthly Distribution

On a monthly basis, the Board of Directors will be provided with summary program and/or grant
financial information.

Special Quarterly [Semi-Annual] Distribution

On a quarterly basis, a plete set of MCWIC financial statements ans supplemental schedules shall
be distributed to the entire Board of Directors.

Quarterly financial statements distributed.to the board shall include an additional supplemental
schedule prepared or.compiled by the Fiscal Manager. The purpose of this schedule is to provide
explanations for material budget variances in accordance with MCWIC’s budget monitoring policies
descri ter in this manual.(under the “Financial Management Policies” section).

Annual Financial Statements

On an annual basis, the Organization shall prepare, under the direction of the Fiscal Manager a
complete set of GAAP financial statements, including footnotes addressing all disclosures required by
GAAP. These financial statements shall be presented to MCWIC’s independent auditors at the
beginning of their annual audit as the draft statements from which they will conduct their audit.

A formal presentation of the Organization's annual financial statements shall be provided by the
Independent Auditor to the full Board of Directors at the Organization’s Annual Meeting. This
presentation will be preceded by a meeting with the Finance Committee, at which the Finance
Committee will vote to accept or reject the annual financial statements. See separate policies regarding
the annual audit under “Financial Management Policies.”

79 134



GOVERNMENT RETURNS
Overview

To legitimately conduct business, MCWIC must be aware of its tax and information return filing
obligations and comply with all such requirements of Federal, state and local jurisdictions. Filing
requirements of MCWIC include, but are not limited to, filing annual information returns with IRS (if
applicable), state charitable solicitation reports, annual reports for corporations, property tax returns,
income tax returns, sales tax returns, information returns for retirement plans, annual reporting of
compensation paid, and payroll tax withholding tax returns.

Filing of Returns

The Fiscal Manager shall be responsible for identifying all filing requirements and assuring that MCWIC
is in compliance with all such requirements. The Organization will file complete and accurate returns
with all authorities and make all efforts to avoid filing misleading, inaccurate, or incomplete returns.

Filings made by MCWIC include, but are not limited to, the following returns:

1. Form 990 - Annual information return of tax-exempt organizations, filed with IRS. Form 990 for
MCWIC is due on the fifteenth day of the fifth month following year-end. An automatic 3-month
extension of time to file Form 990 may be obtained filing Form 8868. Upon expiration of the first
3-month extension, a second 3-month extension may be requested using Form 8868.

2. W-2's and 1099's - Annual report of employee and non-employee compensation, based on
calendar-year compensation, on the cash basis. These information returns are due to
employees and independent contractors by January 31 and to Federal Government by February
28. Generally, Form 1099 is required only if the organization has provided more than $600 in
compensation to an independent contractor during the calendar year.

3. Form 941 - Quarterly payroll tax return filed with IRS to report wages paid to employees and
Federal payroll taxes. Form 941 is due by the end of the month following the end of each quarter, or

10 days later if all payroll tax deposits have been made in a timely manner during the quarter.

MCWIC's fiscal and tax year-end is June 30. All annual tax and information returns of MCWIC (Form
990) are filed on the accrual basis of reporting and is prepared by the organizations designated CPA.

Federal and all applicable state payroll tax returns are prepared by the Organization's external Payroll
Administrator.

MCWIC complies with all state payroll tax requirements by withholding and remitting payroll taxes to the
state of residency of each MCWIC employee.

Review of Form 990 by Board of Directors

80 135



A draft of MCWIC’s annual Form 990 information return shall be reviewed and approved by the Board
of Directors prior to being filed with the Internal Revenue Service. This review and approval shall be
documented with the signature of the Board/Committee Chair.

Public Access to Information Returns

Under regulations that became effective in 1999, MCWIC is subject to Federal requirements to make
the following forms "widely available" to all members of the general public:

1.

The three most recent annual information returns (Form990), excluding the list of significant
donors (Schedule B) that is attached to the Form 9904 but including the accompanying
Schedule A, and

MCWIC's original application for recognition.of its tax-exempt status Q)\rm 1023 or Form 1024),
filed with IRS, and all accompanying schedules and attachments.

MCWIC adheres to the following guidelines in order to comply with the preceding public disclosure
requirements:

1.

Anyone appearing in person at the offices.of MCWIC during normal working hours making a
request to inspect the forms will be granted access to a file copy of the forms. The Fiscal
Manager shall be responsible for maintaining this copy of ea\form and for making it available

to all requesterf/

For all written requests for copies of forms received by MCWIC, the Organization shall require
prepayment of all copying and shipping charges. For requests for copies that are received
without prepayment, MCWIC will notify the requester of this policy via phone call or by letter
within 7 days of receipt of the original request.

copying cost charged for providing copies of requested forms shall be $1.00 for the first
page copies and $0.15 for each subsequent page. All copies shall be shipped to requesters via
Priority Mail, thus, shipping charges will be a standard $5.00 per shipment.

After payment is received, all requested copies shall be shipped to requesters within 30 days.
Making of all copies and shipping within the 30-day time period shall be the responsibility of the
Accounting Department.

For requests for copies made in person during normal business hours, copies shall be provided
while the requester waits.

MCWIC shall accept cash, certified checks, money orders, or personal checks for requests for

copies made in person. MCWIC shall accept certified checks, money orders and personal
checks as payment for copies of forms requested in writing.

81 136



TRANSACTIONS WITH INTERESTED PERSONS

Identification of Interested Persons

In connection with complying with requirements of the Internal Revenue Code and the Form 990
information return, the Organization shall identify all individuals and entities qualifying as “interested
persons” as defined by the IRS:

1. All current officers, directors, trustees and key employees (individuals required to be listed on
the Form 990)

2. All former officers, directors, trustees and key employees
3. Substantial contributors (a person required to be listed on Schedule B of the Form 990)
4. Family members of any individual listed in 1, 2, or 3, defined as spouses, ancestors, brothers,

sisters, children, grandchildren, great-grandchildren, and spouses of brothers, sisters, children,
grandchildren, and great-grandchildren

5. A 35% controlled entity of any of the persons listed in 1, 2, or 3

Record of Transactions With Interested Persons

The Organization shall maintain a record of all transactions and balances with interested persons for
each fiscal year for purposes of disclosure on the Form 990. This record shall be reviewed and
approved by the Fiscal Manager and provided to the Form 990 preparer.

UNRELATED BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
Identification and Classification

MCWIC properly identifies and classifies income-producing activities that are unrelated to the
Organization’s tax-exempt purpose using the guidelines described in the Internal Revenue Code and
underlying regulations. Such income accounts shall be segregated in separate accounts in the general
ledger in order to facilitate tracking and accumulation of unrelated trade or business activities.

Allocation of Expenses to Unrelated Activities

In addition to segregating income associated with activities that are unrelated to MCWIC’s exempt
purpose, the Organization’s general ledger shall also provide accounts for expenses associated with
each such unrelated activity. These expenses shall be offset against unrelated business revenue in
arriving at unrelated business taxable income. Expenses that shall be offset against gross unrelated
business income shall be limited to those expenses directly associated with the production of such
income, including reasonable allocation of indirect costs that benefit each activity, in accordance with
expense allocation policies described elsewhere in this manual.

Reporting

82 137



MCWIC will file IRS Form 990-T to report taxable income from unrelated trade or business activities.
Form 990-T is not subject to any public access or disclosure requirements. Accordingly, it is the policy
of MCWIC not to distribute copies of Form 990-T to anyone other than management of the
Organization.

MCWIC shall also report taxable income from unrelated trade or business activities that are subject to
state or local income or franchise taxes on the appropriate CA return.

83 138



FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES

BUDGETING
Overview

Budgeting is an integral part of managing any organization in that it is concerned with the translation of
organizational goals and objectives into financial and human resource terms. A budget should be
designed and prepared to direct the most efficient and prudent use of the Organization's financial and
human resources. A budget is a management commitment of a plan for present and future
organizational activities that will ensure survival. It provides an opportunity to examine the composition
and viability of the Organization's programs and activities simultaneously in light of the available
resources.

Budgets are also prepared for funding sources and each grant manager must be aware of budget
modification requirements. Awarding agencies may or may not require approval for changes in line
items. MCWIC will document and follow all such requirements.

Preparation and Adoption

MCWIC will prepare an annual budget on the accrual basis of accounting. The Fiscal Manager gathers
proposed organization-wide budget information from all Department Managers and prepares the first
draft of the budget.

After appropriate revisions and a compilation of all department budgets by the Fiscal Manager, a draft
of the Organization-wide budget, as well as individual department budgets, is presented to the
Executive Director for discussion, revision, and initial approval.

The revised draft is then submitted to the entire Board of Directors for adoption.

It is the policy of MCWIC to adopt a final budget at least 30 days before the beginning of the
Organization’s fiscal year. The purpose of adopting a final budget at this time is to allow adequate time
for the Accounting Department to input the budget into the accounting system and establish appropriate
accounting and reporting procedures (including any necessary modifications to the chart of accounts)
to ensure proper classification of activities and comparison of budget versus actual once the year
begins.

Budgets for programs that are not on the Organization’s fiscal year will be prepared in accordance with
awarding agency requirements.

Monitoring Performance
MCWIC monitors its financial performance by comparing and analyzing actual results with budgeted

results. This function shall be accomplished in conjunction with the monthly financial reporting process
described earlier.

84 139



On a monthly basis, financial reports comparing actual year-to-date revenues and expenses with
budgeted year-to-date amounts shall be produced by the Accounting Department and distributed to
each employee with budgetary responsibilities.

In addition, Program Managers shall submit monthly performance (non-financial) reports to the
Executive Director and the Fiscal Manager.

Budget Modifications

After a budget has been approved by the Board of Directors and adopted by the Organization, an
overall net change of more than $5,000 will require a budgetrevision submitted to the Board of
Directors for board approval. Reclassifications of a budgeted expense amounts across departments
(line item adjustments) of less than $10,000 may be made by the Fiscal Manager with approval of the
Executive Director. Reclassifications of a budgeted @xpense amount more than $10,000 will be
submitted to the Board of Directors for board approval.

All other budget modifications are to be brought to the full board on a quarterly basis for their review.

ANNUAL AUDIT
Role of the Independent Audito

MCWIC will arrange for’éw annual audit of the Organization's financial statements to be conducted by
an independent accounting firm. The independent accounting firm selected by the Board of Directors
will be required to communicate directly with the Fiscal Manager upon the completion of their audit.

Audited financial statements, including the auditor's opinion thereon, will be submitted and presented to
the Bo f Directors by the independent accounting. firm, after the financial statements have been
review d approved by the Fiscal Manager and Executive Director.

Auditer Independence

MCWIC may from time to time request the independent auditor to provide services outside the scope of
the annual audit and Form 990 preparation. In connection with these non-audit services, it is imperative
that the independent auditor remain independent in fact and in appearance in order to continue serving
the Organization as its auditor.

Generally, in order to remain independent with respect to the audit, the Organization’s auditors should
not provide non-audit services that involve performing management functions or making management
decisions nor should they provide non-audit services in situations where the non-audit services are
significant/material to the subject matter of the audits (or where they would be auditing their own work in
connection with the annual audit).

Therefore, it is the organization’s policy to evaluate any non-audit service requested from the

independent auditor for possible impairments to the firm’s independence, and to not permit the
performance of any services that would impair independence. This evaluation shall be performed by the

85 140



Fiscal Manager, who may consult the independent auditor or other external sources in making this
determination.

In addition, for each non-audit service that is to be provided by the Organization’s independent auditor,
the Organization shall:

1.  Designate a management level individual to be responsible and accountable for overseeing the
non-audit service (to be determined by the Executive Director);

2. Establish and monitor performance of the non-audit service to ensure that it meets management’s
objectives (to be performed by the person designated in step 1);

3. Make any decisions that involve management functions related to the non-audit service and
accept full responsibility for such decisions; and

4.  Evaluate the adequacy of the services performed and findings that result.
How Often to Review the Selection of the Auditor

MCWIC shall review the selection of its independent auditor in the following circumstances:

1. Anytime there is dissatisfaction with the service of the current firm
When a fresh perspective and new ideas are desired
3. Every 3 years to ensure competitive pricing and a high quality of service (this is not a

requirement to change auditors every five years; simply to re-evaluate the selection)
Selecting an Auditor

The selection of an accounting firm to conduct the annual audit is a task that should be taken very
seriously. The following factors shall be considered by MCWIC in selecting an accounting firm:

1. The firm’s reputation in the nonprofit community

2. The depth of the firm’s understanding of and experience with not-for-profit organizations and

Federal reporting requirements under OMB Circular A-133

The firm’s demonstrated ability to provide the services requested in a timely manner

4, The ability of firm personnel to communicate with Organization personnel in a professional and
congenial manner

g

If MCWIC decides to prepare and issue a written Request for Proposal (RFP) to be sent to prospective
audit firms, the following information shall be included:

Period of services required

Type of contract to be awarded (fixed fee, cost basis, etc.)

Complete description of the services requested (audit, management letter, tax returns, etc.)
Identification of meetings requiring their attendance, such as staff or Board of Director meetings
Organization chart of MCWIC

Chart of account information

Financial information about the Organization

Nooakowd~

86 141



8. Copy of prior year reports (financial statements, management letters, etc.)

9. Identification of need to perform audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133

10. Other information considered appropriate

11. Description of proposal and format requirements

12. Due date of proposals

13. Overview of selection process (i.e., whether finalists will be interviewed, when a decision shall
be made, etc.)

14. Identification of criteria for selection

Minimum Proposal Requirements from prospective CPA firms shall be:

Firm background

Biographical information (resumes) of key firm member who will serve MCWIC
Client references

Information about the firm's capabilities \
Firm's approach to performing an audit

Copy of the firm’s most recent quality/peer review report, including any accompanying letter of
findings

7 Other resources available with'the firm

8. Expected timing and completion of the audit

9. Expected delivery of reports

10. Cost estimate including estimated number of hours per staff member

11. Rate per hour f(ogach auditor ‘

12. Other information as appropriate

IR o e

In order to narrow down the proposals to the top selections, the Fiscal Manager shall meet with the
prospective engagement teams from each proposing firm to discuss their proposal. After the Fiscal
Manager narrows down.the field of prospective auditors to three firms, final interviews of each firm are
condu by the Fiscal Manager, who makes the final recommendation to the Board of Directors for
approv

Preparation for the Annual Audit

MCWIC shall be actively involved in planning for and assisting with the Organization’s independent
accounting firm in order to ensure a smooth and timely audit of its financial statements. In that regard,
the Accounting Department shall provide assistance to the independent auditors in the following areas:

Planning - The Fiscal Manager is responsible for delegating the assignments and responsibilities to
accounting staff in preparation for the audit. The Fiscal Manager shall review the list of information
requested by the auditors and assign responsibility for each item to the appropriate staff of MCWIC.
The Fiscal Manager shall then schedule and direct status meetings in the weeks leading up to the audit
in order to review the progress of staff in preparing for the audit.

The Fiscal Manager shall arrange and coordinate any and all meetings, interviews, telephone
discussions, and conference calls requested by the auditor with MCWIC board members, audit or
finance committee members, or employees of NPO to facilitate the auditor’s work. Prior to any such
meetings or discussions, the Fiscal Manager shall inform each Organization participant of the nature of
the discussion or meeting and what, if any, preparations they should do prior to the meeting. The Fiscal

87 142



Manager shall communicate to each MCWIC participant in such meetings or discussions the
importance of being open, honest and frank with the auditors with respect to any and all questions
posed by the auditors.

Involvement - Organization staff will do as much work as possible in order to assist the auditors and,
therefore, reduce the cost of the audit.

Interim Procedures - To facilitate the timely completion of the annual audit, the independent auditors
may perform selected audit procedures prior to the Organization’s year-end. By performing significant
portions of audit work as of an interim date, the work required subsequent to year-end is reduced.
Organization staff will provide requested schedules and documents to assist the auditors during any
interim audit fieldwork.

Throughout the audit process, MCWIC will make every effort to provide schedules, documents and
information requested by the auditors in a timely manner.

Concluding the Audit

Upon receipt of a draft of the audited financial statements of MCWIC from its independent auditor, the
Fiscal Manager shall perform a detailed review of the draft, consisting of the following procedures:

1. Carefully read the entire report for typographical errors
Trace and agree each number in the financial statements and accompanying footnotes to the
accounting records and/or internal financial statements of MCWIC

3. Review each footnote for accuracy and completeness

Any questions or errors noted as part of this review shall be communicated to the independent auditor
in a timely manner and resolved to the satisfaction of the Fiscal Manager.

It shall also be the responsibility of the Fiscal Manager to review and respond in writing to all
management letter or other internal control and compliance report findings and recommendations made
by the independent auditor.

Audit Adjustments

It is the policy of MCWIC to record all adjustments prepared by the independent auditor in connection
with the annual audit, in order for the internal financial statements of the Organization to agree with the
final audited financial statements for the year.

The Organization may also receive a list of unadjusted differences (or passed audit adjustments) from
the independent auditor in connection with the audit. If the Organization receives such a list, it shall be
the responsibility of the Fiscal Manager to make any necessary adjusting journal entries in the
accounting records of the fiscal year subsequent to the audited year in order to correct any uncorrected
misstatements that carry forward from the audited period.

88 143



Internal Control Deficiencies Noted in the Audit

In accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, at the conclusion of the audit the
Organization’s independent auditors may provide a written communication of internal control
deficiencies noted in connection with their audit. Not all deficiencies in internal control are required to
be reported by the auditor. Only the following two types of deficiencies are required to be
communicated:

1. Material weakness — A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

2. Significant deficiency — A significant deficiency.is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance. I\

The Organization’s independent auditors are required to provide written communication to the audit
committee of all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses (i.e. only those deficiencies that rise
to the level of materiality at which they qualify under the definitions provided above, in the opinion of the
auditor).

in writing shall be formally-addressed by the audit committee, the Executive Director and the Fiscal
Manager. The Executi irector and the Fiscal Manager shall prepare a written response, which shall
include a corrective action plan, to each internal control finding and such response shall be presented
to the audit committee for its.review and approval.

INSUR‘E
Overview

It is fiscally prudent.to have an active risk management program that includes a comprehensive
insurance package. This will ensure the viability and continued operations of MCWIC.

It is the Organization’s policy that all internal control deficiencies thaﬂa’ communicated by the auditor

MCWIC maintains adequate. insurance against general liability, as well as coverage for buildings,
contents, computers, fine arts, equipment, machinery and other items of value.

Coverage Guidelines

As a guideline, MCWIC will arrange for the following types and levels of insurance as a minimum:

Type of Coverage Amount of Coverage
Comprehensive Liability $1,000,000
Auto Insurance $1,000,000

89 144



EPLI $1,000,000 for all accounting department
employees and the Executive Director

Property Coverage for all items with acquisition cost greater
than $1,000

Directors and Officers (D&QO) $1,000,000 (with an appropriate deductible level)

Workers' Compensation To the extent required by law

MCWIC shall maintain a detailed listing of all insurance policies in effect. This listing shall include the
following information, at a minimum:;

Description (type of insurance)

Agent and insurance company, including all contact information
Coverage and deductibles

Premium amounts and frequency of payment

Policy effective dates

Date(s) premiums paid and check numbers

IR

Insurance Definitions

Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability

Contractors are required to comply with applicable Federal and state workers' compensation and
occupational disease statutes. If occupation diseases are not compensated under those statutes, they
shall be covered under the employer's liability insurance policy, except when contract operations are so
commingled that it would not be practical to require this coverage.

Comprehensive Liability
This type of coverage may include directors, officers and employee general liability insurance,
buildings, contents, computers, fine arts, boilers and machinery.

RECORD RETENTION
Policy
MCWIC retains records as required by law and destroys them when appropriate. The destruction of

records must be approved by the Fiscal Manager, and logged into the Organization’s Destroyed
Records Log. The formal records retention policy of MCWIC is as follows:

Accident reports/claims (settled Cases) 7 Years
Accounts payable ledgers and schedules 7 Years
Accounts receivable ledgers and schedules 7 Years
Audit reports Permanently

90 145



Bank reconciliations
Bank Statements
Chart of Accounts
Cancelled Checks

Contracts, mortgages, notes and leases:
Expired
Still in effect

Correspondence:

General

Legal and important matters only

Routine with customers and/or vendors
Deeds, mortgages and bills of sales
Depreciation schedules
Duplicate deposit slips
Employment applications
Expense analyses/expense distribution schedule
Financial statements:

Year end
Other
Garnishments
General ledgers/year end trial balance
Insurance policies (expired)
Insurance records (policies, claims, etc.)

Internal audit reports

Internal reports

Inventories of products, materials and supplies
Invoices (to customers, from vendors)
Journals

Minute books of directors, bylaws and charters
Notes receivable ledgers and schedules
Payroll records and summaries

Person ecords (terminated)

Petty ouchers

Physica entory tags

Property records (incl. depreciation schedules)
Purchase orders:

Purchasing department copy
Other copies
Receiving sheets
Retirement and pension records
Requisitions
Sales records
Subsidiary ledgers
Tax returns and worksheets, examination reports

and other documents relating to determination
of income tax liability
Time sheets/cards
Trademark registrations and copyrights
Training manuals
Voucher register and schedules
Withholding tax statements

91

3 Years
3 Years
Permanently
7 Years

7 Years
Permanently

2 Years
Permanently
2 Years
Permanently
Permanently
3 Years
3 Years

7 Years \

Permanently
Optional
7 Years
Permanently
3 Years
Permanently

3 Years +

3 rs

7 Years

7 Years
Permanently
Permanently
7 Years

7 Years

7 Years

3 Years

3 Years
Permanently

7 Years

1 Year

1 Year
Permanently
1 Year

7 Years

7 Years

Permanently
7 Years
Permanently
Permanently
7 Years
7 Years

146



The destruction of any documents containing social security numbers or any other “consumer data” as
defined under federal laws and regulations shall be done via shredding.

Exception for Investigations

In connection with any ongoing or anticipated investigation into allegations of violations of federal laws
or regulations, provisions of government awards, or violations of the Organization’s Code of Conduct,
the following exceptions are made to the preceding scheduled retention and/or destruction of records:

1. All records related to the subject of the investigation or allegation shall be exempt from any
scheduled record destruction, and

2. The term “records” shall also apply to any electronically stored record (e.g. documents stored on
computers, e-mail messages, etc), which shall also be protected from destruction

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSE ALLOCATIONS
Overview

As one of its financial management objectives, MCWIC strives to determine the actual costs of carrying
out each of its program service and supporting activities. In this regard, it is the policy of MCWIC to
charge expenses to the appropriate category of program service or supporting activity. Expenses that
serve multiple functions or are not readily identifiable with one function shall be allocated between
functions whenever possible.

Direct Charging of Costs
Certain internal costs shall be directly charged to the appropriate MCWIC function based upon

underlying documentation. The following costs shall be directly charged based on the documentation or
factor listed next to each:

Cost Basis For Charge

Salaries Full Time Equivalent

Occupancy (facilities) costs Actual square footage used by each function
Photocopying Actual use, based on codes

Postage Actual, per postage log

Vehicle Actual, per postage log

With the exception of salaries, which are recorded with each payroll cycle, all other costs identified
above shall be initially charged to one account when incurred, then allocated and recorded to the
appropriate functions via monthly journal entries.

92 147



Allocation of Overhead Costs

Basis of Cost Allocation:

A cost is allocable to a particular grant or contract if the goods or services involved are able to be
directly assigned to the specific grant or contract.

Cost allocation is used if a cost benefits two or more projects or activities, it must be charged in
accordance with its benefits to each project respectively. ‘Charges split between more than one grant

must be split on the basis of proportional benefit or other reasonable method. The division of the
expenditure cannot be split based on available funding or any other type of vi)nymous methodology.

Types of Allocation Processes:

Full Time Equivalent (FTE):

Each payroll is processed based on the monthly Full Time Equivalency (FTE) determined by the
Personnel Activity Reports (PAR) submitted by staff. Once payroll posts to the general ledger
(GL), the amount of the salaries charged to each funding source for that payroll process is used
to allocate costs. This allocation method is known as Relati ccount Balance (RAB), and is
therefore the method for which pooled costs are allocated to\xvarious funding sources.

Square Footage:

All facility related costs are allocated based on square footage to the appropriate organization
housed within the one-stop facility.

Alloc Process:

The Allocation. Management module within the accounting system distributes pooled costs across
multiple sources; programs, grants, or other account segments. Allocations or distributions are
calculated dynamically based on the prior month’s payroll salaries “Relative Account Balances” (RAB).
The allocation process is done on a monthly basis based on actual pooled expenditures.

SUBRECIPIENTS
Making of Subawards

From time to time, MCWIC may find it practical to make subawards of Federal funds to other
organizations. All subawards in excess of the small purchase threshold shall be subject to the same
procurement policies described in the preceding section. In addition, all subrecipients must be
approved in writing by the Federal awarding agency and agree to the subrecipient monitoring
provisions described in the next section.

With respect to subrecipients with whom MCWIC has not recently had a subaward relationship, the
Accounting Department shall determine an appropriate level of pre-award inquiry that shall be

93 148



performed. The purpose of such inquiry, which may involve a site visit to a potential subrecipient, is to
gain assurance that a potential subrecipient has adequate policies and procedures in place to provide
reasonable assurance that it is capable complying with all applicable laws, regulations and award
provisions. In addition, MCWIC shall obtain the following documents from all new subrecipients:

1. Articles of Incorporation
. Bylaws or other governing documents
3. Determination letter from the IRS (recognizing the subrecipient as exempt from income taxes
under IRC section 501(c)(3))
4. Last three years’ Forms 990 or 990-EZ, including all supporting schedules and attachments
(also Form 990-T, if applicable)
5. Copies of the last three years’ audit reports and management letters received from

subrecipient’s independent auditor (including all reports associated with audits performed in

accordance with OMB Circular A-133, if applicable)

Copy of the most recent internally-prepared financial statements and current budget

7. Copies of reports of government agencies (Inspector General, state or local government
auditors, etc.) resulting from audits, examinations, or monitoring procedures performed in the
last three years

o

Monitoring of Subrecipients

When MCWIC utilizes Federal funds to make subawards to subrecipients, MCWIC is subject to a
requirement to monitor each subrecipient in order to provide reasonable assurance that subrecipients
are complying, in all material respects, with laws, regulations, and award provisions applicable to the
program.

In fulfillment of its obligation to monitor subrecipients, the following policies apply to all subawards of
Federal funds made by MCWIC to subrecipients:

1. Subaward agreements shall include all information necessary to identify the funds as Federal
funding. This information shall include:
a. The applicable Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) title and number
b. Award name
C. Name of Federal agency
d. Amount of award

2. Subaward agreements shall identify all applicable audit requirements, including the requirement
to obtain an audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, if the subrecipient meets the criteria
for having to undergo such an audit.

3. Subawards shall include a listing of all applicable Federal requirements that each subrecipient
must follow.
4. Subawards shall require that subrecipient employees responsible for program compliance

obtain appropriate training in current grant administrative and program compliance
requirements.

94 149



10.

Subawards shall require that subrecipients submit financial and program reports to MCWIC on a
basis no less frequently than monthly.

MCWIC will follow up with all subrecipients to determine whether all required audits have been
completed. MCWIC will cease all funding of subrecipients failing to meet the requirement to
undergo an audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. For subrecipients that properly obtain
an audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, MCWIC shall obtain and review the resulting
audit reports for possible effects on MCWIC's accounting records or audit.

MCWIC shall assign one of its employees the responsibility of monitoring each subrecipient on
an ongoing basis, during the period of performance by the subrecipient. This employee will
establish and document, based on her/his understanding of the requirements that have been
delegated to the subrecipient, a system for the ongoing monitoring of the subrecipient.

Ongoing monitoring of subrecipients will vary from subrecipient to subxcipient, based on the
nature of work assigned to each. However, ongoing monitoring activities may involve any or all
of the following:

a. Regular contacts with subrecipients and appropriate inquiries regarding the program.

b. Reviewing programmatic and financial reports prepared and submitted by the
subrecipient and following up on areas of concern.

C. Monitoring subrecipient budgets.

d. Performing site visits to the subrecipient to review financial and programmatic records
and assr? compliance with applicable laws, regulati&v and provisions of the
subaward.

e. Offering subrecipients technical assistance where needed.

f. Maintaining a system to track and follow up on deficiencies noted at the subrecipient in
order to assure that appropriate corrective action is taken.

g. Establishing and maintaining a tracking system to assure timely submission of all reports

required of the subrecipient.

Documentation shall be maintained in support of all efforts associated with monitoring of
subrecipients.

In connection with any subrecipient that has been found to be out of compliance with provisions
of its subaward with MCWIC, responsive actions by the Organization shall be determined by
Fiscal Manager. Such actions may consist of any of the following actions:

a. Increasing the level of supporting documentation that the subrecipient is required to
submit to MCWIC on a monthly or periodic basis

b. Requiring that subrecipient prepare a formal corrective action plan for submission to
MCWIC

C. Requiring that certain employees of the subrecipient undergo training in areas identified
as needing improvement

d. Require documentation of changes made to policies or forms used in administering the
subaward

e. Arranging for on-site (at the subrecipient’s office) oversight on a periodic basis by a

member of the MCWIC accounting or grant administration staff

95 150



Providing copies of pertinent laws, regulations, federal agency guidelines, or other

documents that may help the subrecipient
Arranging with an outside party (such as MCWIC’s own independent auditors) for

periodic on-site monitoring visits
Terminating the subaward relationship and seeking an alternative.

96 151



MADERACOUNTY

INVESTMENT CORPORATION

Agenda Item 7.2

[ ] Consent [ ] Action X Information

To: Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation

From: Elaine Craig, Executive Director
Workforce Investment Board
Date: January 23, 2014

Subject: Grants/Projects Update

Information:

e We have received notice of an award of $25,000 from Chukchansi for us to replace customer
computers in the three One Stops; Resource Rooms and Assessment Room. We have not yet
received the funds, though we are assured we will via a letter from the Tribal Council.

e We received an extension to the NEG OJT from March 31 to May 31, 2014 and staff are working
diligently on contacting employers. We have placed an ad in the Chambers newsletters and with the
EDC and are working on a print ad in all three newspapers in order to expend all of these funds. We
have met our required enrollment numbers but still have funds available to assist employers with wage
subsidy.

e We have finally received our new contract with the Social Security Administration for our Employment
Network and Ticket to Work program. Our original contract was terminated on August 31, 2013 after
we were required to reapply when MCOE declined to sign a Novation Agreement transferring the
contract from them to MCWIC. This caused a gap in services until November 4, 2013 when we finally
received a new contract but we were subsequently unable to access the portal because SSA
apparently “lost” the contract in their system and had to terminate that contract and issue a new one,
effective January 14, 2014. During this time we were unable to reassign or assign any tickets and have
potentially lost revenue as at least one of our ticket customers has gone to work and we should have
received revenue from that ticket. We are still trying to work through this issue with SSA in the hopes
they can and will backdate our current contract to at least November 4, 2013 but preferably to
September 1, 2013 in order for us to capture the customers and tickets and their associated activity.
We have exceeded the required enroliments for the Disability Employment Initiative piece of this
project.

The Wells Fargo Veteran Project has exceeded our expectations with three veteran mentors that have
received stipends to assist us with accessing and delivering services and information to the veterans in
our community. This has also resulted in a virtual Veterans Resource Center on the
maderaworkforce.org website.

We are actively recruiting for eligible veterans for the Power Pathways grant/project in collaboration
with Fresno and Kings County. Training dates and location are still being worked on for the Madera
cohort. 30 veterans will receive this training.




e We are working on a grant application with Union Bank to provide a dedicated GED course by Madera
Adult School with a follow-on Microsoft course for single parents. This will be for approximately
$25,000.

e There are a number of other potential grant applications with businesses such as Lowes and Bank of
America that we are currently looking at.

Financing:
Workforce Investment Act of 1998




MADERACOUNTY

INVESTMENT CORPORATION

Agenda Iltem 7.3

[ ] Consent [ ] Action X Information

To: Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation

From: Elaine Craig, Executive Director
Workforce Investment Board
Date: January 23, 2014

Subject: Facilities Update

Information:

Staff have attended and participated in the second Madera County Campus meeting related to the new
proposed facility on Road 28 where the Madera County Workforce has been invited to be a tenant. We
were provided with a comprehensive questionnaire as an initial means to begin discussion about what our
needs and requests are and have a face to face meeting with the architect in a week. Based on the
qguestionnaires from all of the agencies, a draft will be completed and workshops will be done with the
agencies participating in revisions, modifications, etc. Staff have requested information from the primary
partner agencies that either currently have space in the One Stop and from EDD who have asked to
occupy space when the opportunity arises. Staff will keep the Board of Directors and the WIB apprised of
this item.

Financing:
Workforce Investment Act of 1998




	MCWIC Agenda 1.23.14
	A G E N D A
	REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION FOR ANY INDIVIDUAL WITH A DISABILITY Pursuant to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, any individual with a disability who requires reasonable accommodation to attend or participate i...


	MCWIC item 5.1 MCWIC minutes  2013.12.5 revised
	MCWIC item 6.1 Bylaws MCWIC
	Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation
	To:
	Elaine Craig, Executive Director
	From:
	January 23, 2014
	Date:
	Subject:
	Recommendation:
	Summary:
	Financing:
	Workforce Investment Act of 1998

	MCWIC item 6.1a Bylaws MCWIC - Restated signed 1-14-14
	MCWIC item 6.2 Revised Exec Director Eval
	Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation
	To:
	Elaine Craig, Executive Director
	From:
	January 23, 2014
	Date:
	Subject:
	Recommendation:
	Summary:
	Financing:
	Workforce Investment Act of 1998

	MCWIC item 6.3 One Stop Consortia MOA
	Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation
	To:
	Elaine Craig, Executive Director
	From:
	January 23, 2014
	Date:
	Subject:
	Recommendation:
	Summary:
	Financing:
	Workforce Investment Act of 1998

	MCWIC item 6.3a One Stop Consortium Agreement DRAFT
	MCWIC item 6.4 Financial Reports
	Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation
	To:
	Elaine Craig, Executive Director
	From:
	January 23, 2014
	Date:
	Subject:
	Recommendation:
	Summary:
	Financing:
	Workforce Investment Act of 1998

	MCWIC item 6.4a Balance Sheet as of 12.31.13
	MCWIC item 6.4b Budget Summary as of 12.31.13
	MCWIC item 6.4c Statement of Activites as of 12.31.13
	MCWIC item 6.4d Accounts Receivable Report as of 12.31.13
	MCWIC item 6.4e Bank Reconciliation Report as of 12.31.13
	MCWIC item 6.5 Budget Revisions
	Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation
	To:
	Elaine Craig, Executive Director
	From:
	January 23, 2014
	Date:
	Subject:
	Recommendation:
	Summary:
	Financing:
	Workforce Investment Act of 1998

	MCWIC item 6.5a Budget Revision Request as of 12.31.13
	MCWIC item 6.6 Form 990
	Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation
	To:
	Elaine Craig, Executive Director
	From:
	Date:
	Subject:
	Recommendation:
	Summary:
	Financing:
	Workforce Investment Act of 1998

	MCWIC item 7.1 Policies and Procedures Manual
	Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation
	To:
	Elaine Craig, Executive Director
	From:
	January 23, 2014
	Date:
	Subject:
	Information:
	Financing:
	Workforce Investment Act of 1998

	MCWIC item 7.2 Grants Projects Update
	Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation
	To:
	Elaine Craig, Executive Director
	From:
	January 23, 2014
	Date:
	Subject:
	Information:
	Financing:
	Workforce Investment Act of 1998

	MCWIC item 7.3 Facilities Update
	Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation
	To:
	Elaine Craig, Executive Director
	From:
	January 23, 2014
	Date:
	Subject:
	Information:
	Financing:
	Workforce Investment Act of 1998




